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CHAIR CARROLL: .. , (gavel). "
This Land Use Meeting of March 10, 2005, is now in
session. Good morning, Members.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Good morning.
CHAIR CARROLL: And with us this morning we have Mr. Hokama, Kane, Molina, and
Ms. Tavares. Excused at this time are Mr. Pontanilla, Mateo, Johnson, and Anderson.

ITEM NO. 44:

DISTRICT BOUNDARY AMENDMENT AND CHANGE IN ZONING FOR
WAIOLANI
PIKAKE
RESIDENTIAL
SUBDIVISION
(WAIKAPU)
(C.C. No. 02-210)

CHAIR CARROLL: Members, this morning we have our first item on the agenda, Land Use
Item 44, Waiolani Pikae [sic].
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Pikake.
CHAIR CARROLL: The Applicant, M2W, LLC proposes, excuse me, development of a singlefamily residential subdivision consisting of 38 lots ranging in size from 6,000 to 7,300
square feet on approximately 7.44 acre parcel located at Waikapu, Wailuku, Maui (TMK:
(2) 3-5-004:092). The Applicant is seeking two Land Use approvals from Council.
First, the Applicant is requesting that the State Land Use District Classification be
changed from Agricultural District to Urban District for a 3.706-acre portion of the parcel.
The remainder of the parcel is already classified Urban District. Members were
nd
transmitted a proposed bill to, that the amendment by correspondence dated March 2 ,
2005, from the Department of Corporation Counsel.
Second, the Applicant is seeking a Conditional Change in Zoning for the entire parcel
from Agricultural District to R-1 Residential District. Members were also transmitted a
proposed bill to effectuate the Change in Zoning by correspondence dated
March 2nd , 2005, from the Department of Corporation Counsel.
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Members should note that they are also in receipt of correspondence dated
October 20th , 2004, from the Applicant's Consultant concerning suggested revisions to
these proposed conditions. Members are also in receipt of correspondence dated
March 9th , 2005, from the Chair transmitting a warranty deeded, deed dated
April 8th , 2004, from the Applicant's Consultant. The deed reflects that the parcel has
been conveyed by M2W, LLC to M&W2, LLC. This change in ownership should be
reflected in the proposed conditions set forth in Exhibit B to the Change in Zoning bill.
Therefore, should the Committee reach the point of considering that the bill be passed
on to first reading, the Chair will entertain a motion to amend the bill accordingly.
Committee Members had an opportunity on March 2nd , 2005, to review the subject
property at the site inspection. The Chair would like to thank the Members and the
resource people who attended the site inspection for making themselves available for
the offsite meeting.
Also, this morning we have with us, and some aren't here yet, but we will have
Mr. Foley, Planning Director. We have with us Joseph Alueta, our Planner; Milton
Arakawa, Public Works and Management; Alice Lee, Housing and Human Concerns;
George Tengan, Director of Water Supply; Patrick Matsui, Planning Development
Division Chief, Parks and Recreation. We'll have somebody from the Police and from
Fire and Public Safety.
The Chair had requested a representative from the State Department of Transportation
to attend today's meeting, however, the State Department of Transportation has instead
forwarded correspondence dated March 8, 2005, stating that the Department issues
have been resolved, and you can refer to that correspondence in your binders.
On behalf of the Applicant we have Michele McLean, a Land Use Planner for Smith
Development; David Goode, Vice President of Development Operations, Kent Smith
Development; and Kirk Tanaka, President, R.T. Tanaka Engineers.
I am now going to call the Applicant forward to make a five-minute presentation after
which the Department will make their presentation. Following that we will have public
testimony.
MS. McLEAN: Good morning, good morning, Chairman Carroll and Committee Members. My
name is Michele McLean representing the Applicant M&W2, LLC, and its member and
officer Peter Meier. First, I'd like to thank the Chair and his Staff for their time and hard
work in scheduling this Item, which has been before the Council for about two and a half
years. This is actually the third sitting Council that has had this Item before it. So we
really appreciate this day. The Chair has asked for a five-minute presentation, and I'll
do my best to stay within that time frame.
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As you know, the property is located in Waikapu adjacent to the existing Waiolani
Subdivision. The aerial photos in your binders are more than an adequate description
of the location and the surrounding uses. The property is about 7 V2 acres designated
Single-Family in the Wailuku-Kahului Community Plan. It's zoned Agricultural, so we're
requesting a Change in Zoning to R-1 Residential, which is consistent with neighboring
Waiolani.
It's split designated Agricultural and Urban by the State, and so we're requesting a State
Land Use District Boundary Amendment from Agriculture to Urban for the portion, about
3.7 acres, that is Ag. Both of these requests will bring the property into conformance
with the Single-Family designation in the Community Plan.
I'd like to spend the balance of my time to discuss some specifics. There really hasn't
been any question about the appropriateness of developing the property for residential
use, probably because it as well as several vacant surrounding properties have been
designated single family in the Community Plan for quite some time, the recent update
as well as the prior plan. The discussion has been predominantly on the subdivision
roadway design with some discussion on other standard development conditions.
We came into this meeting today with the goal of helping to make your decision as easy
as possible with proposals that we hope can satisfy everyone. So if I could pass out a
list of the conditions as proposed by the Maui Planning Commission with our proposed
revisions to reflect the changes that have occurred over the past two and a half years as
well as the concerns that we have all heard from the Waiolani and Waikapu
communities.
The first condition recommended by the Planning Commission, is that the Applicant
shall offer 10 percent of the units as affordable. What we're proposing in addition to the
clarification of, of the Applicant, we're proposing to offer 20 percent of the units as
affordable with a breakdown of 5 percent to families earning up to 100 percent of HUD
median income, 10 percent to families earning up to 120 percent, and 5 percent to
families earning up to 140 percent.
We're proposing this revision based upon previous Committee discussion about the
Administration standard recommendation of 10 percent, and if the subdivision is
proposed with 38 lots, that would be two lots for families up, earning up to 100, 100
percent, four lots for up to 120 percent, and two lots for up to 140. So covering a range
and doubling what the Administration standard recommendation is.
The next condition relates to required infrastructural improvements, and we have no
proposed changes to that standard condition other than revising the term either the
Applicant or the revised entity name.
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The third condition requires sharing the cost of restriping the intersection of Honoapiilani
Highway and Pilikana Street. This condition was imposed, again, two and a half years
ago on the heels of the Waiolani Elua project to require participation in roadway
improvements. And as you know that project is well on its way to completion with some
homes already being occupied. So this condition has actually already been fulfilled.
There is another condition, the fifth condition that relates to traffic improvements. So
we're recommending at this time, we're requesting at this time that this condition simply
be deleted since it's no longer applicable.
The fourth condition, that future subdivision in the property be configured so that lots are
accessed from two cul-de-sacs and that no through road be built. This was imposed by
the Planning Commission in response to the same concerns that you've heard from the
residents of West Waiko Road that they do not want to see an increase in traffic by the
property being accessed via West Waiko and Old Waikapu Roads. However, the reality
of this condition could allow up to 20 lots being accessed from a cul-de-sac coming off
of Old Waikapu Road, which is probably not what the Commission intended nor what
the community wants.
At the same time, though, we've heard from Planning and Public Works that a through
road is desirable. We propose what we think may be a satisfactory compromise to
allow the through road to be built, but to limit the access via West Waiko and Old
Waikapu Roads to only three additional new lots. That could be accomplished by deed
restrictions as proposed here, and also in CC&Rs, which would be recorded against
each lot, and thereby making it enforceable through the homeowner's association. And
in addition to those measures we would install traffic calming such as speed humps
along Old Waikapu Road to discourage the use of that route.
Commonsense also tells us that most drivers will choose to use Kama Street. The
current traffic patterns see drivers leaving West Waiko Road and Pilikana Street onto
the highway, turning left and heading into Wailuku at a ratio of more than two to one.
So if more than twice the number of drivers turn left onto the highway, chances are that
they would choose Pilikana Street.
Additionally, the average distance from Waiolani Pikake to the highway via Waiko Road
is almost double the distance than via Pili kana Street, about three quarters of a mile
versus .4 miles. So we believe most drivers will choose Pilikana Street anyway. More
than two to one will be Wailuku bound, and it's half the distance.
For the fifth proposed condition that a traffic signal, that the Applicant participate in the
traffic signal, we'd like to offer two options for our traffic mitigation. We actually have no
problem with the condition as drafted, but to be more specific and avoid the condition
becoming outdated like the restriping condition, we would first propose to fully fund the
design of the signal to State DOT satisfaction. This would ensure our full and up front
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participation, and we would not have to debate a pro rata share with Waiolani Mauka or
other existing residences.
A second, a second option was raised at a community meeting and ties into the
discussion you had at your meeting last week about regional roadway planning, and
that would be for us to fully fund a study that looks at the use of Old Waikapu Road as
part of a future roadway network considering the potential and proposed development of
vacant lots, of vacant lands between Waikapu and Wailuku as discussed by Director
Foley with the map he provided at your last meeting. This would give you, plus State
and County Planning and Highway Officials, another tool in reviewing new projects and
future roadway improvements in the area.
That concludes the five conditions recommended by the Planning Commission, and on
the last page are three proposed conditions, which would address issues raised at your
last meeting. Real quickly and in wrapping up, first, that our park fees would be paid by,
in full by a cash contribution, which we would hope could be earmarked toward
amenities at the Waiolani Mauka Park.
Second, that we donate $10,000 to each of the three public schools that kids from
Waiolani Pikake will attend. This was not a condition since at that time the Department
of Education only requested contributions for projects with more than 50 lots. So there
presently is no educational impact fee imposed on the project, but we're proposing
$10,000 to each of the three schools.
And lastly that we offer all of the market lots to owner/occupants for at least 30 days and
to give consideration to buyers with ties to the existing Waiolani and Waikapu
communities. Like Waiolani Elua and Waiolani Mauka, we want to develop Waiolani
Pikake for local residents who are struggling to find land or homes where they can raise
their families. And that concludes my introduction, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you very much.
MS. McLEAN: Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: We'd now like to hear from Mr. Alueta, Planning.
MR. ALUET A: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I think the Applicant covered the majority of the
highlights. The Department would reit. .. , reiterate our desire to see a through road
with the design of the project similar to one that is attached in Exhibit 3 of the Staff
Report. Although it was a condition of the Planning Commission at the meeting with
regards to using a two cul-de-sac road the following week, and there was a subsequent
letter as well as the minutes from those meet. .. , meeting that was forward to the, to the
Committee that the Planning Commission wanted to reconsider that condition after
hearing about, having a presentation by the Planning Department's Long Range
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Department regarding all of the proposed improvements and future projects within the
Waikapu area.
And they felt that the cul-de-sacs in the subdivision would only worsen the traffic
situation within the Waikapu area. And they req ... , and, therefore, once again the
Department along with, I believe, the Fire Department as well as the Department of
Public Works would want to see a through road, a full access through road with no
restrictions. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Mr. Alueta. And let the record show Mr. Pontanilla joined us
before the Applicant's present. .. , presentation. We'd now like to open public
testimony. And, Members, we are going to open public testimony, and I do not know
how long it will last, but at some point we are going to have a visitation from some
school children. At that time, I will be calling a recess. Public testimony is now open.
You have three minutes and one minute to conclude. Ms. Nakata.
MS. NAKATA: Mr. Chair, the first testifier on this Item is Lei Kihm to be followed by Victor
Pellegrino.
. . . BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..

MS. KIHM: Aloha, Chairman Carroll, Members of the Land Use Committee and Staff. My
name is Leinaala Kihm. I'm a resident of Waikapu for 30 years. I've also been a
resident of the seventh and eighth floor for 31 years, and actually the hours I spent in
this building is longer than the hours I spent in my house in Waikapu. But I am very
concerned about the Waiolani Pikake Subdivision, and basically it's the traffic. We
don't, I don't, I'm against more traffic onto West Waiko Road. I would like to see that
road kept the way it is to basically keep the nature and character of Waikapu where we
live in that little corner up there the same, and to see another access road to go towards
Wailuku or wherever else residents need to go.
And that was interesting what the Planner just said this morning where full access
through road with no restrictions, and I wanted, can I ask him a question? I wanted to
find out what the Planning Department's recommendation was? What road are they
talking about?
CHAIR CARROLL: It's on the record, and when we get into discussion we'll, we'll bring that
up.
MS. KIHM: Okay. Okay.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you.
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MS. KIHM: Well basically that's what my testimony is. I don't want to see West Waiko Road
enlarged and, and made to a road where the traffic would be coming down our road.
Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any questions for the testifier? Hearing none -COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes, yes, yes, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Question.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Question.
CHAIR CARROLL: -- oh, I'm sorry. Yeah, Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Good morning, Ms. Kihm.
MS. KIHM: Good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: You heard the proposal about having the three homes-MS. KIHM: Yes, we did.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: -- to be able to access -MS. KIHM: Access.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: -- that -- is that agreeable as far as those -MS. KIHM: Basically-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: -- three?
MS. KIHM: -- as I remember at that meeting the residents were for that recommendation from
the consultant. We didn't see any problem with the three homes having access to Old
Waikapu Road.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further questions? Hearing none, thank you. Ms. Nakata.
MS. NAKATA: The next testifier is Victor Pellegrino to be followed by Frank Irwin.
MR. PELLEGRINO: Good morning, Mr. Carroll, Members of the Land Use Committee, County
Council. My name is Victor Pellegrino, and I represent myself, my wife Wallette
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Pellegrino who cannot be here this morning. She's teaching at Maui Community
College. And I live at 1420 Kilohi Street in Waikapu, and adjacent to my home we are
developing a farm, Noho Ana(?) Farm, and restoring seven lo'i kalo that date back to
before 1850.
So we're trying to conserve some of the and reserve some of the green space in
Waikapu to keep its original character. Its original character was that 1,722 taro
patches lay in that area. There are none there now. The only one is the one, and, and I
should say on, on the north side, there's only this one. And this one taro patch is fed by
an auwai that also dates back to ancient times. This auwai is on a corner, a very
dangerous corner on Waiko Road, and there have already been three accidents there.
Two of the cars in, in, in accidents there landed in Mr. Rosario's front yard. The auwai,
which is adjacent to that curve, cannot be moved. Historically, it should never be
moved, and in practical, for practical reasons it should not be, be moved.
Now what will happen if more traffic comes down that road, and we're not talking about
just the residents who live there, we're talking about the visitors who come up that road.
We're talking about the deliveries that come up the road, the trucks that come up the
road, the Fed Ex that comes up the road. We do not want any more traffic on Waiko
Road period. Seventy-eight people from the Community Association of Waikapu said
so in a survey, and, and a signed document, which we, we have submitted.
The road is substandard. It's dangerous. It's narrow. There are no sidewalks. There's
no shoulders. Children walk on the road. Ducks cross the road. Dogs and cats,
unfortunately dogs, but dogs and cats run freely. People walk up and down the road all
the time including adults. We have one of the most walking communities on Maui.
You'll see people walking all the time in Waikapu, walking with their animals, walking
with their wives, their children, so forth.
We cannot have any more traffic on that road. In addition, and I, and I told Michele this,
this morning. Her subdivision is the straw that breaks the camel's back as far as I'm
concerned, because more and more and more home developments are going to occur
in Waikapu.
MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MR. PELLEGRINO: When I moved there 40 years ago, people told me it was God's country,
and where I live we could smell the pigs from the Vida's, and the cows used to run
through our street, and the horses used to come up and down the road. It's not that
way anymore. I think we have three ducks now.
We want to keep the rural character of Waikapu. We really are friendly people. We do
want to welcome others into our community. We think we have one of the best

- 9-

LAND USE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
March 10, 2005

communities on Maui. It's been a well kept secret, and we want to keep it that way as
much as we can.
A couple other final comments, I don't think if we allow the Community Association of
this new development to, to police itself it will. I don't think it will. People will drive
where they want when they want. I don't expect to see any changes unless -MS. NAKATA: Four minutes.
MR. PELLEGRINO: -- there is a restriction, unless there is a barrier, unless only the cars from
three homes can go up and down Waiko Road. All of you visited this area. You knew
what Waiko Road was like when you were up there.
CHAIR CARROLL: Can you conclude? Your time's up.
MR. PELLEGRINO: My time is up. Mahalo.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any questions for the testifier? Hearing none, thank you.
MS. NAKATA: The next and last testifier signed up on this Item is Frank Irwin.
MR. IRWIN: Good morning, Mr. Chairman, Members of the Council. My name is Frank M.
Irwin, and I'm a 20-year resident of 248 West Waiko Road, which in reality is formerly
the entry of Old Waikapu Road approximately 200 feet from the beginning of the project
property in question. I would just like to reiterate that the consensus of the residents of
the neighborhood is that a through route from, to Old Waikapu Road and then and turn
down West Waiko Road is that we don't want it. We, we do not want that through route
open.
When this project first came on line and the residents and property owners within 500
feet of the proposed subdivision were written a letter informing us of the intentions of the
developer we circulated a petition, which was filed with the Maui County Planning
Commission, and 60 percent of those owners, property owners signed the petition
objecting to this through route opening onto Old Waikapu Road. The existing modern
standard streets running down through and adjacent to Waiolana [sic], Waiolani
Subdivision to Honoapiilani Highway are of a modern standard. And so we're hoping
that the bulk of the traffic from this new subdivision is routed in that direction.
Our main issue is we do not want to get, have a precedence set here that when these
vacant lands that Wailuku Agribusiness has sold to developers come on line that we
open up this routing that eventually will deteriorate and maybe even destroy the
character that we have on West Waiko Road, because that's the logical direction that
the traffic's going to flow.

- 10-

LAND USE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
March 10, 2005

I know that planners and engineers promote this traffic network system that by the
textbooks it seems like a good idea, and, and through just plain logic it maybe makes
sense, but we have an existing older neighborhood that's very close knit, it's, it's a
wonderful place to live, and we are not, we, we know that if we start routing lots more
traffic down West Waiko Road that our subdivision is just going to lose its character, our
neighborhood is going to lose its character.
There are a lot of conditions on there to widen it would cause condemnations, there's
the auwai, and we love our neighborhood, we've been there a long time. We are a
community there, and we don't want to see what we have right now, which is an existing
neighborhood that should be a model for the community -MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MR. IRWIN: -- to be deteriorated just because it's serving the needs of future development.
Now through a little bit of creative planning, I think that not only this subdivision, but
future subdivisions could be routed in a manner that would not impact the West Waiko
Road area in, in the future. And I would encourage that Members of the Council and
the planners be cognizant of the fact that the, the neighborhood, the residents as a
group don't want to see anymore traffic.
This subdivision's plan of routing this new through road even though it's meeting some
concerns for Public Works, et cetera, I, I think that it's, it would be a small compromise
to not allow this through connection and, and, because this is a fairly low impact with the
number of houses that they're proposing, and, and allow that to, to occur without the
connection -MS. NAKATA: Four minutes.
MR. IRWIN: -- and so that-CHAIR CARROLL: Your time is up, sir.
MR. IRWIN: -- okay. I'll, I'll thank you very much, and please don't let, open the road. Thank
you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any questions for the testifier? Hearing none, thank you. Members, we
are going to take a recess until 10:00 o'clock, at which time we'll reconvene and
continue public testimony. This Committee stands in recess. . .. (gavel) . ..
RECESS:
RECONVENE:

9:34 a.m.
10:03 a.m.

- 11 -

LAND USE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
March 10, 2005

CHAIR CARROLL: .. .(gaveJ). .. This Land Use Committee meeting of March 10th, 2005, is
now back in session, and we will continue with public testimony. And, Members, thank
you so much for during the recess being here for our guests. I think they deeply
appreciated it. Ms. Nakata.
MS. NAKATA: Mr. Chair, the next testifier is Florence Nakama to be followed by Wayne
Rosario.
MS. NAKAMA: Good morning, Mr. Chairman and Members of the Maui County Council Land
Use Committee. My name is Florence Nakama, and I live 19 East Waiko Road. My
concern for the developments in Waikapu are twofold. One, the impact of the number
of homes that are being built will truly impact the small village community that we have
there, and we can't stop that development, because I know people need housing. So
I'm not denying the, the need for housing for people here, but also I just want to make
sure that the landscaping and the way that these homes are built will not take away
from that small community environment.
For example, along the highway, I hope that we won't have fences, you know, white
picket, white fence going right along there, because to me that's incongruent to a, a
small community environment. We need to have more plants, local plants with low
maintenance along there to just kind of give that small neighborhood type of
environment to that area.
The second thing that these subdivisions will impact is traffic, and I think that's a really
big concern especially on Honoapiilani Highway, which is supposed to be a highway, a
through highway. Already with this Spencer Subdivision and now with the, the other
subdivision, Pikake Subdivision, they will have another traffic light at Pilikana. And so
there's also going to be one at Waiko Road, and so within a short distance you have
two traffic lights are going to go up there, and that will impact the flow of traffic there.
And I think that's what the police officers were concerned about at the last meeting that
we had.
So I'm just, my concern is that I'm not saying that we shouldn't have these homes or
housing, but I believe that we need to have better road or traffic planning. We need to
have, as someone mentioned the, we need regional roads, but we need them
immediately not after the fact. . .(change tape). .. Wai. .. , Waiale will be extended?
They talked about this a long, many years ago and now with Spencer's Subdivision they
will have it improved up to Waiko Road, but beyond Wai. .. , Waiko Road I don't know
how long it's going to take before it reaches out to either Honoapiilani Highway or Kui. .. ,
Kuihelani Highway, but that needs to be taken care of immediately, because it's going to
impact East Waiko Road. And, and East Waiko Road is not supposed to be a, you
know, really a traff ... -MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
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MS. NAKAMA: -- traffic road for these subdivisions. Another one is that we need also a
mauka, makai road to Kahului. Kuikahi is already overloaded, and with the new
subdivision coming up to take that, when people move in they're going to take Kuikahi
and there's no way to Kahului right now. There has to be an extension that goes down
immediately. Not now, because right now when you go during the school and work
hours the cars are backed up on Honoapiilani Highway, because they can't turn right,
because Waiale is already full.
So these are my two concerns that we need to have planning for roads mauka, makai
as well as north, south roads or going across. And I'm afraid that the area near,
between Waikapu -MS. NAKATA: Four minutes.
MS. NAKAMA: -- and Wailuku will be -CHAIR CARROLL: Could you wrap up, your time is up?
MS. NAKAMA: -- yes, developed. So we need these roads immediately. We just can't wait.
Thank you very much.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any questions for the testifier? Hearing none, thank you.
Ms. Nakata.
MS. NAKATA: The next testifier is Wayne Rosario.
MR. ROSARIO: Aloha.
CHAIR CARROLL: Aloha.

MR ROSARIO: My name is Wayne Rosario. I live in Waikapu, born and raised there. And
my concern is with the homes coming up in the area. The road is a big topic. Now you
have the Government road, and the Government road is, when we were young, was the
County road. That's the only Government we knew. We didn't know the, there was a,
what you call, the, the, I guess it was the ... (inaudible) ... then, but everything was,
when you referred to the Government was the, was the, what you call, what you people
are.
But then now the big issue here is where the road is, is, when they're talking about the
Government road they want to utilize that road so that they're going to put in these
homes in that particular area there, and that on the other end you have Kama, and then
with Kama, you know, it goes into, what you call, the other streets that make up the, that
area where you can utilize it for the, for the, whatchamacall, access getting out of, out of
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the, what you call, the area. But then again you're going to have two sides to utilize.
You're going to have where we live at, the Government road. If you're going to use the
Government road, then you gotta fix it up, and you gotta make sure that everything
meets the standard.
And then when you come around you gotta make
whatchamacall, as you come around the bend now
particular area, because you, you don't live where we
here on the, like, say on the, on the week, weekends,
going to mention that home in that particular area, but
and down, up and down.

sure that you have enough,
that's very dangerous in that
live at, but if you come, come
like Friday, Saturdays, I'm not
there's cars going zooming up

And where I live at, you know, they come around and here I, I've seen cars end up in
my property several times. And my, my chief concern is I know if, if they're gonna,
there's no stopping it when, when they're gonna start to build the homes. They're
gonna utilize that property whether we like it or not. But what we got to do is make sure
that, let the people know what you're gonna do, how you're gonna go about doing it,
how much property you're gonna utilize?
MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MR. ROSARIO: Are you gonna tear down all these walls, you gonna tear down this
whatchamacall telephone poles, and fix it all up, and, and we, we got to know all these
things, you know. I, I'm not against it. I'm, I'm, I'm for it. I mean, but everything gotta
be done accordingly. And if, if we, if we do everything accordingly, then we've got no,
no problem, we got no, nothing to say about it, but as long as we know what is gonna
happen, and how it's gonna be done, then I think the people where I reside at would be
only in favor of it all.
But right now they're in a turmoil. You know, they want to know, you know. And you
can't blame them, I mean after all, you know, you live there for all your blooming life,
and here, you know, changes are coming. And with changes, you know, give us some
kind of a notification what is going to be done. That's all we ask. We're not asking for
too much. And I, I hope it meets everybody's, you know, pleasure what I just got
through saying.
MS. NAKATA: Four minutes.
MR. ROSARIO: And I thank each and everyone. Mahalo.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Members, questions? Hearing none, thank you.
MS. NAKATA: Mr. Chair, there are no further testifiers signed up on this Item.
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•• •END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY• ••
CHAIR CARROLL: Is there anyone in the gallery that wishes to come down and give public
testimony on this Land Use Item 44? Hearing none, if there's no objection, Members,
I'm going to close testimony on this item.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR CARROLL: Testimony is now closed. We have with us from the Police Department
Robert Hill, and he has to leave shortly, so I'd like to call him down now. Please come
down. Lieutenant Hill, would you like to make any statement?
MR. HILL: Good morning, Mr. Chairman. From the Police Department, as you know normally
when applications like these come in there's a study that's done. Usually a community
officer goes out and does a traffic assessment and, and security assessment, so forth
for roadways and everything, but unfortunately all I could find on this file was a letter
that was dated October 9, 2001, saying that we, we were not going to do this study. So
at this point the Police Department has no comment on the, on the application.
CHAIR CARROLL:
Thank you, Lieutenant.
Members, any questions for our Police
Department before I release him? Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Lieutenant, is the Department able to give us comments
regarding the current situation with Waiko and Honoapiilani Highway and incidents per
thousand either accidents, violations, infractions?
MR. HILL: We, we could probably get that information for you.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. Other than that there's no other, you know, because
this is a new application.
MR. HILL: Oh, it is?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: It was under a different name many, you know, years ago.
MR. HILL: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:
comment?

And even at that point the Department chose not to give

MR. HILL: According to the letter that I have, and that's the only thing that we have that, that
we could find on this file, was that at that time we weren't doing the studies on it, so
nothing, apparently no study was done to my knowledge.
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Would studies that related to adjacent projects whether it be
the Spencer project, or when Brewer Chemical came in for their zoning and their
requirements to improve Waiko and Honoapiilani Highway, Waiolani Mauka, would
those studies be applicable or, or not? What, what would be, your comments be to us
this morning?
MR. HILL: The more current ones would probably be applicable, and, and 1 would, I would
venture to say that they probably contacted some members of, of this particular
community when they were doing those studies on the, on the other applications. So,
yes, I, both, the more recent ones would be accurate as far as traffic flow assessments
and so forth.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: If 1may ask another question?
CHAIR CARROLL: Proceed.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: There's been discussion about allowing I believe up to three
residential lots to have access to the Old Waiko Road. You know, for me automatically
my, my brain says that there will be enforcement problems. How do you enforce just
three houses having access to that road? Is that a workable situation for your
Department?
MR. HILL: We'd have to look into what the, what the request is and the requirements are. Off
the top I wouldn't be able to answer your question. I'm sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Would you have, would your Department have a problem with
an, a gated area that is accessed only under emergency situations like we have in
Lahaina?
MR. HILL: That, that's a doable situation as long as we make the assessment prior to it, and,
and everybody understands what everybody's roles are going to be, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you very much.
MR. HILL: Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you.
thank you.

Any further questions for the Lieutenant?

Hearing none,

MR. HILL: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR CARROLL: At this time I'd like to ask Corporation Counsel if they have any comment.
MR. GIROUX: We don't have any comment at this time.
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CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Members, I'm going to open up the floor to questions now.
The floor is now open. Mr. Pontanilla.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Is the Fire Department here?
CHAIR CARROLL: I do not see their representative. They were asked to be here, but maybe
they'll be here later. So if you could wait on that.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, I guess I can wait. Actually it's similar to the question that
Council Chair Hokama had posed on the Maui Police Department. This is in regards to
if we were to ere ... , to a develop a road, to erect a private gate if the Fire Department
would have any kind of a problem in regards to, to that gate?
CHAIR CARROLL: Whoever that is, turn it off.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: So I'll wait then, and I'll ask the Fire Department that question.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, thank you, Chairman. I have a question or two for the
Water Department if there's a representative here.
CHAIR CARROLL: Yes, Mr. Tengan, could you please come down? Proceed, Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Good morning, Mr. Tengan, just
one question regarding water pressure in the area. My understanding is the water
pressure generally is low in this area. Do you see any negative impacts with the
proposal that's before us, 38 more homes in this area? Do you see any impact it would
have on the existing water pressure at this time?
MR. TENGAN: Mr. Chair, I'm, I'm not aware that we have pressure problems in the area.
However, if there are, in order for the subdivision to proceed they would need, the
developer would need to address that concern and do the necessary improvements to,
to provide adequate water pressure in the area, and also fire flow requirements.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay, and at this time the developer has met all the, has gotten
all the required approvals for the use of water at this time?
MR. TENGAN: I'm not sure of that.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Mr. Chairman, I guess when appropriate, if we could get
that information from the Water Department if the developer has met all their required
approvals.
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CHAIR CARROLL: We will request the information in writing.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Tengan.
CHAIR CARROLL: Members, further questions?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Oh, I don't have a question. I don't know if we're into the
discussion portion or not. I don't, I don't have a question, but if it's discussion on what's
before us I, I have some comments.
CHAIR CARROLL: All right. Members, before us we have what was distributed by the
Applicant for proposed zoning changes. All of you, all of you have that handout?
Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Yeah, I have questions. I see Mr. Foley here, and so if -CHAIR CARROLL: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: -- for the Planning Department.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Foley, could you please come down?
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: And, and I, I'm sorry, Chair, I don't know if Member Tavares, no
problem -COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: No problem.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: -- with questions? Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Good morning, Mr. Foley.
MR. FOLEY: Good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: I think at the, one of our previous meetings we had a handout that
was given to us, which is located in the back of our binders. Members, it's that map
that, although it's talked about, it's, it's identified as a conceptual plan for offsite water
improvements. I think the markings on it denote transportation ways.
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And so maybe if, Mr. Foley, if you can maybe just reo .. , reintroduce us to what this map
stands for, and I think one of the primary issues that was brought up by the Waikapu
community with respects to having a through road here. If you can provide us with
some comment with respects to their specific concern of Waikapu, of West Waiko
Road's current condition, and what would it take as far as improvements, or what, what
the Planning Department's idea of what improvements would need to take place, and
for it to be considered consistent with what your folks long range plans are for, for the
roadway circulatory system in Waikapu?
MR. FOLEY: Mr. Chairman, in response to Mr. Kane's question. The drawing in question
which is labeled conceptual plan for offsite water improvements, this is actually a, a, a
road circulation exhibit that I prepared for the State Land Use Commission meeting. I
prepared it at the meeting, and it was to illustrate at that time why it was inappropriate to
change the corner of Piilani Highway from two lanes to four lanes. And that it was to
illustrate that there are alternatives parallel to the Honoapiilani Highway such as the
extension of Waiale and the, the extension of the Old Waikapu Road, which is shown
with the, the line, the yellow and orange dots on the north side of the subject property.
The, this, this drawing was intended to illustrate some, some of the circulation
alternatives that, that will be available as this area is developed. And it, it has been
modified since that meeting to include the road through the, the Waikapu Subdivision in
a north-south direction to connect to the Old Waikapu Road.
It, it's the Planning Department's recommendation that, that the Old Waikapu Road be,
be eventually improved as a County arterial or collector connecting Wai..., Waiko Road
to Kuikahi Drive in the, to the east. Waiko Road, as you know, is, is an existing
thoroughfare that will soon have a signal at Honoapiilani Highway, and will soon have a
connection to Waiale, and our, our recommendation would be that, that the road be
improved with, with better pavement, but not be widened or formalized through
Waikapu. I'm not sure whether curbs, gutters and sidewalks would be appropriate, but
the, the pavement certainly needs to be improved, but that's not, that's not part of this
project.
The, the, the only really important consideration of this map for this specific project is
that we strongly support the road in the subdivision, which name escapes me. That we,
we recommend that that road be extended to connect to the future Old Waikapu Road.
Does that answer your question?
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Yes, thank you. More.
CHAIR CARROLL: Proceed.
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COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank, thank you, Chair. With putting on more or, or improving
the road with pavement primarily would that bring that road up to standard? And I ask
that because it's been referenced as a substandard road. So maybe if -MR. FOLEY: I don't see anybody here from -COUNCILMEMBER KANE: -- Public Works, yeah.
MR. FOLEY: -- Public Works, but I would, from my observation, I imagine that Waiko Road is
substandard both with respect to right-of-way and pavement width. Oh, sorry, yeah,
Mr. Arakawa is here.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: If he may, Chair, come down?
CHAIR CARROLL: He's coming down.
MR. FOLEY: It probably would be more appropriate for him to respond to that question since
he's here. Sorry, I didn't see you hiding back there.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Mr. Arakawa. Proceed, Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you. Mr. Arakawa, can you, can you provide us, and I, and
I hope this is germane to the subject application, because right now it's being proposed
that the road be a through road, which would impact the existing Waiko Road, Chair.
So -CHAIR CARROLL: It does.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE:
proceed.

-- okay.

So without objections from the Members I'd like to

MR. FOLEY: ! thought he was talking about Waiko?
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: I, I am. So my question about Waiko Road, is the existing
condition of Waiko Road. Director Foley responded to a question I had earlier regarding
the existing condition, and what it would take to upgrade that road for it to be consistent
with what the future plans are for the Old Government Road, which is mauka of
Honoapiilani, or west of Honoapiilani Highway.
So my question to you, Mr., or Director Arakawa, is even if we put pavement on Waiko
Road, West Waiko Road would it still be considered substandard? And that, and again
I'm just using references that the, basically the community have with respects to West
Waiko that it's substandard. Can you provide us information to what it would take to
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bring it into some sort of compliance or standard that the County would expect of this
road?
MR. ARAKAWA: Yes, Councilmember Kane, West Waiko is currently a non-standard County
road. To, I believe the classification for that is a County collector road, so the collector
road standard is basically a 56 foot or 60 foot wide right-of-way. And I, I'm not sure
what the existing right-of-way is there now, but we certainly acknowledge that we'll run
into some challenges if we have to bring it up to that standard. But short of that, of
course, there are some things, certain things that we can do such as, of course, just
resurfacing the road and bringing it up to a better condition so that it, it, it could be used
by vehicles in, in that fashion.
But if you're talking about widening, shoulder improvements, or curbs, gutters,
sidewalks, that's going to be more difficult and time consuming since we would have to
purchase land in order to do that.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Okay. So my question now becomes, because according to
Director Foley of Planning, it seems as though what was represented is that the intent is
that the, to upgrade or create a better circulatory road system in this area. That the Old
Government Road is going to be, at some point in the future, targeted for improvement.
And with that being said does Waiko, and, and it's being represented on this map
anyway that Waiko Road would be considered a part of that Old Government Road to,
to complete the circulatory system. Is that road going to be able to accommodate what
we already see as potential development in this area?
And if not, I mean, that to me is going to have a direct impact on our decision making as
far as any type of development, generally speaking, in the whole area. But my remarks
are specific to this one. And I say that because one testifier stated in his remarks that
this particular project, in his opinion, is going to break the camel's back so to speak, the
straw that breaks the camel's back for Waiko.
And so I just need to understand what, what is it going to take to make this road, or is
there plans to make this road adequate enough to provide for these, for two, for the two
developments, but specifically this one knowing that Mauka is something that's on the
books or coming forth as well as the Pikake project, and, and the potential impact on, on
WestWaiko?
MR. ARAKAWA: Let me try and answer your question in, in this manner. Waiko Road, of
course, has been there for, you know, many, many decades. It's not unlike a number of
other roads, County roads where development has occurred around a, a non-standard
street. So if we have to bring it up to standard, we, we're going to face a lot of
challenges.
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But, however, in, in this case if, if you look at the, the area wide land use pattern, if there
is going to be future development from say between Waiko Road and Kuikahi, if there
are individual subdivisions that feed, that occur in that area and there is no
interconnection between those subdivisions, they will all have to feed onto Honoapiilani
Highway, and we see the beginning of that pattern already with the two traffic signals
that are planned at the intersection with Waiko and Pili kana.
So Director Foley's proposal to actually extend old Waikapu to Kuikahi provides, you
know, additional mobility for residents in that area. And the thought, at least in, in my
mind, would be to try to route an increasing amount of traffic to Kuikahi as opposed to
trying to route it to Waiko.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: And that's, I guess, with the, well other information that was
provided for us by, I think the, the opening remarks of the Applicant, I think stated that
over two out of three, I think, or 70 to 75 percent of the people in this particular
subdivision of 38 proposed homes will tend to follow, I guess, what information they've
got that 70 or two out of three people will end up going to Wailuku.
And so potentially from the plan of 38 homes I see on the, on the, on the map that's
given to us, and it's stapled to I think the one that has all the photos in it, all the aerial
photos, the color aerial photos of Waiolani Pikake on the very back. It looks like
potentially eight, nine or ten lots potentially have their ingress, egress directly on and off
the Old Waikapu Road, which would then take them down Waiko and the other houses,
and I think they, they claim that the distance is almost double, .4 versus .75 down to
Honoapiilani Highway.
So my question is would these additional cars or additional potential impact on Waiko
Road, are there plans to provide any sort of improvements onto Waiko Road to
accommodate the potential increased traffic if, in fact, this project is approved with a
through, a through street as proposed in the diagram that's provided for us in the
application?
MR. ARAKAWA: As far as improvements to West Waiko, no, there are no improvements to
actually widen or improve it at, at this point. It's part, it's part of the, this particular
application.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Not even in paving, resurfacing?
MR. ARAKAWA: No, well if, if you're talking about the, the water line improvements that were
put in recently, those will be repaired. It's, it's basically a private contractor that's doing
that, but those will be repaired. But as far as resurface, resurfacing of the entire road
not, we don't have plans at this time. The connection from the subdivision on Old, Old
Waikapu to Waiko, we would require a 20-foot pavement width where there is none right
now to connect, to provide that connectivity.
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COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Okay. That's going to be required of the Applicant?
MR. ARAKAWA: Yes, of the Applicant to do that. And within their project frontage, they would
be required to provide half the required ultimate right-of-way for Old Waikapu Road, and
we'd probably look at the collector road standard for that, which is, you know, either a
56 or 60 foot wide right-of-way.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Chair, I yield. Other Members, I'm sure, have questions along
this line.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Members, we have Scott, Lieutenant English over here from
the Fire Department. If you could come down, please? Mr. Pontanilla.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA:
Thank you, Chair.
Earlier I asked the question, or
Council member Hokama asked the question of the Police Department, if a private gate
were to be installed on the Old Waikapu Road to limit traffic from going down to Waiko
Road, would the ... (change tape) . . .in regards to something like that, a private gate that
you easily can be accessible to?
MR. ENGLISH: We wouldn't have any problems with that. Normally we require, like, a
secondary egress in case we have to evacuate people out, and those, like I said, we
would just do whatever, just open the gate. We normally just cut the links and open the
gate for emergency egress in and out.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any questions for the Fire Department? Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Oh, no, Chairman, I'm sorry, I have a question for Public Works
Director?
CHAIR CARROLL: Okay. Before you do that, is there any questions for the Fire Department?
If not, I would like to, Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Chair. So if this body, if this body considers instead of
a through street and instead has an emergency exit, what would be the width
requirement that the Fire Department WOUld, WOUld, would ask us to consider for this,
for this road? So you would have both ingress, egress for evacuation purposes as well
as access by fire equipment.
MR. ENGLISH: Minimum width would be 20 feet for any fire lane access. Egress and ingress
would be 20 feet wide. So the, the gates probably would be a double 10-feet gates or
one single 20-foot leaf to open up.
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COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Okay. Thank you. I'm, I'm done with the Lieutenant.
CHAIR CARROLL: Okay. Any further questions for the Fire Department? If not, I'm going to
release Mr. English. Thank you very much for coming down. Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Can we see if anybody has any questions for the Parks
Department, so the Dir. .. , the Planner can go back to work?
CHAIR CARROLL:
Does anyone have any questions for the Department, for Parks
Department? Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Oh, I yield. I think Chair Hokama has.
CHAIR CARROLL: Oh, excuse me, Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Yeah, for Parks, thank you. The, the Applicant has provided
us with a recommendation that in order for them to satisfy their requirements a full cash
contribution be the option for utilization. If it wasn't a cash contribution, what would be
the requirements of the Code and of your Department?
MR. MATSUI: In lieu of cash would be land, which would be, I believe 38 lots minus three. So
that's 35 times 500 square feet, and that would be the equivalent of land, or they could
give a combination of land and money.
I would like to comment that, you know, the Applicant stated that the current contribution
is $5,170 per lot minus three. I would like to point out that the existing subdivision
ordinance has a grandfather clause, and it grandfathered all of the subdivisions that
received prior preliminary approval, prior to the new ordinance, which was, I believe,
February '04. This subdivision received preliminary approval in '02, so they would, and
they have applied for two extensions, which they have, so it's still alive.
So they would fall under the old formula. And as you recall the old formula as it was
applied came out to be much, much less than the assessed valuation, or what we
thought was the assessed valuation. And if you recall that was why the formula was
changed or amended to what it is now.
So technically they would fall under the old formula, which would be much, much less
than the $5,000 per lot. So, you know, unless the Applicant is willing to voluntarily
contribute that, you know, we would apply the old formula, unless somehow their
preliminary subdivision approval is null and void, and they would come in for a new
preliminary subdivision.
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. So I'm trying to understand whether the Applicant's
recommendation and suggestion on how to satisfy their park assessment requirements
is, is fair. So you're telling us 35 lots times 500 square feet would be the physical land
requirements of, of the Department and the County Code?
MR. MATSUI: That's one option, but we would prefer the $5,000 per lot.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Why?
MR. MATSUI: Well 35 times 500, you know, it's not a real big lot. I think it's what-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: It's 17,500.
MR. MATSUI: -- yeah, about a quarter of an acre. And, you know, it's not something that we
would like. We, we want something that's large that we could do some active fields, not
a small lot like that.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Did you make your Department's intentions known at the
Planning Commission level?
MR. MATSUI: At that time we were, there were other subdivisions being proposed. I, I think
that Waiolani Mauka and the circumstances were different then. But generally we had
looked at wanting to acquire, you know, a larger parcel in that area, not necessarily
within this subdivision. And, and I think we recognize within that subdivision it was real
limited, you know, because of the shape that, you know, we could get a larger lot, or
expand it to a larger lot in combination with other developments. So I, I guess we were
looking at cash.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Did your Department, knowing that there was adjacent
projects being requested for consideration, look at how you could maybe have each
approved project put up an "X" amount of square footage whereby you would have a
very workable active park area?
You know, let's say we had ten projects, I'm not saying there is, but let's say if we got
ten projects. Each had to put up maybe 20,000 plus or minus square feet, that's
200,000 square feet. Maybe you could have done something more active for the
neighborhood kids? Have you guys tried to approach it beyond just looking at one
single applicant in the region?
MR. MATSUI: Well if, you know, if you look at the other, the lands that abut this subdivision,
you know, a lot of it's developed already, and, and, you know, what you're saying is
what we really would need to do is collect the money from this development and go
purchase, you know, property, or pull money from all of the different developments, and
go purchase a property that's large enough within this subdivision.
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So essentially the, the requirement for this subdivision would be a cash contribution,
and we would take that cash, pool it with other resources and go purchase a larger
property offsite, but within the, within this area.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Can I follow-up, please? Because isn't that one of your
requests to us in last year's budget? It was to put money so you can buy parks in that
area?
MR. MATSUI: I, I don't recall any. You mean like as a CIP Item?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Land acquisition. Didn't you guys ask through the Mayor's
Budget to buy the old Brewer field and, and those parks in Old Waikapu?
MR. MATSUI: Not specifically. You know, we, we had no specific property in that area in
mind. I think it was just a general thing, because Brewer field is being donated for, from
that Spencer project, we're getting those two fields.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Well, last year wasn't, I believe I've, unless I really didn't pay
attention to our budget details, I believe your Department through the Administration
requested money to acquire.
MR. MATSUI: I believe it was a general account, and, and I think we mentioned Brewer as a
possible site that we would look in to acquire, but as it was we ended up getting it from
Spencer, with, without having to pay for it.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So you're telling us this morning, or you are recommending,
let me say it this way. You are recommending to us this morning that you would rather
have the cash if the cash is at the current Code requirements levels?
MR. MATSUI: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So since this is an ordinance proposal, Corporation Counsel,
can we do that?
CHAIR CARROLL: Corporation Counsel.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: We're enacting a law.
MR. GIROUX: What, what's the question again?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Can we do what Parks is suggesting, which is go with the
higher --
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MR. GIROUX: Oh, okay. So the, the -COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: -- requirement?
MR. GIROUX: -- question is that about the, the amount.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: The amount.
MR. GIROUX: The amount. As far as when we're looking at conditions that we're placing on
these types of projects, if you're going to go above and beyond what the statutory
allows, you have to make a, an assessment of whether or not the condition that you're
placing, I believe you have two matters before you. You have, one is an Ag to Rural,
and then you have a Conditional Zoning.
So you would, you would have to decide under what -COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Conditions of zoning.
MR. GIROUX: -- condition of zoning. So we would look under the standard used in order to
place that, and again that we have to look at the statute. Looking at 19.510,
19.510.050, Conditional Zoning, and you would have to look at those factors that allows
you to put conditions onto these types of ordinances.
Basically the conditions shall be reasonably conceived to mitigate the impacts
emanating from the proposed land use and shall meet the following criteria: that the
public shall be protected from the potentially deleterious effects of the proposed use,
and the need for public services created by the proposed use shall be fulfilled.
So those are the criteria that the Council has to work through in order to justify the
increase above and beyond what would normally be assessed through statute, and that
analysis is consistent with the constitutional law as far as, you know, how a Councilor
a, a pO!itica! body would go by assessing extra impacts caused by a development.
One, one way that this can be resolved is through mutual agreement through the
parties, meaning that if, if it, if the body would feel uncomfortable going out on the limb
and saying, okay, our analysis is that this project creates such an impact, then it would
be wise, I would guess, to see where the Applicant stands as far as donating that.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So the bottom line is it can be done?
MR. GIROUX: If the proper analysis is done and the justification is there.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you. I'm done.
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CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Mr. Hokama. Members, Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Yeah, and just, just a follow-up and to provide clarity to
Council member or Council Chair Hokama's question.
Because they had their
preliminary subdivision approval in 2002, and the ordinance for new fees passed in
February of '04, what does, what are considered their requirements from a cash
contribution standpoint as well as the land requirements? If that can be again provided
for clarification.
MR. MATSUI: Mr. Chairman, the formula at that time for cash contribution was the assessed
valuation of the property at the time of final subdivision approval. And so what we
would do is when it was getting close to final subdivision approval, we'd ask the Real
Property Tax Division what is the assessed valuation? From my knowledge, it would be
based on agricultural rates, because most of the property is agricultural. So it would be
very low per square foot.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: And then the land requirement for the old?
MR. MATSUI: The land requirement was still 500 square feet.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Per?
MR. MATSUI: Per lot.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Minus the three?
MR. MATSUI: Minus three, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: So the 17,500 square feet.
MR. MATSUI: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: And your recommendation to this body? Again, I'm just getting
clarity, yeah, Chair. Your recommendation is to get the cash contribution, but the cash
based on the new ordinance that's in place?
MR. MATSUI: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Have you gotten comment from the Applicant as far as, because
what I see in their proposal is the Applicant shall satisfy the project's park assessment
requirement by full cash contribution. Is that based on the old one, on the old
ordinance, or is it based on the new one, and have you had the discussions to be clear
on what it's going to be, what the agreement is?
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MR. MATSUI: We haven't had any discussion, but in their letter to, to Wayne Nishiki dated
October 20, '04, they did say that, on page three, about the middle of the page, first, we
propose to satisfy the parks, the project's park assessment by a full cash contribution,
which is 5,175 per unit using today's fees.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Okay. Thank you. I see that. Okay. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any more questions for Parks Department? If not, thank you, Mr. Matsui.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Oh, I'm sorry, one more.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Part of the recommendation as well is to, they're requesting that
these funds be used for amenities and improvements to the proposed park at Waiolani
Mauka. Does the Parks Department have a comment on that request for the use of the
funds?
MR. MATSUI: We would support that.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Okay. Because it's my understanding in, in, and correct me if I'm
wrong, and, and, Mr. Chair, I'm only bringing this up is because it's part of the
application and the request by the Applicant who's made a, a presentation this morning
to us. It's my understanding that the Waiolani Mauka Park was not going to have
certain amenities, and that the understanding of people in the eXisting area who were
interested in what's going to take place there, weren't aware of amenities. And I don't
know if that means barbecue pits or park benches or, I don't know what amenities we're
talking about or improvements that we're talking about.
So are you folks aware of specific improvements or amenities that would take place at
the Mauka Park, or what you're supportive of in, in, in improvements to that park?
MR. MATSUI: Not specifically at this point, but, you know, generally, you know, the developer
is required to, for the, for the mauka project, you know, they're grading, grassing,
landscaping. So there's things over and above the basics that the original developer
would not provide. So, you know, we could do like a tot lot or, you know, its, you know,
off the top of my head, picnic facilities. I'm not sure what else, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Yeah, I'm, I'm just curious as to is it consistent with what was
represented in the Mauka Project as far as what, what's going to be provided for that
Mauka Project Park, and that if this is consistent with this request, or this
recommendation is consistent with what was represented in the Mauka Project.
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So I apologize for tying them together, but it's being tied together in the Applicant's
request for us to consider as a condition. So I asked the question and getting the Park's
feedback. Thank you. I'm done, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Mr. Kane. Any further questions for Parks? Hearing none,
thank you, Mr. Matsui. Members, any questions for Housing? We also have Ms. Lee
with us in the audience. Any questions for Ms. Lee at this time?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, before you entertain questions for Director Lee -CHAIR CARROLL: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: -- maybe either Mr. Kane or, or Ms. Tavares maybe can
answer the question so that we wouldn't need to go get a formal request, but if we buy
into the recommendation regarding the park assessment cash, normally it goes to the
park, assessment park that must be spent within the Community Plan Region. And then
during Budget, the Budget Committee recommends how to allocate and utilize those
funds.
So this would bypass that process, and we would make a direct, I guess, decision with
this specific allocation, let's say for something where, in Waiolani Mauka, Mauka that
we're not sure what it's going to be used for yet? Is that, is that a correct understanding
on my part?
MR. MATSUI: That's half correct. That, that's one way it could happen. It goes into the park
assessment and gets turned into a CIP appropriation within that Community Plan
District, and, of course, the Council would have to approve it. Okay. The other way
would be the developer can spend "X" amount of dollars in a park in that district that the
Park's Director designates without having to go through the appropriation process. So
there's two ways that it could be done.
COUNC!LMEMBER HOKAMA: The second way may not fulfill Council's requirements though.
MR. MATSUI: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Mr. Hokama. Any further questions? Anything further for
Mr. Matsui?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No, Mr. Chairman -CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Molina.
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: -- when you deem it appropriate, I have a question for Public
Works. I don't know where you're going right now.
CHAIR CARROLL: Alright. Anybody have anything else for Parks while we have them over
here?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR CARROLL: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Just as a clarification regarding the park assessment. In park
assessment they can do cash, land, or an improvement to a park designated by the
Parks Department, or a combination thereof, so a combination of any or all of the
above. So that part of it is what, you know, Mr. Matsui's referring to, the two ways to do,
to handle park assessment.
But if it's con ... , if it's considered a cash contribution for park assessment, I guess we
can have that discussion, but to me it goes to the Park Assessment Fund. But if it's a
requirement, if we make a condition in here that says their cash contribution, or they,
rather than the cash contribution they will do an improvement to the, to the Mauka Park,
then it becomes a condition of their zoning and that goes directly between this project
and the next project for them to work out how that improvement is going to be. And
that's happened before. We've had people build things in parks as part of their
agreement for their subdivision.
So that's, that's kind of how that plays out, but if they do a cash thing, to me it's, we
can't take the cash as a cash assessment, and then apply, have it applied arbitrarily.
It's almost like this Applicant has to provide the funding directly to whoever is going to
do the improvement. It's not going to come through the County and go back out. It
would be like direct to the contractor or direct to the, the, the Applicant of the Mauka
Park.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Anything further for Parks? I'm going to call for a five-minute
recess. Recess. . .. (gavel) . ..
RECESS:

11:00 a.m.

RECONVENE:

11 :11 a.m.

CHAIR CARROLL: .. . (gavel) . .. Land Use Committee meeting of March 10th , 2005, is now
back in session. Members, we have several things that have come up before us that
we need to consider with this application, but right now we have Ms. Lee in the
audience. Is there anyone that has anything for Ms. Lee, or Ms. Lee do you have any
statement that you would like to come down and make? Having none, is there any
- 31 -

LAND USE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

March 10, 2005

questions, are there any questions for Ms. Lee or Housing? Hearing none, thank you.
Members, we have -COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, Chairman, just one question please.
CHAIR CARROLL: Yes, Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: And then maybe Ms., Director Lee could, with the Applicant's
proposal, which is different from, I guess, what the Planning Commission has, has
proposed, of course, they're doubling the amount of units under a, a phrase affordable
housing. The last 5 percent, Director Lee, for families earning up to 140 percent of the
median, is that where our police, fire, our professionals, the teachers, WOUld, would fall
into that category?
MS. LEE: Yes, Council Member. Usually 120 to 140.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So this would help us address that, that so called gap group
that we've been kind of missing the target on in, in some earlier project considerations?
MS. LEE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. Is, is 5 percent a workable number?
MS. LEE: Well the total is 20 and our, ordinarily our recommendation is 10. So he's going
double the recommendation.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Yeah, and I meant that in, in a way that the break-up of the 20
is, is, does that kind of make sense and addresses some of the concerns we have?
MS. LEE: Yes, Council Member, however, we're only talking about eight units, yeah.
COU!'JCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Yeah, well what, what I'm intending is that if this is the way it
can work for others, then I'm looking at, you know, seeing if we would consider
duplicating it with, with the other projects too.
MS. LEE: This might work, something similar maybe. We, we're in the process of, of revising
our draft, our draft proposal for the Housing Committee, and you'll be seeing a change
from actually 10 to 15 percent or possibly more.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you. I appreCiate your comments this morning.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further questions for Housing? Mr. Kane.
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COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you. Director Lee, under the guidelines that you follow with
respects to the 10 percent that is, you're, you're usually following the 10 percent up to
120 percent or within that category? Is it an 80 to 120 is your, your guide that you folks
utilize?
MS. LEE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Is there anything more specific than that range? Is, do you have
a specific, it, there has to be "X" number in the 80, 90, 100, so on and so forth, or is it
just in that range as long as they provide the 10 percent in that range? Anything more
specific, in other words, than that?
MR. LEE: We usually get a little bit more specific if the numbers required are greater, but if
you're talking about four or five units, it's really hard to split them up in -COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Yeah.
MS. LEE: -- you know, short categories, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Yeah. Okay, and what they're doing, and what they're, they're
doing satisfies your 10 percent, but on top of that the other two break ups of 5 percent,
5 percent satisfies the lower as well as the higher; that's correct?
MS. LEE: Yes. Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Yeah. Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any further questions for Ms. Lee? Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah, on their proposal they had that the, the Applicant will
offer the market units, oh, to owner occupants for at least 30 days. Oh, that's not about
the affordable ones then, that's about the market unit ones. So has there been any
discussion of the mechanics of how the, the affordable units work? It's all done through
your Department as far as the applications and the qualifications and stuff?
MS. LEE: Yes, and the ten-year buy-back owner occupancy. All the standard requirements.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Oh, alright. Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Pontanilla.
VICE-CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. In regards to the two lots up to 140 percent, you
know, I've been advocating that, you know, we really take a look at the 121 to 140
percent median income, and I think that's a gap group that, what Member Hokama had
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mentioned in regards to identifying the, the group, the nurses, the teachers, the firemen,
the policemen. Sometimes and too many times, you know, we forget about that gap
group. So I'm happy to see that, you know, we're taking a look at this gap group and
providing needed homes for, you know, people that service this community.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any further questions for Ms. Lee? Hearing none, thank you,
Ms. Lee.
MS. LEE: Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Members, we have quite a few concerns that have been brought up and
addressed on the floor by the Members on this application. We have two bills before us
on this application. Our State Land Use District Classification from Agriculture to Urban
and, of course, we have our Change of Zoning. Mr. Pontanilla.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Pardon me, Chair. I was wondering if I can ask a question to the
developers before you make your recommendation?
CHAIR CARROLL: Yes, you can.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. McLean. Proceed.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good morning.
MS. McLEAN: Good morning.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: I was looking at the map that was provided us when we did the
site inspection, and one of the aerial photos show several homes, actually, that's
bordering the project. .. (change tape) . .. as far as access to those homes there, it
seems like they're utilizing the Old Waikapu Road.
MS. McLEAN: Are you talking about these in here?
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
MS. McLEAN: Okay.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: So how -MS. McLEAN: Yes, they do.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: -- how are you going to provide access for those homes?
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MS. McLEAN: Well through the subdivision process, again using this aerial, you can sort of
see that there's a dirt road that comes and serves behind them. Depending on how the
subdivision roadway is configured, if it's a through road, for example, there would be a,
a short cul-de-sac or hammerhead that would go down to serve these new lots that
could also provide access to the existing homes, or if there is some sort of different
roadway configuration we would provide an access easement more or less along the
existing alignment.
The bottom line answer to the question is we will be required to provide them access.
We cannot, even though they are landlocked now they do have some sort of existing
access, and we, we absolutely would provide them appropriate access.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
MS. McLEAN: You're welcome.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, thank you, Mr. Chairman. I had a question earlier for the
Public Works Director, but since we have the Applicant here, my question relates to
drainage. Can you share with us your drainage plan on how you're going to address
any runoff water from the upper west end of Waiko Road?
MS. McLEAN: Yeah, actually I would like to defer to the project's civil engineer, Kirk Tanaka.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay.
MS. McLEAN: Thanks.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you.
MR. TANAKA: Good morning, Chair, Chairman Carroll and Members of the Land Use
Committee. My name is Kirk Tanaka, and we're the project civil engineers. And in
order to address your question on drainage, basically this Waiolani Pikake Subdivision
is, is what we believe was a, an extension of the original Waiolani Subdivision that was
developed by Wailuku Agribusiness.
As part of, as part of the development of the Waiolani Subdivision--thank you,
Michele--what the developers did was they put in a, a, a sewer stub at the, at the top of
Kama. There's a drainage stub at the top of Kama, and there's, and there's a water
stub at the top of Kama.
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So the natural extension would have been, and I, and I believe that it would have been
to extend all the utilities up, and in the case of the water tie back into Waiko Road. For,
to, to answer your question on drainage, there is provisions in the Waiolani Subdivision
to take the runoff, the developed residential runoff from Waiolani Pikake.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. You folks have a retention, there's a retention basin?
MR. TANAKA: Yeah, what we've, what we've, excuse me, what we've done is we've set aside
two landscaping lots that could be used as, for drainage basin purposes if, if needed.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. Okay. My, my next question, Mr. Chair -CHAIR CARROLL: Proceed.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: -- has, has to do with the, the soil basically. The, the lao, I
guess, clay in, in the area. The USDA has said that that clay has some type of, I guess,
moderate shrink potential, which could, you know, basically impact the foundation,
roads, tile walls and everything else. How are you folks addressing that, I guess, not
recommendation, but I guess assessment by the USDA with regards to the clay?
MR. TANAKA: As part of the construction plans when we get, when we get to the construction
plans it will be addressed there. If there is a, a major shrink/swell potential then, then
we do mitigative measures to make sure that, excuse me, the roads and the, you know,
the foundations don't crack.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:
you ... (inaudible) ... ?

And, and typically what type of mitigation measures do

MR. TANAKA: I would have to defer to the, the soils engineer, but typically you amend the soil
so that it, it's more suitable for the type of development that, that is being proposed on
it.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay, and you folks had, had any, I guess, comments related
to the, because the, the, that, those properties were used for a lot of agricultural
cultivation, anything for us to know about, regarding potential toxins in the soil as well?
MR. TANAKA: Yeah, we're not aware of any, you know, any toxins, but we, yeah, it was an
old pineapple field. Yes, we're, we're aware of that similar to, I believe, you know, all,
all of, all of Waiolani Mauka and Waiolani Subdivision those were originally agricultural
fields. So, excuse me, but we're not aware of any, you know, toxins in the, in the soil.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
MR. TANAKA: Thank you.
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CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any further questions? Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: I don't know if it's for Mr. Tanaka, but just to follow-up, has there
been any sort of formal assessment of the soil on the subject property to give us any
indications of, of residual chemical or things that may impact?
CHAIR CARROLL: I would ask Planning Department to comment on that, Mr. Alueta.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: The first question is was anything formal done by, by the
preceding or the current Applicant of this subject site?
CHAIR CARROLL: I didn't see anything, but Mr. Alueta.
MR. ALUET A: I'm not aware of any offhand. The project assessment report that was
conducted by the consultant was transmitted out to various agencies including
Department of Health, Environmental as well as USDA. But I'll, I'll flip through the
document to see if there's anything formalized, but not off the top of my head at this
point.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Anything further, Members?
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Mr.-CHAIR CARROLL: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: -- Mr. Chair, to, to the, to the Applicant, was there any intention of
looking at, at that, of that issue regarding, because it was formerly active agricultural
land?
MS. McLEAN: It, typically at, at the entitlement phase you wouldn't necessarily call, do what's
called a phase I environmental research. !t wi!! be done prior to the construction,
engineering and so forth, but at, at the entitlement stage it usually isn't done. So we
haven't yet. We will be with, Vuich Environmental is the, is the typical contractor we
would use.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Is that a requirement that you folks will, that you will face once
you've completed the entitlement process?
MS. McLEAN: I don't know if, if it's a requirement. It's a standard, a standard practice though.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE:
question?

Okay.

Mr. Goode, you have any additional comments to the
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MR. GOODE: Mr. Chair, David Goode here. It is a requirement of our construction financing.
So the bank will require that that work is done as we plan on doing it as we get closer to
that stage.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Mr. Kane. Anything further? Thank you. Members, we have
again two bills before us, our classification from Agricultural to Urban and, of course, our
zoning change from Agricultural District to R-1 Residential District.
There have been several things that have come up and been discussed on the floor,
and I think some Members, I myself, have an amendment when we reach the
appropriate time, but if there's no further discussion I would like to give my
recommendation, so we can begin to discuss the items that we have brought up on the
floor this morning as it pertains to these two ordinances.
The Chair will entertain a motion to recommend passage on first reading on the
proposed bill entitled "A Bill for an Ordinance to Amend State Land Use District
Classification from Agricultural to Urban for Property Situated on the East Side of the
Old Waikapu Road and the West Side of Honoapiilani Highway (Waiolani Pikake
Residential Subdivision), Waikapu, Wailuku, Maui, Hawaii".
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Second.
CHAIR CARROLL: It's been moved by Mr. Pontanilla, seconded by Mr. Kane [sic].
Discussion, Mr. Pontanilla.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chair. In regards to this subdivision, lots only, it will
provide some means as far as creating affordable housing for this community. You
know, !ike! said the last time sweat equity, you know, can provide you with a really,
really affordable unit that everybody's looking for.
CHAIR CARROLL: And that second was by Mr. Molina instead of Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: You sound too much alike.
Further discussion? Mr. Hokama.

The Chair stands corrected.

Thank you.

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Mr. Chairman, at this time you just choose to take one bill at a,
one bill, ordinance at a time?
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CHAIR CARROLL: Yes, because most of what we were going to do in here will be concerning
the Change of Zoning ordinance, and I would prefer to do these two separately.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. That's fine, then I'll wait for the, the zoning vehicle,
Chairman. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Members, any further discussion on this bill? Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Chair. On, on this bill to, to amend State Land Use
District Classification from Ag to Urban, if I'm not mistaken, brings into conformity with
the Wailuku-Kahului Community Plan. What we already have designated in this area as
single family. So this would provide consistency for us to continue the discussion. So I
will be supporting this, this request, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Mr. Kane. Further discussion? Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, just, just a general comment. While I understand
this will help bring conformance to the Community Plan, and I can be very sensitive to
the need of our local people requiring housing, and a need for some choices, it is still
my disappointment that eventually Waikapu will be engulfed, and as we heard from
those that have lived there for generations or decades, what is Waikapu Village, will not
be known as it is today.
It has always been my hope to maintain a green buffer between Wailuku town and
Waikapu. The identity of maintaining its uniqueness to me is very important. And I'm
hoping that we will find ways either through landscaping or other matters that we can try
and at least mitigate it to the best possible degree that government can offer, because I
would hate to see in my lifetime whereby Waikapu will be called Wailuku.
I think some of the uniqueness, and I think, you know, I, I believe we've talked about
this with the Planning Director. I think he had always pushed for green buffers. It made
sense to retain some type of character that can be retained.
So I just wanted it stated on the record that we have been sensitive to those concerns
as well as sensitive to the needs to provide housing, and I thank you for this opportunity,
Chairman.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Mr. Hokama. Further discussion? Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Yeah, thank you, Chair, for my second and final opportunity.
agree and, and will be very supportive of bringing to realization the idea of, of providing
some sort of distinctive separation between Wailuku and Waikapu, and I think the
community wants that, and I think it's our obligation as a body to, to work towards that in
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concert with the Planning Department and the Administration for us to accommodate
that, and also support that idea as we go into the general plan.
Specific to this project as we can see, and I want to thank the Applicant for providing the
color aerial views. This will show you that this property is practically surrounded on at
least the two sides, the Wailuku side as well as the heading out towards Maalaea side,
the south side, by existing old neighborhood, both sides.
And so this you can really call an infill project where we're, we're just following through
with what the, the original or the previous general plan along with the associated
community plan, Wailuku-Kahului saw as an appropriate place, place for continued
housing, providing continued housing development for the area, and I think this fits right
in there.
Now obviously we have some issues that have been brought up, traffic, et cetera, and
those will be discussed hopefully in the next bill that's before us, but this one, I think this
move again takes that step to provide what is, has been termed in testimony. It is a
logical step for us to take in recognizing the need to provide controlled managed growth,
and this, I think, is an ideal place for us to do so. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Mr. Kane. Further discussion? Hearing none, we have a
motion on the floor. All those in favor of the motion signify by saying aye.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed. Motion carried unanimously.
VOTE:

AYES:

Councilmembers Hokama, Kane, Molina,
Vice-Chair Pontanilla, and Chair Carroll.

Tavares,

NOES:

None.

EXC.:

Councilmembers Anderson, Johnson, and Mateo.

ABSENT:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

MOTION CARRIED
ACTION:

Recommending FIRST READING of proposed bill (District Boundary
Amendment).
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CHAIR CARROLL: The next bill we have, the Chair will entertain a motion to recommend,
recommend passage on first reading the revised proposed bill entitled "A Bill for an
Ordinance to Change Zoning from County Agricultural District to R-1 Residential District
(Conditional Zoning) for Property Situated on the East Side of the Old Waikapu Road
and the West Side of Honoapiilani Highway (Waiolani Pikake Residential Subdivision),
Waikapu, Wailuku, Maui, Hawaii", and filing of County Communication No. 02-210.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Second.
CHAIR CARROLL: It's been moved and seconded by Mr. Pontanilla, and seconded by
Mr. Molina. Discussion, Mr. Pontanilla.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: I'll defer to other Members first.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, I would hope the Committee would consider a
condition. I have friends, I have family that lives in Waikapu specifically at Wilikona
Street. I've walked that Waiko Road many times, and I can appreciate the residents
that have come forward and brought concerns about the auwai, the old pineapple
acreage above Pikake's proposed site, and including that Old Government Road
whether it was the Territorial Road or the County Road, I would agree that most people
thought it was, it belongs to the government, and, and we are part of that government.
I would agree and support the community's request not to have any additional traffic
from this subdivision be addressed onto Waiko Road, and so I am happy to support a
condition that we've heard from Police Department and Fire Department, that an
emergency gate as a secondary access for, for response is what I am willing to support,
Chairman. I am not willing to support additional increasing, increases as it relates to
Waiko Road.
CHAIR CARROLL: That's a motion for an amendment to the motion?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Well I would like the Com ... , Committee to discuss my, my
suggestion first, Chairman, because if there's no support why make, I, I won't make a
motion.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, thank you, Mr. Chairman, I can support Mr. Hokama's
proposal. Coming from a small town myself I can appreciate the comments that's been
expressed by the community members especially as it relates to West Waiko Road. It's
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been for generations a road that's been walked by many with their animals and
everything else.
So I think we need to do whatever we can to mitigate any potential traffic hazards along
that road. As we heard from the Public Works Director it is already a substandard road,
and I think having this gate that's been proposed by Mr. Hokama and also
recommended by Lieutenant Hill from the Police Department, I think this will help to
address any major hazards that could occur on there. So I will be supportive of the
proposed amendment. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Hokama, you do have some support. The Chair would be more
comfortable if you would make a motion, so we can discuss it.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Chairman, I move that a condition be placed
on the ordinance for Change in Zoning that an emergency access gate be required, and
that no lot have primary access to West Waiko Road.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Second.
CHAIR CARROLL: It's been moved by Mr. Hokama, seconded by Mr. Molina. Discussion,
Mr. Hokama. And this is an amendment to the main motion.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you, Chairman. Again, Chairman, I can tell you I've
walked that area many times in my staying with my family there. I can appreciate the
concerns of the traffic where Mr. Rosario lives. I can tell you that the auwai is part of
the integral character of that upper community there. I have been at those intersections
at Waiko and Wilikona in heavy morning, afternoon traffic. I know what it's like to get in
and out of that community.
And so I'm asking for the Members to please consider this, and there may be a time,
Chairman, when other improvements occur that maybe West Waiko Road can be
considered for additional use by the, by future developments, and we may want to
change the condition then, but at this time I for one will not support additional increasing
density on West Waiko.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR CARROLL: Further discussion? Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah, Mr. Chairman, one thing first, could we ask the Staff if
they could put that in a larger print, the stuff that they're typing in. It's a little difficult.
CHAIR CARROLL: Alright. We're doing this for the first time --
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah.
CHAIR CARROLL: -- so please be patient with us. Can we get -COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah, that would be-CHAIR CARROLL: -- there we go.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: -- thank you. There we go. As part of the discussion, I think
that we need to, if Mr. Hokama doesn't mind, include what the, what the developer was
saying to allow the three lots access to Waiko Road, but no more than those three lots,
you know, as they outlined in the, the way that the, they were setting up the, the lot
subdivision. If, if you would be amenable to having that considered. Say that no, no
more than three lots -CHAIR CARROLL: We're in discussion of a motion, and usually I would not allow the
developer to come down, but if there's no objection, I will allow the developer to answer
Mrs., Ms. Tavares's question.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah, if I, we'll get verification from that.
CHAIR CARROLL: Proceed.
MS. McLEAN: What we had proposed wouldn't have been a physical barrier. It would have
been restrictions through, through deeds and, and covenants and so forth, but we don't
object to the proposal, the installation of a gate as long as we're certain that the Fire
Department, Police Department and Public Works Departments would allow the
development as proposed with the through road, because, and the reason I bring it up is
because that could be interpreted in a way as a cul-de-sac by having that blockage, and
cul-de-sacs are only allowed to be a certain length, and only allowed to serve a certain
number of lots.
So as long as it wouldn't be viewed in that way, then we wouldn't have an issue with it.
The only thing that I want to point out, again using the aerial, is where the gate would
go, and I'm assuming it would be at the end point of the property here, so that all the
new lots created by the subdivision would go down this way, which again is fine with the
developer, but I would just also want to point out that it would mean these homes and
these homes that present, presently use West Waiko, and I know that at least one of
these families is active in the Waikapu Community Association, would not be able to
continue in that, the route that they presently use, and that's not for me to say that's
good or bad, I just wanted to make the Committee aware of that. But we have no
objection to the gate, it being a physical impediment rather than, than the restrictions
recorded against the lots as we had proposed.
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I think that the intent is to put the gate in such a way that you
can accommodate the three lots and the other people egress, ingress, but not to allow
straight on connection to Waiko Road from the rest of the subdivision. So the actual
physical placement of the gate, I think, would be left up to your, your architects or
subdivision draw, drawing people to figure out where that would be, and in conjunction
with talking with Police and Fire and Public Works, I would think. But if we can, you
know, somehow word this condition so that we don't cut off access that we were
thinking of, or that either exists now or for those three lots that were mentioned.
So does that as it's written now, can that satisfy the, the three lots and the other access
from the existing neighbors?
MS. McLEAN: For, for the gate to be placed so that only three lots are on the West Waiko side
of the gate -COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah.
MS. McLEAN: -- the gate would be somewhere in here.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Uh-huh.
MS. McLEAN: And so maybe depending on, on where the access is for these existing homes,
they may be on the West Waiko side of the gate, but, but these guys wouldn't be.
MR. FOLEY: Could, could you, excuse me for interrupting. I don't know where here is. Could
you try to identify where this gate would be? Just for the record, the Planning and
Public Works -COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Mr. Chairman, can I, since I made the motion to amend, may I
tell you where I had envisioned the gate to be?
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Hokama, please.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. I think, Chairman, it was that it would run parallel with
Old Waiko Road. It wouldn't block Old Waiko Road, because again I have no reason to
deny current property users of that road denied future access. So my thing was put the
gate parallel to Honoapiilani's Road, road length. That was my intent, and I don't know
if their, their architects and their engineers can find a way to eliminate the need for even
three lots to access West Waiko Road.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Oh, I thought you were talking something else--
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Because I know of the current residences that live there that
use the Old Waiko Road, and I'm not here to deny them their current use of that road
system.
CHAIR CARROLL: Are you through, Mr. Hokama?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR CARROLL: Wait. Are you finished, Ms. Tavares?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah, thank you for that clarification. I had thought it was
someplace else that he was talking about.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you. So speaking to the amendment, and now that we
know that the gate would run, I guess, if the proposed through road goes up and is
perpendicular, a ''T" to the Old Government Road on the mauka side, that the gate
would run at the end of that road and would block off that ingress, egress out onto the
Government Road, that's what's being proposed?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: That was my suggestion, Mr. Kane.
CHAIR CARROLL: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: So now the question becomes, and I think the Applicant asked a
very relevant question. How does that impact, because this road is gated, it's a gated
road, so there is no ingress, egress unless it's for an emergency use by authorized
personnel, how is this road going to be deemed, and is it going to comply with code with
respects to Police, Public Works, Fire, whoever with respects to a cul-de-sac? Is it
going to be considered a cul-de-sac if that road is blocked off for regular ingress, egress
to the property, and I think that's a legal question that needs to be answered.
CHAIR CARROLL: I would hope that Public Works could help us on that. Mr. Arakawa.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Again speaking to the amendment, Chair, because the proposal is
blocking the access. So ...
CHAIR CARROLL:
comment?

Yeah, I, Mr. Arakawa, you've heard the concerns.

Could you please

MR. ARAKAWA: Yes, Councilmember Kane, the Code physically limits the cul-de-sac length
to 550 feet, and in this particular instance it would exceed that amount if the gate is
placed where it's being proposed. However, it, the, the Code does allow the Director of
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Public Works the flexibility to grant a longer cul-de-sac length if there are unusual
topographic conditions that are present. I don't believe that they are present in this
particular case, so my preference would be to have the Applicant go through the
variance process, variance hearing process, and actually obtain an approval from the
BVA for the longer cul-de-sac length.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Okay. So given that response if this condition were to go through,
how long would that cul-de-sac or that road be up to the gate from the entry point at
Kama?
MR. ARAKAWA: Perhaps the Applicant can give me the, the length on that. I, I don't know.
It's longer than 550, I do know that.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: My question would be how much longer, Chair? So we're just
looking for that response.
CHAIR CARROLL: I think they're figuring it out right now. We'll give them a moment.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: And would it be considered to the end of where the gate is, or
would it be considered, because the road would have to be reconfigured to jog in where
the hammerhead is, they would actually have to jog in farther to accommodate the, the,
the lots that are located at the edge of the Old Waikapu Road on the southern side of
the property on the top portion.
CHAIR CARROLL: Applicant.
MS. McLEAN: This, the road is about 1,100 feet long, and to do the cul-de-sac length, you'd
have to start at the beginning of Kama Street, and so there are a couple of lots already
that serve off of Kama.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Exactly.
MS. McLEAN: So 550 feet comes to roughly here, roughly halfway.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Okay. Mr. Chair -CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: -- can I speak to the amendment?
CHAIR CARROLL: Proceed.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: And I, I will say for the record that I know what I'm about to say
will not sit well with the Old Waiko Road persons who are opposed to this. But we need
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to look at, in my opinion, we need to look at the safety of not only Old Waiko Road, but
we need to look at it in a collective manner of who's going to be impacted by us blocking
off this road, and not making it accessible. And I think if we do what is proposed, yes,
we would preserve and keep intact Old Waikapu Road and not having any more
additional impact that we know of, because it's a public road. We can't stop people
from going up old Waiko, West Waiko Road. It's a public road.
But by stopping it there, we then impact everybody else that's coming down that new
road and impact, provide additional impact, negative impacts to the people who are
already there down below, those people on, shucks, I'm sorry I don't have that right in
front of me ... (change tape) ... on Kama Street as well as Kawika Place and Kawika
Street, who also would use that Kama connection to ingress and egress out onto
Hookahewai down onto Pili kana and out onto the main highway.
And I think that's why with this, with this cul-de-sac issue and saying well the only way
that we can do it, the, the Director's already stated that it doesn't rise to the level of
consideration for him to make a discretionary call, because it hasn't reached at some
point to him doing that.
And for us to say, okay, this is what we're going to do, now you got to go through a
variance, we're going to ask the BVA on whether or not allowing a cul-de-sac that's
going to be over twice as long as what is legally allowed, to me it creates an obvious
concern. And I think it needs to be clear that the Police Department and the Fire
Department's preference was a through road -MR. FOLEY: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: -- not to have a fence there. They didn't object to having the
fence there, because they understand the needs with respects to safety. That there
needs to be an additional ingress, egress in the event of we need to evacuate the area,
we need to provide additional fire protection from a different access point, et cetera.
But the recommendation of the Police and Fire Department on this project was that it be
a through road, according to the information that was provided to us. And if other
Members don't think that's correct, then maybe we need to get it verified, but at this
point that's what I believe was represented as a through road.
What I also think is that the County needs to step up and we need to recognize that if
we're going to move forward and provide approvals for a project like this, then we need
to at least provide some additional improvements, and I'm not talking about
condemnation, because I believe we're able to at least provide some improvements to
Waiko Road whether it's resurfacing, whether it's providing some safety features or
calming, speed calming features on Waiko Road improvements without taking away
people's property.
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And I think that's, that can be accomplished, and I believe Mr. Foley has represented
that as well that there, there's, there's ways that we would be able to do so, and the
Planning Department has represented that. But for us to take this project and say, you
know what, we're going to put you on a cul-de-sac that's 1,150 feet long or 1,250, 1,200
feet long, and all the people that are on the top of this project that are going to get
impacted by putting it at a dead end, we're putting them in harms way.
And we're expecting a Board that is appointed to be faced with deciding whether or not
that's a safe thing to do, and give a variance on a 1,200 foot or 1,100, let's say 1,100
foot cul-de-sac is just not a safe situation. So I cannot support the amendment. I don't
think it's, I don't think it would be in the best interest with respects to safety.
And finally, Mr. Chair, I believe the Planning Commission in their very long discussions,
that's why they had to struggle, and then they talked about having the two cul-de-sac,
which now they know that the other cul-de-sac on the mauka side would have caused
even worse problems for Waiko, because that's the only way they would have gotten in
and out.
So that's why they're trying to get rid of that now. Humans have a tendency to look for
path of least resistance, and I think by looking at the project and what, in our society of
convenience and getting places, I would tend to agree with the assessment that most
people in this project, even if it was a through road, would tend to go down through
Kama and go out onto Pilikana.
I think that would be, and you may have people occasionally, not to rush to get
somewhere, or not to try and get from point A to point B, but to merely go cruising,
which many people do. I go cruise up Waiko Road just to go check it out. To go all the
way to the top and see what's going on. But for people who are trying to get from A to
B, their tendency will not be to go twice as far and backtrack in order to get to where
they're trying to go. Even if they're going Lahaina. Their tendency, even if they live on
the top, is to go straight down Kama out onto the main highway, and just go down on
Honoapiilani.
So, you know, I'm, I'm trying to look in the best interest of, of the greater community of
Waikapu, and I cannot see myself endangering and creating more adverse impacts on
people who already live there on Kama, and the other street that I named, the, the, the
dead end as well as the street that's in the existing Waiolani, for the sake of protecting
and preserving, which I think is important.
I think we can make some improvements there, and I'm willing as one Member of a nine
Member body to commit monies to make some improvements that are necessary for
Waiko. They need it anyway. Even if this wasn't on the table, we should already be
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looking at it, because we all know what the condition of Waiko is. So we should already
be doing that. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Further discussion?
MR. FOLEY: Mr. Chairman, could I just briefly comment?
CHAIR CARROLL: Proceed.
MR. FOLEY: I, I wanted to clarify that the Fire Department definitely would prefer that there
not be a gate on either of those roads, and the Planning Department very strongly
objects to the gate. We feel that this connection is, is vital for circulation in this area,
and we will not support the variance application for a longer cul-de-sac. So we will
recommend denial if such an application is submitted to the BVA.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Mr. Foley. Mr. Pontanilla.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chair. Question for the Planning Director. If a gate
was suppose ... , suppose ... , supposedly installed at a location, looking at the map I
have, at this location such that no traffic will go down Waiko Road from the new
proposed subdivision.
MR. FOLEY: Well that would also prevent people that are already using Waiko Road that live
above that gate, such as the Piltz family. Plus, you're eliminating access for eight lots
on Waiko Road. How do you plan to serve those eight lots? Off the little cul-de-sac?
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Well, the eight lots would come through this through road on, on
Kama, somewhat, what I'm saying, you know, don't restrict -MR. FOLEY: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR PONTAN!LLA: -- the existing residents out in Waikapu from utilizing Waiko
Road, but restrict the use of new residents coming into this subdivision from going down
to Waikapu, Waiko Road. So you get your through traffic, and if need be, you know, put
up the gate, and, and if the Fire Department and Police Department need to get in there
remove the gate.
MR. FOLEY: We, we will still oppose the gate, if there's a gate on either road. I mean it
makes no sense for the circulation in this area. There needs, there, there, it's
absolutely essential for, for there to be more than one way to, to get in and out of this
neighborhood not only for emergencies, but just for, for daily traffic. I mean you're
severely modifying the, the circulation opportunities in, in limiting them in a very
unnatural location. Either way, either place you put the gate, is going to be very
inconvenient.
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VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: For the new residents or existing?
MR. FOLEY: Both. Especially the new residents. You're forcing them to, to go out, you know,
at, at one, at one location only.
CHAIR CARROLL: Are you through, Mr. Pontanilla?
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Well, I, I see the existing residents just using one way only, and,
you know, I can't see the difference. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: All right. We do have a motion on the floor. Any further discussion on the
motion on the floor? Mr. Hokama, oh, I'm sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chairman, on the amendment?
CHAIR CARROLL: Yeah, on the amendment to the motion on the floor.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. So I think -CHAIR CARROLL: The motion, the motion on the floor is the amendment to the main motion.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: -- right, and that number sticks up there. It needs to be, that
three lot thing needs to be taken out, because I misunderstood where that gate was
going to be that he was talking about.
CHAIR CARROLL: All right.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: You know, Mr. Chairman, this, this issue is really a hard one
to deal with, because I recall when we were talking about the Wailuku-Kahului
Community Plan and the changes, you know, Community Plan Amendments for these
properties that were around the Waikapu area. And like Mr. Hokama, ! had wanted to
see Waikapu stay Waikapu and not be engulfed by a whole lot of development all over
the place, or next to them.
And I was trying to stay consistent with that as the Spencer Project came before us.
And initially I opposed the Spencer Project for that reason. That this was an opportunity
for us to keep some green space between the lower Waikapu and Wailuku, but it seems
that the need for affordable housing, you know, makes us outweigh some of the things
we wish we could do.
Now I know Mr. Foley was not the Director at the time that Waiolani was put in, and I
wish I had paid more attention to it at the time that it did come before us, but the original
Waiolani screwed up the whole situation there. They should not have allowed Waiolani
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to build right up to the, to the boundary of, of Waiko Road. And to me it should have
been an opportunity to either create another access road for this whole new area that
was going to start or to turn, you know, Waiko Road and that section into a parkway of
some kind, and to use the existing trees that line that as you're going up, it's on the
right-hand side.
So, you know, we, we're trying to correct the ills of, of past, or what was overlooked in
past approvals. I think that the map that Mr. Foley showed us, and where the, where
the plan is to do the old, what is that, the old Waikapu or the Old Government Road, the
yellow with the orange dots, and having that highway or that roadway go all the way out
to Kuikahi Drive, you know, so that it's parallel to Honoapiilani Highway, you know, is
excellent to improve the circulation and that.
So I had been thinking that for this particular project if we restricted their access to
Waiko Road, that circulations would or could still be improved by using the Old
Government Road as long as everybody was going right. That nobody would be
allowed to go left. That's why I thought the gate was going to be on that road going the
other direction.
So I'm kind of, you know, in a little bit of a quandary, because I do understand how we
want to improve the circulation, but at the same time, you know, I'm looking at a
community, and a very old community. I have very dear friends that live on that road
who have been calling me about the condition of the road for years, but, you know,
hopefully it'll get resurfaced one of these days. A neighborhood that's pretty tight, close
knit as we've heard, and I don't know, maybe we want to depend on the neighborly
approach and say, you know what, let's leave these roads open and see what happens.
Because to me it WOUldn't make sense for me to go up and then come down Waiko
when you could access it the other way as Mr. Kane is saying. You know, there are no
guarantees in this how people are going to act. I think one way that would discourage
people from using Waiko Road is to take the stop light out at Honoapiilani Highway and
Waiko. So let me throw that into the mix too. But that would certainly be a
discouragement for people going down there. I, I'm not sure, Mr. Chairman, but it, it
sort of looks to me like we might not have enough to, enough votes to make it happen
today.
CHAIR CARROLL: Members, it is a few minutes after 12:00. Many of us have commitments
and I realize we have a motion on the floor, an amendment to the main motion on the
floor. However, at this time the Chair intends to recess this meeting until 2:00 p.m. This
meeting is in recess until 2:00 p.m ... . (gavel) . ..

RECESS:
RECONVENE:

12:03 p.m.
2:08 p.m.
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CHAIR CARROLL: .. . (gavel) . .. Land Use Committee meeting of March 10th, 2005 is now
back in session. Members, when we recessed we had an amendment to the main
motion on the floor, and I will now call on Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, and, and thank you for that lunch recess. I think it
gave us the info to, to see if there's other alternatives or options that might, this
Committee might consider. So I'll be asking, with no objections of the Members, if we
could just table this specific motion to amend and, and move on with the other
considerations that you may wish to have entertained applicable to this zoning proposal.
But before I do so though, Chair, I will say one thing. I will not stand to have any
Director or Department trying to intimidate Councilor Committee by potential action that
they mayor may not take regarding a consideration before this body or the Council. I
will not tolerate that. Unless they're asked a specific question, when there's a motion on
the floor only the Members get to discuss the item, not the Department. And so I will
ask that the Chairs follow that parliamentary procedure.
CHAIR CARROLL: The Chair agrees. All right. So you just want to table it for this time?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: With no objections of the Members, Mr. Chairman.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR CARROLL: All right. Members, I do have, the Chair also has, would like to make an
amendment to the main motion, more of a housekeeping. The Chair would entertain a
motion to amend Exhibit B to the proposed bill to substitute M2W, LLC with M&W2, LLC
in all instances to reflect the change in ownership of the subject property.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: So moved.
VICE-CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Second.
CHAIR CARROLL: It's been moved by Mr. Molina, seconded by Mr. Pontanilla. Discussion,
Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No discussion.
CHAIR CARROLL: Members, if there's -COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: -- Ms. Tavares.

- 52-

LAND USE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
March 10, 2005

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah, I, I'm wondering why we, have we considered what the
Applicant has proposed as far as saying that it should be the Applicant shall whatever,
rather than mentioning this specific entity? Was that part of a discussion earlier or
consideration earlier that we change the name, the specific names M2W, LLC to the
Applicant?
So if that property is sold between the time that we pass this and the time that, you
know, they're ready to build something, if they sell the property then they'll have to
come back to us to change the names of, of the who the entity is that owns it. But if we
just say it's the Applicant, then it's whoever owns the property at that time, whether it's
this group or another group.
CHAIR CARROLL: The Chair has no objection to that as long as we do have that change
inside.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Can we, can we get some maybe input from Corporation
Counselor, or our Legal Staff?
CHAIR CARROLL: Yes, Mr. Moto, could you comment please?
MR. MOTO: Good afternoon, Mr. Chairman. For the record, I'll note that Mr. Giroux who was
advising you earlier this morning had to go to the Hana Advisory Committee meeting
this evening, so that's why I'm substituting for him.
Mr. Chairman, the, we, as discussed with Office of Council Services Staff on previous
occasions and on other agenda items, I think we've tried to avoid using the term
applicant as much as possible in legislation, because in some cases it's created
confusion as to who the applicant is, or, or it might, might, might be in certain
circumstances. And instead, where in the, in, in the context of conditional permits,
which this is not, we've, we've tended to identify the permit holder in the conditions.
Since this is a Change in Zoning and is a permanent land use action, I think instead of
using the term Applicant we normally would identify a particular party, or we would say
the, the, the owner or the, and or this owner's successors in interest rather than using
the term applicant.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Oh, I see.
MR. MOTO: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay.
MR. MOTO: I'm sorry if I'm, at this very moment, unable to tell you how best to reword it, but
that's ...
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CHAIR CARROLL: Any objections to the proposed wording, Mr. Moto?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Like that.
MR. MOTO: You mean as is?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes, as is.
MR. MOTO: Oh, oh -COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: A specific ...
MR. MOTO: I, I, I suppose that perhaps adding the term "its successors in interest" may be
helpful because we cannot, we don't know how long, what does that say, Wand, I can't,
I'm sorry, I can't read the name of the LLC, but you, you -COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: W, M&W2.
MR. MOTO: -- right we can't always assume that that LLC will always be in the picture.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Uh-huh.
MR. MOTO: It may. Who knows? Maybe as soon as the rezoning takes place transfer its
interest to yet another entity or person.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Oh, okay. That, that's fine, Mr. Chair. I mean I just was
wondering if it was addressed, because there always is that concern. I mean, like, I
think in the site inspection it was, you know, shared with us that I think the ownership
changed from the original application to now. So, and I see, we've seen that happen in
other applications also. So I just wanted to, to know, to have his opinion. I, I think that
what he just suggested in language now to me, it satisfies me completely.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Yeah, so I'm fine with, or its successors in interest part. Again, I
just need clarification on whether or not putting the specific entity is preferred over
having more of a general reference to the property owner, and that way we can avoid
official action having to be taken if there is a transfer in, in ownership or title.
So, again, if, if Mr. Moto is not prepared to provide us with specific language that would
be preferred to, to reach across, you know, having one entity put there and just being
more of a reference to the owner of the property and its successors.
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I can support this with the understanding that hopefully the, we can get a
communication back from Corporation Counsel in providing us with some preferred
language at some future meeting whether it's here in the Committee, or if this does pass
through to the full Council, then we can have that language submitted to us for our
consideration, Chair. I will be supporting though the amendment.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Mr. Moto, do you have anything you would like to add?
MR. MOTO: The suggestion made by Councilmember Kane is fine with refer... , referring to
the owner and its successors in interest. Unless, unless the Council for whatever
reason, I guess the only, if you had in mind that a particular, you wanted a particular
entity to make sure they carry through this conditions, then in that circumstance you
would specify that entity, but otherwise a generic reference to the owner, and by the
way I'm assuming in this case that, that LLC is the owner, but I'm not, I'm not sure.
CHAIR CARROLL: Okay. Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, just a couple points. On the wall we have M&W2,
LLC. On documentation that was shared regarding proposed considerations it's M2W,
LLC. So can you share with the Committee what is the correct limited liability
corporation that we're dealing with? Is it M2W or M&W2? Who, who are we dealing
with, Chairman?
CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. Nakata.
MS. NAKATA: Mr. Chair, there was a warranty deed transmitted by the Chair of the
Committee to the Members reflecting the change in ownership from M2W, LLC to
M&W2, LLC.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you for that, Committee Staff. Chairman, for me I've
learned through, through the years of wanting to hold the feet to the fire as best we can,
and if there's a change, ! don't have a problem having to come back to Council so that
we can ensure compliance. I think part of the problems with previous conditions of
zoning is well, Council has always had good intentions to either mitigate or, or create
solutions to some of the problems regarding specific issues before us in zoning
requests.
In my experience, time and time again, the problem is fulfillment and compliance of
those conditions of zoning, you know. Every time we've asked what happened to that
component regarding affordable housing. Ah, well, they, they still intend to build it.
Okay, and we've been waiting and, of course, we've heard the Department say we
were, we were owed what, three, four, 5,000 units. Well I think we need to put triggers
and put specific language, because for me good intention is not good enough anymore.
I would like the dates that compliance must be met with.
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So if we, even with this one, Mr. Chairman, I would say I would like a trigger to ensure
compliance, and if that trigger is before the full, first market house is sold, then so be it.
And I'm not picking on this particular Applicant, Chairman, I'm going to be very
consistent and ask this of all requests.
CHAIR CARROLL: And as it pertains to the motion on the floor, Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I'm willing to support it, and I ask that maybe the Staff come
up with some kind of compliance deadline or trigger. We're looking at num ... , your,
the, only what the motion is on, right, Mr. Chairman, which is the first one?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Number one.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Can you show us number one, please Staff? And my, and my
second question, Chairman, is are we going to look at the 20 percent for this specific
application, because while the, maybe unit count may be small to some, I think the
intent of what it is we are trying to accomplish with the Applicant, what the Department
has said regarding the percentages, and then we're trying to address the gap group of
professionals that tend to fall through when we talk about housing. I would like to see
that in the condition.
CHAIR CARROLL: All right. The motion on the floor is to, simply to substitute M2W, LLC with
M&W2, LLC, is the actual motion we have on the floor at this time to reflect the change
in ownership of the property.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: And again my apologies, but I'm looking at number one in its
entirety, Chairman. I'm happy to support your motion.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Mr. Kane.
CQUNC!LMEMBER KANE: So, Chair, just going off of your lead there, then right now on the
floor is, we're going to remove out "and its successors"; is that correct, Chair?
CHAIR CARROLL: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Okay. So maybe Staff can do that, and I have no problem with
supporting your, your amendment. And then once you're finished then maybe we can
take up the, the 20 percent proposal -CHAIR CARROLL: That would be more appropriate.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: -- with that specific so we can do that separately. Thank you,
Chair.
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CHAIR CARROLL: Any further discussion on the motion on the floor?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: No.
CHAIR CARROLL: This is a motion to amend the main motion. All those in favor signify by
saying aye.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed. Motion carried.
VOTE:

AYES:

Councilmembers Hokama, Kane, Molina,
Vice-Chair Pontanilla, and Chair Carroll.

Tavares,

NOES:

None.

EXC.:

Council members Anderson, Johnson, and Mateo.

ABSENT:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

MOTION CARRIED
ACTION:

APPROVE amendment to main motion.

CHAIR CARROLL: The floor is open, Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Yeah, Mr. Chairman, if we can consider the proposal made by the
Applicant, so that we would be in number one deleting 10 percent and adding 20
percent. And then after the final word "Concerns", that would change into a comma,
delete the period, add a comma, and if the language that is provided for us on the
March 10th , 2005 document that was provided by the Applicant can be incorporated into
the language for discussion as an amendment.
CHAIR CARROLL: Is that your motion?
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Second.
CHAIR CARROLL: It's been seconded by Ms. Tavares. Discussion, Mr. Kane.
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COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Just very briefly, Chair. I think, I, I feel that a 20 percent number
and the specific proposal breaking it up is something that's fair. It's going to provide
eight lots out of the 38 lots in the affordable bracket. It provides for a lower end of the
HUD income, median income scale as well as the hundred .. . (change tape) . .. as well
as the gap group that I think Mr. Pontanilla talked about in earlier discussions.
So I think it's a fair proposal, and I appreciate the, the Applicant making the proposal or
initiating the proposal for our, for our consideration.
CHAIR CARROLL: Further discussion?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, question please.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Can we live with this without the, the phrase, "per the
standards of the Department of Housing and Human Concerns"?
CHAIR CARROLL: I would think I would ask Mr. Moto or, Mr. Moto.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: The Applicant shall offer 20 percent of the units as affordable
housing as follows: 5 percent to families earning up to 100 percent HUD median
income, 10 percent to families earning up to 120 HUD median income, and 5 percent to
families earning up to 140 HUD median income.
MR. MOTO: Mr. Chairman, I'm, I didn't participate in the drafting of the, just so I'm, all I know
is from what I see here today. I assume that whoever came up with this original draft
probably had in mind the fact that the Department of Housing and Human Concerns has
certain criteria and reporting requirements that they use in order to deter. . . , to
determine whether some, what, well, number one, what is the median income, and
secondly, how do they measure people's income based upon that criteria.
So I, I can only assume that that's the standards that they were referencing. So I can't
say for sure since I'm not sure what they intended.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So you cannot answer my question is what you're saying?
MR. MOTO: No.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I just bring that up, Chairman, because it is my hope that
Council will, in this term, enact through ordinance a County Housing Policy. At this
point in time what, what we have on the books and what the Administration does at
times is two different things.
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I was going to suggest if Mr. Hokama would consider then
instead of saying per standards that we change the word "standards" to "guidelines".
Maybe that makes it a little, I know what he's getting at exactly. We've been yapping
about this for two terms now, so I, I know what he's getting at. But I also want to
caution that the HUD guidelines are adjusted for the local situation.
So we have to have some place in there where there's a reference either to adjusted
HUD guidelines, or Hawaii adjusted, or Maui County adjusted Hawaii guidelines. I
mean HUD guidelines or HUD income, median income somewhere in there. If not we'll
be stuck with the Federal HUD guidelines, which are higher or lower than, lower than
the Maui County standard or adjustment.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I have no, I welcome the recommendation, suggestion from
my colleague.
CHAIR CARROLL: Would that be considered a friendly amendment to the motion?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: No objection, Chairman, from me.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any objection?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: I just ask for clarity on what the friendly amendment is? I mean
there -CHAIR CARROLL: The change in the word.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: -- there's something on the floor, so ...
CHAIR CARROLL: Okay. If Ms. Tavares could read that?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah, the, the friendly amendment would be to change the
word "standard" to "guidelines" where it refers to Department of Housing and Human
Concerns.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any objection.
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COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Clar. .. , clarification, Mr. Chair, is that we're going to go HUD
guidelines or just simply just use the word guidelines? I mean I just want, there's the
guideline would be applicable towards HUD. I, I'm just looking for, to see if maybe we
should it more specific or will that suffice I guess?
CHAIR CARROLL: The Department of Housing and Humans Concerns, Concerns uses
HUD's guidelines as ...
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. No, I, I'm just asking if maybe the word, the term HUD
should be incorporated with guidelines, and necessary.
CHAIR CARROLL: I'm not sure. Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: I just need clarification.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: If I can provide clarity. Member Tavares's request is to replace or
substitute the word "standards" for "guidelines". So it would read "affordable housing
per the guidelines of the Department of Housing and Human Concerns".
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: And so Member Molina's question is should there be a HUD
reference within the guidelines, or is that already something that's within the language
of, because it goes on, it reads as follows, and it goes 100 percent HUD median
income, 10 percent to families earning up to 120 percent HUD median income. So
there seems to be reference to HUD -COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: -- so ...
CHAIR CARROLL: That's what the Chair was trying to refer to that it's already in there with
the Housing and Human Concerns after that, that we are referring to the -COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Yeah.
CHAIR CARROLL: -- the HUD ... (inaudible) ...
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COUNCILMEMBER KANE: So simply just that a replacement of the word "guidelines", which
then, because HUD is already referenced in the -COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: -- lat. .. , latter part of the, of the amendment.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Yeah.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Pontanilla.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chair. I just want to point out that when you utilize 5
percent to families earning up to 100 percent HUD, when you look at 5 percent, when
you calculate this thing out it's going to become a fraction of, thereof. So in other words
the 5 percent would represent 1.98 units.
So do we say to, to the nearest whole number, or do you want to put in whole numbers.
In other words, rather than 5 percent, two units to families earning up to 100 percent
HUD median income; and then the next one would be four units to families earning up
to 120; and two units to families earning up to 140 HUD median income?
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: It's unfortunate Ms. Lee is not here as a resource person. In the
past I believe they've rep ... , represented that the, the Department automatically rounds
up and it's made very clear that if there is a fraction that it, it is rounded up to the
nearest whole number. Again that's just -CHAIR CARROLL: That is, that is the ... (inaudible) ...
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: -- with reference to previous meetings that we've had.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I think it's in their guidelines.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Yeah, it's within their guidelines. And it also is being represented
by the Applicant as well as what they understand it to be and the rationale and their
comments. Anyway, I just wanted to ...
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VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, I bring it up because at, at one time we encountered this
problem with, with a big development where we utilized percentages, and basically
when you come down to whole numbers there's no questions.
CHAIR CARROLL: The Chair thinks it's very clear as it is, but if you -VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: But if it's in the guidelines with the Housing and Human Services
that they round out to the nearest whole number -UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: The higher whole number.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: -- or the higher whole number that, that's fine, fine with me.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chairman -CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: -- can we have Staff call Housing Division and verify that?
Then that might help us.
CHAIR CARROLL: We will try to get them down here in a few minutes.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I mean we just need the answer to that question. They don't
have to come. I mean as far as I'm concerned I don't need them.
CHAIR CARROLL: The Chair does know that we have done that before and that's the way it
has been done, and we shall make sure for this application that that is the case. Well
since we are going to be waiting for them, we already have one amendment tabled.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, I think we can move forward. If, if it is not our, to
our understanding, which is rounded up to the next whole number, we can always -CHAIR CARROLL: Come back.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: -- come back as to reconsider.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any further discussion?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: No.
CHAIR CARROLL: If there's no further discussion, we have the amendment to the main
motion on the floor. All those in favor say aye.
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COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed. Motion carried. Thank you.

VOTE:

AYES:

Councilmembers Hokama, Kane, Molina,
Vice-Chair Pontanilla, and Chair Carroll.

NOES:

None.

EXC.:

Council members Anderson, Johnson, and Mateo.

ABSENT:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

Tavares,

MOTION CARRIED
ACTION:

APPROVE amendment to main motion.

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: That's okay I, I, I think I need to, I'll touch base with the
Applicant before my recommendation. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Yeah, thank you, Chair. For the first amendment that you
proposed, Chair, that the change from M2W, LLC to M&W2, LLC, that was to be
incorporated throughout, or just on that first one? It's throughout; correct?
CHAIR CARROLL: No throughout.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Okay. So I noticed that was one of the recommendations. Is the
Chair's intention to provide consideration for the proposals made by the Applicants?
Was there any intention on the Chair's part to have those considered by you, or would
you like us to just see -CHAIR CARROLL: Well, the Chair's intent was that it is distributed to the Members, and if the
Members wish to consider any of those recommendations sent by the Applicant, now is
the time for them to bring it up on the floor.
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COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Okay. Chair, so I'll, I'll just take the, I guess I'll take a lead on this
one and just so that we can provide the, the discussion. Their third recommendation
was a deletion of a condition. Condition number three talking about the striping, and
because the striping is already on its way and being done, I don't know if there's any
comment that can be provided prior to asking for consideration via a motion, amended
motion, a motion to amend.
If Planning Department can provide us or, excuse me, Public Works Department could
provide us with comment on the third condition being deleted, and give us any type of
update regarding the striping if they're aware, although I know it's a State highway, but if
they have any comment?
CHAIR CARROLL: Could Mr. Foley or, excuse me, Public Works, Mr. Arakawa?
MR. ARAKAWA: Mr. Chairman, we actually have no comment as far as deleting their
proposed condition number three, and it's sort of related to their proposal on providing
a, the, excuse me, providing the amount of money that would be needed to, to do the
design of the traffic signal at Pilikana and Honoapiilani. So if the intent is to do the
traffic signal there, then the striping, I think, is not as important to, to carry through.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: So my question is would it, would there be any objections by the
Department if there is a consideration to delete since it seems like it's moot?
MR. ARAKAWA: We have no problems with the deletion.
CHAIR CARROLL: Are you going to make a motion, Mr. Kane?
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: I'm trying to think, think quick on my feet, Chair, on that.
CHAIR CARROLL: Well while you're thinking about that, Members, Ms. Lee has called back
from the Department of Human Concerns, and they round off, they do round off the
percentages. She has confirmed that.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Okay.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Please continue.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: The highest whole number?
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: The highest, yeah.
CHAIR CARROLL: The highest, right.
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Next highest whole number?
CHAIR CARROLL: Yes.
MR. ARAKAWA: Mr. Chairman, may I make one correction to a statement? The restriping is
actually done. So ...
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: It's done already?
MR. ARAKAWA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Okay. Mr. Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Since the striping is done already, it seems that this, this existing
Planning Commission recommendation is -COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Moot.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: -- obsolete, I guess. So I will, I will move to recommending that
we delete con ... , Planning Commission recommendation number three.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Second.
CHAIR CARROLL: It's been moved by Mr. Kane, seconded by Ms. Tavares. The floor, Mr.
Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: No further discussion. It's been represented that it's been
completed by the Department, and so I would think that there's no need for us to have
somebody do something that's already been done.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any further discussion? Hearing none, the amendment to the
main motion, a" those in favor signify by saying aye.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed. Motion carried.
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VOTE:

AYES:

Councilmembers Hokama, Kane, Molina,
Vice-Chair Pontanilla, and Chair Carroll.

Tavares,

NOES:

None.

EXC.:

Councilmembers Anderson, Johnson, and Mateo.

ABSENT:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

MOTION CARRIED
ACTION:

APPROVE amendment to main motion.

CHAIR CARROLL: Okay. Is there anybody else besides Mr. Kane? Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Yeah, Mr. Chair, and I wanted to make a note on the record that
by no means am I doing this to, I'm not here to support the Applicant in what they're
doing. All I'm doing is providing the mechanism for us, so at least put these on the table
for discussion of the body, and if the body, including myself, doesn't deem it appropriate
to change, but I'm not here representing the Applicant in any way, shape or form. So
I'm just doing it, because there was a lot of stuff requested, and I think it's in the best
interest of the body to at least ref ... , look at these items.
With that being said, Chair, on the number four one, I, I take note on the, number four
reads "That any future subdivision of the property shall be configured in such a fashion
that future house lots shall be accessed from two cul-de-sac roads, and that no through
street be constructed", that we defer this one, because it seems like we, we have a
tabled item talking about the, the other amendments.
CHAIR CARROLL: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: So that one we'll pass for now. On number five, "That should a
traffic signal be warranted in the future", it seems like that has already been warranted;
is that correct, Mr. Arakawa or Mr. Foley?
MR. ARAKAWA: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: It has been warranted. So now there's options there that provides
specifically how the Applicant would participate instead of just shall participate in the
design and construction of the traffic signal at no cost to the State of Hawaii. They're
- 66-

LAND USE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

March 10,2005

providing us with options, so I'll yield the floor if there's any Member that has a
preference, you know, after looking at either one. I don't have a problem with keeping it
the same, but there's options there to consider, and I yield the floor to other Members
for their comments.
CHAIR CARROLL:
Members, we are in discussion of the Planning Commission's
recommendation number five. Mr. Arakawa.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah, Mr. Arakawa, I think, wants to make a comment.
MR. ARAKAWA: One comment regarding that condition that the Committee may want to
consider specifying the intersection, and I assume it's at Pili kana and Honoapiilani that
we're talking about.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Chair, I, I'd also like to solicit comment from both the Public
Works Department as well as the Planning Department, their respective Directors, with
respects to the options that are being asked of us to consider for number five, and
taking note that at least, the least that we can do is provide more specifics and notate
that it's the Honoapiilani-Pilikana intersection for the light, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Arakawa.
MR. ARAKAWA: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I can give you some, some rough guidelines with
regard to an implemen ... , implementation of a, a traffic signal. One of the options the
Applicant is providing is to do the, to pay for the design of the traffic signal. And the
rough cost for the design of a signal would be somewhere in the neighborhood of about
75 to $100,000. The actual construction of the signal itself would run anywhere
between 300, $350,000, in, in that general range.
So in looking at the relative size of say this project compared to the Waiolani Mauka
Subdivision, which you had recently recommended approval on, this particular
subdivision is about one-third the size of the, the, the previous subdivision. So in terms
of the actual dollar amount of contributions it, it seems rather roughly proportional to the
amount of units and/or lots that we're talking about. And it does provide for sharing of
the cost of the actual imple ... , implementation of the signals.
So from that standpoint, you know, we like, we, I, I like that particular proposal.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: I'm just trying to get clarity. Option A is the preferred one?
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MR. ARAKAWA: From my standpoint, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Is there additional comment from Planning Department, Chair?
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Foley.
MR. FOLEY: No comment.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Okay. Thank you. Mr. Chair, I just have another question then.
Does the participation look at the two projects that, this project as well as the other one
that is participating as the sole providers of the complete financing for this light
installation? In other words, the combination of these two are going to complete, pay
100 percent of the cost?
MR. ARAKAWA: That's my understanding, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Okay. Mr. Chair, I yield just so other Members have opportunity.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Maybe for Director Arakawa please. Does the State only look
at stop light or no stop light as the only two options for, for us to consider at any time?
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Arakawa.
MR. ARAKAWA: Councilmember Hokama, gee, that's a difficult question to answer. You're, I
guess, asking me to come up with the State's rational as to why they came up with the
recommendation. I, I, I would prefer not to answer that question. I'm not certain what
their answer would be to tell you the truth.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you for being very tactful. Well I just bring it up,
Chairman, and, and colleagues that, and I had time to spend in Washington, D.C., and,
of course, all of you are aware of those very famous Dupont Circles and what not, but
also Arlington in Virginia and how they were approaching to satisfy their needs for
economic development, affordable housing, and very similar issues like us.
And I would say, you know, I mean they, they, they've come to the same conclusions
as, as I have that stop lights is very good to stop traffic. It doesn't help move traffic, and
already we've heard comments this morning from some residents that have, has a
concern that Honoapiilani Highway should be a system that helps move traffic, and
again the concern of having three potential stoplights in a very short linear area.
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And so I just bring it up if, is there other options for us to consider than just a stop light?
And if so, then I would like us to at least have this Committee be informed that, yes, you
can look at option three, which we don't talk about, but it's more expensive, ten times.
So, you know, we really don't talk about that kind of options. Or no, Maui people don't
like overpasses, so we don't talk about overpasses. You know, whatever it be, but it
just seems that it always comes to a point where, yes for stop light or no to stop light.
And I think we, we got too many smart people to think that we've just got an either-or
situation, Chairman.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Mr. Kane [sic]. Further discussion? We're discussing Land
Use condition number five. Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Yeah, thank you, Chair. You know, I, I would agree with Member
Hokama's comments, but I think what we face is via communication for the question of
them participating, State DOT has decided that it's not necessary for them to be here,
and that what their options that they put on the table for a State intersection is that it's
either or, and that's what we're faced with.
And if there is somebody that can tell me that we can change that, then I'd be very open
to having the discussion too about having a consideration for a roundabout, as an
example.
CHAIR CARROLL: I do not believe that is an option at this point.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Yeah, and so, you know, again, I'm, I'm just providing us the
opportunity to review these, this is, this looks like the last one for us. So we got
comment from, from Director Arakawa regarding a, a preference for Option A. Now,
Mr. Arakawa, just to clarify, is that option preferred over the original recommendation
from the Planning Commission, number five, the way it reads right now versus what
Option A is?
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Arakawa.
MR. ARAKAWA: Councilmember Kane, the Applicant is proposing to fund the design, which is
a very definite cost, whereas the original condition seems a bit more vague in that they,
it, it said should a traffic signal be warranted in the future, the, the Applicant M2W, LLC
shall participate in the design and construction of the traffic signal at no cost to the State
of Hawaii, but it doesn't, the original condition doesn't specify exactly what the
developer should be doing, or would be doing.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Okay. So-CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Kane.
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COUNCILMEMBER KANE: -- finally, and you know, the body may completely object to this,
but because this specific intersection is getting the participation of its construction by the
Waiolani Mauka Applicants, which is not what's before us today, but because they're
involved with this stop light, and I believe they're here, would the body have an
objection for them to making comments since right now they're looking at, they're going
to do it themselves if this project doesn't happen.
And they've stated that on the record that they're moving, and if they got to do it
themselves they're going to do it, but this question, I think, opens the door for us to get
a comment, because I think the Director's comments was that it seems to be roughly
proportionate to the sizes of the projects, and that if we consider Option A, which would
be to specifically state what their participation is going to be, and that is to, to fully fund
the design of the traffic signal, that seems to me that it's saying without saying that the
other Applicant, who's involved with the construction of that light would pay for the
complete construction of the light. And would it be appropriate to ask the Waiolani
Mauka owner to come forward and, and provide us with a comment on whether they
object to that or not, because it will help me make a deciSion, Chair. So I just, again,
that's to the body.
CHAIR CARROLL: Is there any objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR CARROLL: They're coming now.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I have an objection, but it's, the objection is that the State
requires one property owner to pay for -COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Everything.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: -- an improvement that a whole lot of other people are going
to benefit from, and that's their solution.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Here. Here.
CHAIR CARROLL: You heard Mr. Kane's question?
MR. NUNOKAWA: Yes. Scott Nunokawa for Waiolani Mauka as well as Haunani Lemn.
Thank you for hearing us. Thank you, Councilmember Kane. Let me just preface this
by saying that we, we're happy that, you know, that this is being looked as in, in a more
holistic manner. We do have some concerns with the specific language of design, you
know, one party doing a design and the other party doing construction, because the
point is well taken. There's nobody else out there at this pOint.
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You know, so it really is sort of that's the case. And I think that our, our concerns are as
much as anything logistic. We're concerned that, what would happen if one party went
and one party did not? How would those things work together? I also think that if
you're going to be involved with the design of an intersection, in fairness you should be
involved with the construction too, because quite frankly, I don't want the, you know,
somebody else designing something even with, you know, State DOT overview and
what not when there's no motivation to try to do it as efficiently as possible.
And if you step out at that pOint, if you design and you step out, we do have concerns.
Our, our, our preference would be that it be done on some sort of pro, pro rata share
just to try to alleviate that, because similarly if we didn't go for some reason, then you'd
have a traffic, traffic signal that was designed, but you really don't have any, I mean you
don't have a traffic signal. And our traffic study indicates that no matter what you're
going to need a traffic signal there if there's additional housing.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: No, I have no additional questions.
CHAIR CARROLL: Members. If not, thank you. Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Chair. I would also ask because the Applicant, and
we, we don't have a motion on the floor, and so thank you for the latitude, Chair, of
discussing this prior to making a motion. If the Applicant can come forward and just
provide maybe some additional comment to the option that they're providing for us to, to
consider, so if, without objections.
CHAIR CARROLL: Is there any objection for the Applicant to come forward?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: And, Mr. Chair-CHAIR CARROLL: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: -- so if I can pose a question then based on what information
we've gotten so far? Based on what you've heard, Ms. McLean, and thank you for
making yourself available, you, you've heard the comments of, of the other participant.
Do you have any additional comments over and above what you provided for us in
writing on your option for, for proposal?
MS. McLEAN: We felt that describing a distinct component of the traffic signal took away the
debate over pro rata share. It accomplishes the same objective, which is for us to pay
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our reasonable share versus Waiolani Mauka's reasonable share. The logistical
problems described are, are potential, but it's, it's not as if we're going to go with one
engineer and design the intersection, and then give the plans to DOT and walk away,
and say we're done and hope that it satisfies what they're going to be doing. We expect
it to be much more cooperative than that to work with one engineering firm all the way
through, and that we pay the bills through the design phase, and then they proceed
after that.
I, I can't think of better language to cover the concern. It just, it, it starts getting almost
nitpicky in, in a way. We're willing to participate. If there's a cleaner way to describe it,
that's fine. If there were a County Traffic Impact fee .. . (change tape) . . .it's been, it, it's
a, it's a State highway improvement. We could give the money to the State, but they're
not the ones who are going to be building the signal.
So it, it gets a little cumbersome in that way. I, 1wish 1had a better answer for you, but,
but our intention is to participate cooperatively to ensure that the signal is properly
designed for the traffic it will be handling, to make sure that Waiolani Mauka is satisfied,
and that State DOT is satisfied.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Chair, I have no further questions.
CHAIR CARROLL: Members, any questions for the Applicant? If not, thank you. Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: So thank you, Chair. In light of the dis. . . , in light of the
discussion it would be my personal opinion and preference that the language is
modified only. We've already amended the M&W2 portion, but I would only update the
language to state that, because we already know that the traffic signal is warranted, so
it should state that M&W, LL. .. , M&W2, LLC, it successors and assigns, shall participate
in the design and construction of, of the traffic signal at no cost to the State of Hawaii,
and then also incorporate that it's the Honoapiilani-Pilikana. And just leave it that way
and just make sure that the cooperativeness, you know, is -CHAIR CARROLL: So that is a motion?
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Yes, Chair, it is.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Second.
CHAIR CARROLL: It's been moved and seconded by Mr. Molina. Mr. Kane, discussion.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Chair. Although it's vague as far as who does what, I
think the pro rata component should be allowed to be worked out at the Department
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level and working with, or whoever is responsible, whether it's the State of Hawaii, I
think it's going to be State that allow the two entities that are involved with the
construction of the light, and let the State provide the pro rata breakdown of who does
what. And as long as we just have something there that provides that this Applicant
does participate, and I think that's fair for us to ask since they've already volunteered to
participate.
Although it's more specific, I think we leave the language as, as general as possible and
allow them to work with the State to, to work out the details. And I don't feel as an
individual it's necessary for us to impose more, anything more specific at this point.
Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Further discussion? Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: It's a really minor thing, but I thought we agreed to take out
the phrase "its successors and assigns", and just leave the M&W2, LLC as a
standalone?
MS. NAKATA: Mr. Chair, this language was already in condition five only. We did remove
the -COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Oh, okay.
MS. NAKATA: -- its successors in interest language from the other conditions.
remove it here as well if you like.

We can

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. Well, I'll do that afterwards then. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further discussion on the amendment on the floor to the main motion?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah, Mr. Chair, one more thing, one more part of the
discussion. So these two projects are going to participate in the design and the
construction of the stop, the signal?
CHAIR CARROLL: And the pro rata share will be determined -COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Right.
CHAIR CARROLL: -- by the State.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: And what happens to subsequent development that is going
to use that same intersection? I, I know Mr. Arakawa can't, can't answer for the State,
but that's some of my concerns in that it's this hodgepodge development that goes on,
and, you know, I know the Traffic Impact Fees for South and West Maui are in my
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Planning Committee right now, and I don't know if that goes over to, in, in this area.
Was Central included in this, Mr. Foley? You know, it wasn't. But, some, you know, I
guess some of that we've got to move or expedite, because we are going to see a lot of
these come up from time to time, and that would really be the solution.
It's the same like with another project that's going to be coming up in the Piihana area
where the developer is paying for a whole lot of stuff that a whole lot of other people are
going to be able to use, because it's there. So first come first bite, I mean, you know.
CHAIR CARROLL: Further discussion?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: It seems a bit unfair for, for, for our. . .for everybody actually.
And, and the people who want to do some really good projects and do good for our, you
know, do good to meet our needs, our specific needs in providing some of the gap
group housing and lots, and stuff like that are having to bear some pretty awesome
costs in order to do that, and then later on down the road something else happens.
Well anyway I'm getting off here, but I'll support the amendment.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further discussion?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman.
CHAIR CARROLL: I'm sorry, Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you. I'll be happy to support the motion on the floor.
My only comment to, which I also share my, the same concerns of all my other
colleagues that spoke is that, well on this application, though, I think we can do a lot
more, because the State, God bless their wisdom, gives the authority over this type of
District Boundary consideration. And so they gave us the authority to act on their
behalf, and if we believe, and we don't have to do what their Department is saying we
should do, which is an either or mentality, then we should do it. Or the State should say
then or not, County you will not do District Boundary changes anymore.
If it's our authority, I think we need to exercise and push that envelope and push that
line. But they don't want to do it. They gave it, they gave that authority to us for this
type of acreage. And so, you know, whether the Department of Transportation likes it or
not, I think we should do what is much more fair and equitable for our people. You
know how I feel about taking directives from the State.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Mr. Hokama. Any further discussion to the amendment on the
floor? Hearing none, all those in favor vote by, signify by saying aye.
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COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed. Motion carried.
VOTE:

AYES:

Council members Hokama, Kane, Molina,
Vice-Chair Pontanilla, and Chair Carroll.

Tavares,

NOES:

None.

EXC.:

Councilmembers Anderson, Johnson, and Mateo.

ABSENT:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

MOTION CARRIED
ACTION:

APPROVE amendment to main motion.

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I move that in condition number five we delete the phrase "its
successors and assigns,".
CHAIR CARROLL: Is that the complete motion?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes.
CHAIR CARROLL: Do I have a second?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Second.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Molina. Discussion, Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I think that's just to bring it into, you know, consistency with
the other, what we did earlier. So anyway that it's, it's there. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further discussion to the amendment on the main motion? Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Yeah, maybe we can get a comment from, I'll ask Mr. Moto to
provide from Corporation Counsel what does that, what will happen if, if this change
takes place, what would happen, provide us a scenario, is it what Member Hokama
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described that by doing this if it were to change hands out of M&W2, LLC, does that
create by doing this, by removing its successors and assigns, does it create some
trigger that they have to come back and do something? Help us understand by
removing this language what does that do or what restriction does it create?
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Moto.
MR. MOTO: Mr. Chairman, the law does not favor restraints on alienation. In other words, in,
in this country, at least, the government is not usually viewed as being authorized to
prevent people from transferring real property interests freely as they wish from one,
one person to another or to another, and from one entity to another. And knowing this
we, when, when, when as a, your Staff draft these kinds of conditions, we always
assume that there is a possibility that even though today there may be someone in front
of us who says I would like to get this land use zoning change, et cetera, et cetera, I
promise that I would do "X", "Y", and "Z". In the back of our minds it's always the
thought that there is a possibility that this person who's here today may be gone
tomorrow and replaced by somebody else. Or, or that the, that the entity, if it is an
entity, like a corporation that is before us, may go out of business.
So the question then becomes well what if that were to happen? Whom do we go after
to enforce these conditions? And so that's why we typically do have the words "and its
successors in interest", because we know that we're not able to prevent people from
transferring their interest or transferring the shares in the stock interest even. You
know, companies can change their character simply by transferring their ownership
interest even though they keep the same entity name.
So we, we, by using that language it's our way to sort of buttress our case in the event
that we have to go after somebody to say, you know what, this condition has not been
fulfilled. You are responsible, even though they may not have been the ones who
appeared before Council and said I will, I promise to do "X", "Y", "Z." There's some
future party that got, that stepped into the shoes of that owner, of that previous owner.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Okay. So now we have this amendment, we're removing that.
We're doing the opposite of what you basically reflected as we don't alienate or we
don't -MR. MOTO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: -- whatever you described there. So now say for instance XYZ,
LLC goes out of business tomorrow, as the Applicant it goes out of business or sells to
somebody else -MR. MOTO: Yes.
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COUNCILMEMBER KANE: -- what is this Council, or what is this County's recourse to assure
that this specific condition -MR. MOTO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: -- is, is done -MR. MOTO: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: -- with the removal now, with the removal of successors?
MR. MOTO: Yes, I, I understand the question. Mr. Chairman -CHAIR CARROLL: Proceed.
MR. MOTO: -- we would attempt as best as possible, our recourse, we would go to whoever,
assuming the facts you just gave, we would attempt to enforce the conditions against
anyone with an, an interest in the property, because someone will end up owning and/or
occupying the property. Now that person may as a defense when we go after them say,
oh, but wait a minute, let's read the condition. What does it say? Oh, the condition said
that this LLC should do that. I'm not that LLC, I'm somebody else.
So did you really mean that I was supposed to do that? Was, was this a condition that
was supposed, and then so we would get into this back and forth argument where we
would counter and say, well, but this condition was intended to run with the land. So
whoever owns the land or occupies the land is responsible.
So that's why the, the language about and "its successors in interest" helps our case,
our, in the event of enforcement, because it's easier for us to then say, oh, but it says
here, see, anyone who succeeds to this LLC's interest is also responsible.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Okay. Mr. Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: With no disrespect to any discussion that was held specific to this
previous, it seems to me that by excluding or taking away this piece of language on this
one as well as what we did in a prior condition, as described by Mr. Moto, seems to not
be in the best interest of the County. So I just, I'd really appreciate some discussion
from the body, and if they understand what I just heard that it would be not in our best
interest to remove this.
And I'd like to, you know, as much as I want to support it, what I heard provides a
contradiction of what I want to support, and I just need to hear from the other Members
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if they understand what was just said. If they agree with what was said, and if not, you
know, help me on this thing, because at this paint I'm not willing to support the
amendment, and actually will ask for, because I was on the prevailing side, and ask for
a reconsideration, oh, it wasn't even a, excuse me, we didn't even, we just left it out
intentionally, because we talked about it in a different line.
So maybe we want to incorporate it into condition number one as what was described
by Mr. Mota. So right now I'm not going to be supporting the, the motion. And again it's
without any, you know, with no disrespect to the Member making the motion.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Mr. Kane. Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: The Member making the motion isn't going to support it at
this point after hearing what Mr. Mota said.
CHAIR CARROLL: Are you withdrawing your motion, Ms. Tavares?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Well I will withdraw the motion, but before I do that, I was
under the impression that if the, anything changes and there's a different company they
have to come back to the Council to relook at the conditions. That's what I was
understanding when I agreed to take the other, other phrases out. And I, I, I believe
that's what Mr. Hokama understood also, because that's the point in which we want to
be able to have some control about what happens with these conditions should
properties change hands.
But based on the advice or the scenario that Mr. Mota is, is sharing with us now, I don't
want to see this come out, and I want to see it reinstated in the other ones that we took
it out of. But, you know, I'll, once again more discussion is fine, but that was not my
intention. My intention was that somehow it would come back to the Council if the, the
M&W2 were no longer the owners of the property.
CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. Tavares, you are, at this time then you're -COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Well, be ... , no before I withdraw the motion I would like to
hear from my other colleagues also.
CHAIR CARROLL: Is there any further discussion?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: You know, we could address this two other ways, Chairman,
that we've done in the past. One, of course, is to continue the way we are with
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removing that additional phrase, and add a final condition of language that will state that
all conditions shall run with the land in perpetuity unless, you know, revised by the
Council, which we've done in the past with Project District Ordinances, specifically
Lanai's Project Districts. Or like we do with some of the permits, transfer title or
whatever, needs to come back to Council.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: And put that kind of specific language in it. So, you know,
there's more than one option for the, for the body to consider and, you know, maybe
between Mr. Moto as, as the Corporation Counsel, he can help recommend the, the
appropriate legal language to take care of the Committee's concern.
MR. MOTO: Mr. Chairman, we can certainly come up with a provision that was consistent with
Mr. Hokama's first suggestion, which is adding another provision that says that the
conditions shall run with the land and shall bind any successors in interest. That's
certainly possible. And that would allow you to keep the language that you have
al ready crafted.
I will make a very brief comment on the second suggestion, which had to do with
inserting a provision that said any changes in ownership or title should, would cause the
matter, the land use matter to return to the Council or, or something to that effect. And
the, the issue with that is that because these are district boundary amendments and
zoning actions, and not permits, in other words, they're, they're considered legislative
actions, and you're, you're, you're, you're doing it pursuant to the ... Chapter 46 of the
Hawaii Revised Statutes, which grants you zoning powers.
It's considered a legislative act where you're really making your decisions based not on
who owns the property, but rather on the, the land uses that you have identified to be
compatible and in furtherance of the health general, health, safety and general welfare
of the community.
In other words, you're, in making zoning decisions, the decisions are not based on who
is applying but rather, rather what is, what the uses are that are being proposed. And
so normally in zoning legislation you don't see refer. .. , you don't see matters being tied
to changes in ownership. Instead there, it's, it's legislation that by definition is intended
to be run, to run with the land until such time as there's a rezoning.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Uh-huh. Okay.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Mr. Moto. Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chair, I can, I can support what Mr. Hokama is
suggesting as his first option to have an additional condition, and if that is going to be
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done, then I will not withdraw my motion, which is still to delete the phrase "its
successors and assigns," off of number five.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Further discussion? Hearing none, all those in favor of the
motion to amend the main motion signify by saying aye.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed. Motion carried. Thank you.
VOTE:

AYES:

Council members Hokama, Kane, Molina,
Vice-Chair Pontanilla, and Chair Carroll.

NOES:

None.

EXC.:

Councilmembers Anderson, Johnson, and Mateo.

ABSENT:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

Tavares,

MOTION CARRIED
ACTION:

APPROVE amendment to main motion.

CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Kane, and then followed by Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: So, unless Mr. Hokama wants to make that additional condition
for, for the blanket to cover the assigns, successors, et cetera.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, I am more than happy to make a motion to amend
to add in additional condition to state that all conditions in this application for Change of
Zoning shall run with the land in perpetuity.
CHAIR CARROLL: Do I hear a second?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Second.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Second.
CHAIR CARROLL: I heard lots of seconds. Mr. Pontanilla [sic] seconded.
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COUNCILMEMBER KANE: It was Mike.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Molina.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Molina did. And discussion, Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you, and I'm sorry, Mr. Molina, you have, I guess, a
generic voice. But anyway, Chairman, I, I think Corporation Counsel can, can look in
our past documents to get a consistency in, in crafting the specific language for this
amendment for an additional omnibus type of condition that will ensure compliance as
well as take care of the concerns, what happens should title change hands to another
entity or individuals. That will, I believe, satisfy the concerns of the Committee.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further discussion? Hearing none, all those in favor of the motion on
the floor to amend the main motion signify by saying aye.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed. Motion carried.

VOTE:

AYES:

Councilmembers Hokama, Kane, Molina,
Vice-Chair Pontanilla, and Chair Carroll.

Tavares,

NOES:

None.

EXC.:

Councilmembers Anderson, Johnson, and Mateo.

ABSENT:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

MOTION CARRIED
ACTION:

APPROVE amendment to main motion.

CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, I, unless there's other conditions that the
Committee would like to bring up at the appropriate time, I am more than happy to ask
for recon ... , for consideration back on that amendment we tabled, which was regarding
how to deal with West Waiko Road and increase traffic impacts.
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CHAIR CARROLL: Is there anything anybody would like to bring up before we bring this back
to the table? Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah, Mr. Chair, I'd like to go through the, the balance of the
conditions that were proposed by the Applicant on the March 10th , 2005 communication.
CHAIR CARROLL: Proceed.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Where they have, on the last page, Members, where there
was no recommendation by the Planning Commission, they are, are proposing three,
three different conditions. The first condition has to be, have to be, has to do with the
park assessment requirement. And, you know, I don't want to hammer out the
language right now, but I think maybe the Staff and, and Corporation Counsel and the
Applicant can work, work on the language. But to reo . ., to reflect what it is, the
intention is that the park assessment would be as they agreed to by letter, I don't think
it's good enough, we have to have it in a condition, at the rate that was mentioned in the
letter for the park assessment.
So it was $5,000 or something per unit less the three total whatever, and, and not have
a, a reference to the park at Waiolani Mauka. That it should just be something that
occurs with the Parks Department as they decide how that assessment is to be applied
or, you know, as, as our ordinance stands now it is up to the Director of Parks to
determine whether an assessment shall be in cash, land or an improvement to a nearby
park facility.
So it would leave, it would leave it in the hands of the Parks Department to determine
whether or not all of it will be cash, all of it will be improvement, or part, or some in land.
So we don't need to put in that, that part of it that has, that references Waiolani Mauka's
park, but what I would like to see in the condition that the condition for park assessment,
should it be cash, will be at, assessed at the 5,000 plus as stated in their letter, but just
repeat it here in what would be condition number six. And that would be my motion.
CHAIR CARROLL: Do I hear a second?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Second.
CHAIR CARROLL: Seconded by Mr. Molina. Discussion, Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chair, I, I ask that the Members read the condition six
that our Staff has put on the wall.
CHAIR CARROLL: And the amount is on the wall, $5,175.
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. Now the way it reads now that will be their
assessment. We're determining it for the Parks Department. It's going to be cash.
CHAIR CARROLL: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: If we want to allow the Parks Department to have flexibility
and allow the, this company to participate in improvements in the, in the mauka park or
any other park in this area, we need to change that. Because I would, I would put the,
another way is, is to have the, the LLC shall satisfy the cash equivalent of park
assessment, you know, should that be determined by the Parks Department or
something like that. .. 1mean but leave that amount in there.
Actually I'd like to hear from the other Members, you know, if it is their intention to
actually do the cash assessment at that amount of money, or to allow the Parks
Department to work with, with the developers on any combination of what's allowed by
law, that's cash, land or an improvement.
CHAIR CARROLL: The Parks Department, Members, has indicated to us that they would
prefer the cash, and I will leave it at that and open the floor.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I mean at this point if we make it a condition it's not going to
be up to them. So if we want to see something different, now is our time to do it.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Uh-huh. Chairman.
CHAIR CARROLL: Members?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman.
CHAIR CARROLL: Oh, I'm sorry, Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: ! wou!d, it is my preference, Chairman, to have the money go
into the Park Assessment Fund, okay, for, for a couple of reasons right now. One,
during Budget specifically it'll be done in an open meeting. Not between, a closed door
between a, the Parks Department employee and someone who wants to get something
done in a specific area. I prefer the judgment and wisdom of the Council to appropriate
the money in a responsible project in the Community Plan area. And if it's in this, you
know, recommended park that's fine with me. But I trust the Members of the Council a
lot more than I do the departments.
CHAIR CARROLL: As it is worded right now that would be the disposition of the funds.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So I will be supporting that language, Chairman.
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I have no problem with that.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further discussion?
MS. NAKATA: Mr. Chair, Staff would just point out that Deputy Corporation Counsel Giroux
did earlier indicate that this higher assessment per unit value would be acceptable if
acceptable to the Applicant, I believe. Mr. Matsui had indicated that the Applicant is
currently subject to a lower assessment value, because they've been grandfathered in
by their 2002 preliminary subdivision approval.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: However, also as noted on the October 20th , '04, communication
to then Chair Nishiki of the Planning and Land Use Committee, on page three of four,
the Applicant commits to satisfy the project's park assessment by a full cash
contribution, which is 5,175 per unit using today's fees. So that was also cited.
However, if we're going to get technical about it, which we should, because we're doing
something that's going, since we've already adopted a, a condition that's going to be
conditions that run with the land in perpetuity, we should be clear. They're committing
that dollar based on a full cash contribution.
So, again, if this body is willing to take the full cash or provide the flexibility that I think is
provided to the Parks Department, excuse me the Park's Director, to do combinations of
things, then I don't know if what they're committing to and the flexibility of the
combination of, of requirements is consistent. So I just make that pOint that what,
what's stated in their commitment and what we may want to see, and what the law says
may not be consistent.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. And again I will repeat that the Park's Department has
indicated that they would prefer to take the cash. Any further discussion? Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah, Mr. Chairman, I would fur. . further clarify number six
by reo .. , relating to the total number of units minus three, which is the formula ... that I
think they were understanding. So it was 38 minus three would be 35.
"J

CHAIR CARROLL: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: The, I have no problem if you want to bring up the Applicant
to see if that's what is acceptable to them since this has to be part of the unilateral
agreement. We might want to find out if they're -CHAIR CARROLL: If there is any objection, I will bring up the Applicant.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
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CHAIR CARROLL: If there is no objection, I will bring up the Applicant.
MS. McLEAN: We have no objection to the proposed language, and we appreciate the
clarification that it's less three units. Thanks.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further discussion on the motion to amend the main motion, which is
on the floor. .. (change tape) . ..those in favor of the motion signify by saying aye.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed. Motion carried.

VOTE:

AYES:

Council members Hokama, Kane, Molina,
Vice-Chair Pontanilla, and Chair Carroll.

Tavares,

NOES:

None.

EXC.:

Councilmembers Anderson, Johnson, and Mateo.

ABSENT:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

MOTION CARRIED
ACTION:

APPROVE amendment to main motion.

CHAIR CARROLL: Is there anything further before I bring back the tabled motion?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR CARROLL: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes, there are two other, two others that were proposed. The
second --
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CHAIR CARROLL: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER T AVARES: -- the second one on that page has to do with, that the
Applicant shall donate $10,000 each to Wailuku Elementary School, lao Intermediate,
and Baldwin High School to mitigate the project's impacts on educational facilities. And
as, as was explained the, the State Department of Education is typically requesting
contributions for projects of 50 or more lots.
So no fee was recommended for them. I, that opens another can of worms with me
regarding the State, and I would hope that at some time in some place, some venue we
actually bring the Department of Education in to explain to us what exactly their impact
fees are, and how they arrived at them, and how they are applying them.
So I, I've heard so many different stories about what the amount is, and it changes, it
seems like, you know, with the wind as far as the amount of money. And, and, you
know, I hope somebody from the Department of Education is, is hearing this, or will read
about this, but I sure would like information about what they're doing with the
assessment, because at one time I heard they were, it was zero.
I mean I don't know what's going on. Maybe the, the Department knows, but as far as
this condition, you know, I don't, if they want to do this, I don't really care if it's in as a
condition or not. And if they want to do it, they can do it as just voluntary as a, as a
donation to, to the three schools. But if it, if there's some benefit for them having it as
part of their conditions that I'm not, you know, that we're not aware of, then I, I would
appreciate hearing about why they would want this included as a condition.
CHAIR CARROLL: Is there any objection for me to bring the Applicant forward -COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR CARROLL: -- to answer the question? Applicant, if you would please come forward.
MS. McLEAN: Thank you, Mr. Chairman, it, it's something that, that we will do anyway. If you
don't feel it needs to be a condition, that's fine. We did have a similar condition as a, as
an SMA condition for a project that we're building down in Kihei, so it was a condition of
an SMA permit, which Department of Education at that time did comment on. It was
more for your security -COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Uh-huh.
MS. McLEAN: -- that you knew it would be satisfied.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I, you know, 1 really appreciate the, the, the gesture and the
actual, yes, we will commit to this. You know, some of the things that I, I get hesitant
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about is, like, okay, we put this in on a condo .. , as a condition, and then we'll tell
somebody, oh, it was voluntary, and they'll go, yeah, right. Because you made it a
condition what else could they do. So, you know, that's kind of the, I want to get away
from that kind of, of perception I guess it is. And, and so I would recommend that we
don't put it in as a condition.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any further discussion on -COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chair. Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR CARROLL: -- yes, Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: You know, I, I can support Ms. Tavares's recommendation,
but I would hope that in the Committee Report it is duly noted that the Applicant has
stepped forward, nonetheless, understanding that there, there is impacts by new
subdivisions on our infrastructure including the schools.
CHAIR CARROLL: We will make sure that that is reflected in the Committee Report.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Yeah, and, and then just one final comment. As we have
been told again, and it's been written in their response to us from the State Land Use
Commission on District Boundary consideration and the Change of Zoning, they defer to
us on what is best for the State. So if we feel again, Members, that this is something we
need to make a point of, then we should do it.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Ms. Tavares, were you going to address the last proposed
condition?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:
Planning Department?

Before we leave that one, could I ask a question of the

CHAIR CARROLL: Proceed.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes, Mr. Foley, are you aware, you're going to love this
question, are you aware of what studies were used for the Department of Education to
come up with their so-called impact fee for education?
CHAIR CARROLL: You know, I'm going to allow Mr. Foley to answer, but we are really time
constraints right now at this moment in time, so ...
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. Well I'll let him off the hook and withdraw the question.
Maybe he can think about it later.
CHAIR CARROLL: Yeah. I'm not trying to squelch it, but we are under time constraints-- 87-
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Right.
CHAIR CARROLL: -- and that could be very lengthy.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: On the last recommendation, I don't have any particular
interest in putting this in as a condition. I, I suspect that this was going to be a condition
so that it's a result of the community meetings that they had to put this in as a condition,
but I, it's for me neither here nor there.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Anything further that anyone would like to bring up before I
bring back the tabled matter? Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Thank you, Mr. Chair, just clarification on that last
proposal from the Applicant. You know, I think their intent is good that they want to give
consideration to West Waiko Road and people within the community. Is there any
problem with, for lack of a better word, discrimination, you know, buyer discrimination
might be perceived as that, because we had pro ... , projects before, I believe it dealt
with 201 G issues. But in this case being that it's not 201 G , is this any problem for the,
for the Applicant if they do, you know, state that we want to give consideration first for
30 days to people within the area? Any issues regarding buyer discrimination that could
arise?
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Foley.
MR. FOLEY: Mr. Chairman, my, my understanding is that there is, there is not a problem with
developers having priorities or setting priorities for, for purchasers unless there is
Federal or, or State money involved like 201 G projects. So in those cases we're
restricted from having priority systems for preference for purchasers, but in this case I'm
not aware of any, any problem with having this kind of a, an allot. .. , it's not really an
allotment, it's a priority.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Moto, any comment?
MR. MOTO: Mr. Chairman, I was, I was trying to recall. I know that our office has issued in
the context of 201 G applications, opinions on this, and I was trying to remember exactly
what we said. I'm going to, I, I'm going to focus on the language that was, the particular
language that's being used for this specific condition. I, I, again I did not participate in
the drafting of this, but the way I read this all it says is that consideration shall be given
to buyers. It doesn't say preference shall be given to residents. It doesn't say that only
they, only residents of West Waiko Road will be able to buy.
The way it's literally written right now is consideration shall be given to buyers,
whatever, what, whatever that means, which doesn't, so to my mind it doesn't even rise
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to the level of raising this issue of are we dealing with a situation of an unlawful
restriction of sale to people of a certain, who, who can prove certain residence
requirements.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Mr. Moto. Anything further, Mr. Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No, thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further discussion?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So, Chairman, question. So does Mr. Molina want it in the
conditions? Do, do you want it in the conditions?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No, no, no. I just wanted to, I, I just wanted clarification so
there's no, you know, foreseeable problems in the future. You know, you may have
some potential buyers out there who may say this appears to them that this could be
possibly, you know, you know, it, it is, they may say unintended discrimination, but just
to clarify, I guess, the key was the word consideration. That's the word that has
somewhat a lot of gray area, I guess, and subject to interpretation rather than using
more specific words like preference. Then I think we could run in, there could be some
problems with that, but, no, this is, this was not a proposal to put in as a condition.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: I just wanted clarification.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Mr. Molina. Does anyone want to bring up any other
amendments before I bring up the tabled item? If not, I would recognize Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, thank you. Prior to your reconvening of this
meeting this afternoon, I did have a very quick discussion with the project engineer
Mr. Tanaka. So, if, with no objections from the Members, if I may request through you,
Mr. Chairman, that Mr. Tanaka come forward. I believe that he may have some
additional information on how to address the concerns that we have shared in the
earlier portion of this meeting.
CHAIR CARROLL: If there's no objection, we have a request to bring Mr. Tanaka forward.
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COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you.
MR. TANAKA: Good afternoon, Chair Carroll, Members of the Land Use Committee.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Mr. Tanaka, thank you for agreeing to come forward. You've
heard of my concern about trying to reduce or eliminate additional impact to Wai. .. ,
West Waiko Road. The Planning Department has stated its preference of a through
street, and, you know, currently if you go up West Waiko, you get only one exit, West
Waiko. You go up Wilikona with another 150 houses, you only get one exit, Wilikona.
But that's not to say that this project should not have additional considerations. Do you
have some comment you can share with us at this point in time regarding maybe other
ways to address my concern or other Members' concerns?
MR. TANAKA: Our, our discussion after the Committee recessed for lunch was in the context
of if the, if the, the, the main problem that the community sees is that the, of, of
additional traffic on West Waiko Road, then maybe what you try to do is try to
discourage people from going onto West Waiko Road. Well not so much discouraging
them, but not encouraging them to go onto the road. One of the, the topics we had
talked about was, the County's going to require, if you had a subdivision ordinance, that
the, the lots fronting Old Waikapu Road will be improved with curbs, gutters and, oh,
excuse me, the roadways will be improved to curb, with curb, gutters and sidewalks
based on the residential standard.
Okay. It also, also the ordinance reads that there has to be a 20-foot wide pavement
from the, the end of the subdivision along, I guess that would be on the south side of the
subdivision along Old Waikapu Road to Waiko Road. One of the, the discussions that
we had was, and maybe we don't, we don't, we don't, by, by not encouraging people
meaning 'Ne don't go and widen that road to 20 feet
Maybe we leave it as, as it is existing and possibly even add speed humps or speed
bumps on the road as a traffic calming measure, therefore, you know, if, if the people
who want to, if the people who, you know, who, who want to go onto Waiko Road they
can, but it would be a lot more convenient and a, a, you know, a lot safer to drive down
Kama Street and go out through Pilikana.
Also the thought was that if two out of three people want to go towards Wailuku town at
either Waiko Road or at Pilikana, then it would make generally more sense for the,
those people to go down to Pilikana. Therefore, we felt that by, by putting the through
road in from the end of Kama Street to Old Waikapu Road, that WOUld, that may even
lessen the impact on traffic on West Waiko Road.
90

LAND USE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
March 10, 2005

The other, the other thing that we had talked about was, I believe the Council has the
authority to, to, you know, put up a gate as, as was discussed this morning. So one of
the, one of the thoughts was that, you know, we do a, we do a traffic study now, we find
out what the impact was on, you know, in, in the area on West Waiko Road, and then
we do one after the, the project is, is completed, and see with hard numbers what the
impact is on West Waiko Road is. And if it turns out that our assumptions were, were
incorrect, then, you know, the Council again, I believe, does have the authority to, to put
up a gate if they felt it would alleviate the problems on West Waiko Road.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, I am happy to reo .. , relinquish the floor and see if
other Members have a question for Mr. Tanaka.
CHAIR CARROLL: Members, any questions for Mr. Tanaka? Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Good afternoon, Mr. Tanaka. So just let
me get this straight. As of right now there's been no traffic study yet done by the
Applicant?
MR. TANAKA: No, there, a traffic study was done.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Do we have numbers as to the residents, you, you
mentioned the numbers, like two out of three going to Wailuku as an example. Do you
have figures that show, you know, do most residents, say if they want to go Kahului,
many of them use the, I guess, East Waiko then go onto Kuihelani Highway on to ... ,
towards Kahului, or do they end up going through Wailuku and down to, I guess, the
upper portions of Kahului? If I could just get some figures. And like, I, I like your
suggestion that you're making at this time.
MR. TANAKA: Thank, thank you. I'll defer that to Michele.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Can you share those stats with, with us Ms. McLean?
MS. McLEAN: Thank you. Currently traffic leaving the existing Waiolani Subdivision, the
studies were done A.M. and P.M. peak hour.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Uh-huh.
MS. McLEAN: A.M. peak hour, 75 turned left toward Wailuku, 25 turned right.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Molina.
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay.
MS. McLEAN: And at the Waiko Road intersection, cars coming out down West Waiko Road
35 turned left toward Wailuku, 20 go straight to East Waiko, and 15 turn right toward
Lahaina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay.
MS. McLEAN: That's A.M. peak hour. The suggestion Mr. Tanaka referred to would be doing
counts of Waiko Road not just peak hour at intersections, but doing a study really just
on West Waiko Road for a, a extended period of time to compare traffic there today
versus post development traffic, and to compare the differences. Rather than peak hour
the way that a traffic study is done.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. All right. Thank you for those numbers.
MS. McLEAN: You're welcome.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Anything further? Mr. Pontanilla.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Tanaka, you, you mentioned that on the Old
Waikapu Road the developer needs to do curb and gutters and road improvements on
the particular section that's being developed. As far as the portion that goes towards
Waiko Road are, are you saying that that particular section remain the same?
MR. TANAKA: That, that was one of the suggestions.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: And then from, from the end of the development on the Old
Waikapu Road speed humps would be installed from that last lot to I, I guess the
junction where Old Waikapu Road and Waiko Road meets.
MR. TANAKA: Yes, that was, that was one of the, the topics that we had discussed. So as
not to discourage people who already use the road, but not to encourage people from
the subdivision going towards Waiko Road and add into the congestion on, on West
Waiko Road. You know, making it more convenient for them to go down Kama Street
and out through Pilikana.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
MR. TANAKA: Thank you.
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CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any further discussion? If not, I will turn the floor back to
Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, I, I still would like to see how we can discourage
whether through a condition.
CHAIR CARROLL: Proceed.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Again, you know, it's interesting, yeah. We, we have, and
your Committee has earlier taken action on another abutting request that has more
units, but there's no through street. So again where is the consistency and, and
fairness in application of, of what is being requested of us now? I don't get it. But that's
why maybe I sit on this side of the tables than on the other side. I would put forward the
original condition that I had. And, you know, up or down that's fine with me, Chairman.
CHAIR CARROLL: Could you repeat that please?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: That I would propose a condition that an emergency gate be
instituted to reduce access to West Waiko Road from this subdivision.
CHAIR CARROLL: That is the motion on the floor.
Mr. Hokama? Members?

Discussion.

Any further discussion,

MS. NAKATA: Excuse me, Mr. Chair. If Staff could, could clarify is this the wording in the
current proposed condition number seven, or has the wording been revised?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: No, that, that's the condition. And again, you know, I've been
made aware that other Members had different locations for where they thought the
emergency gate would be proposed. So I'm open to, to their comments if they wish to
propose it.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Pontanilla.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chair. I, I think the location that Mr. Hokama is
talking about is providing a gate at the top of Kama Road where she intersects the Old
Waikapu Road. And the idea that I had earlier, after talking to the Fire Department, was
to put a gate at the corner of Lot No. 29. It would still provide a through, although it's
not a complete through road, but emergency vehicles could utilize the Old Waikapu
Road as a secondary road going into the proposed subdivision.
And then part of the idea is to eliminate traffic from the proposed subdivision from going
onto the Old Waikapu Road. One of the concerns, though, is that there are existing
homeowners within the area that utilizes Waiko Road as well as the Old Waikapu Road
to access H'Piilani. So my location as far as the gate was at the corner of Lot No. 29.
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CHAIR CARROLL: Are you proposing an amendment to Mr. Hokama's motion?
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Is there a second? Hearing none, Members, further discussion? Hearing
none, we have a motion on the floor. All those in favor signify by saying aye.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No.
CHAIR CARROLL: Raise of noes hands please. Note that there are four noes, two ayes.
Motion is not carried.

VOTE:

AYES:

Council member Hokama and Chair Carroll.

NOES:

Councilmembers Kane, Molina, Tavares, and Vice-Chair
Pontanilla.

EXC.:

Councilmembers Anderson, Johnson, and Mateo.

ABSENT:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

MOTION FAILED
CHAIR CARROLL: Members, we are back to the main motion as amended, Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Chair. Listening to Mr. Tanaka'S comments about
somehow getting an actual impact done, or some sort of analysis done, and then it
coming back to this body, I mean it delivered back to the body, and sent to the
appropriate Committee for discussion, seems to be something worth looking at seriously
in the form of a condition. Quite frankly, Chair, though I'm not prepared to provide
specific language for it, but the thought is, you know, it, it provokes my, my interest.
CHAIR CARROLL: I agree, and I thought it was very clear. J think everybody can understand
the intent of Mr. Tanaka's proposal, and I believe that the Applicant has worked out
some wording on that. If there's no objection, I would like to call the Applicant forward.
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COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
MS. McLEAN: Thank you, Mr. Chair. This would be assuming that the existing condition with
the two cul-de-sacs is, is taken out, and there be some sort of restriction on a through
road. But in addition to that, the Applicant or M&W2 shall conduct current baseline
traffic counts on West Waiko Road, and shall repeat the counts in blank number of
years, whatever you think is appropriate, to determine the change, if any, in traffic on
West Waiko Road due to the Waiolani Pikake project. Such counts shall be transmitted
to the Council for review and consideration.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Hokama. I mean, excuse me, Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Can we have that put down in writing please, so we can all see it
together at the same time?
MS. NAKATA: I'm sorry, could you repeat that again please?
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Or can we just, Mr. Chair, we've been going for almost two hours.
Can we take a brief recess and provide Staff and the Applicant to provide us written
language?
CHAIR CARROLL: I tell you what, we're going to have a five-minute recess. It'll be short,
because our time is constrained. Five-minute recess. '" (gavel) . ..

RECESS:

3:48 p.m.

RECONVENE:

3:54 p.m.

CHAIR CARROLL: .. . (gavel) . .. Land Use Committee meeting of March 10th , 2005, is now
back in session. Members, you see on the wall the wording. The floor is open. We
don't have a number yet.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Chairman.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Chairman, I'm sorry my eyes must be going bad. Can we have
staff read it out, out loud for everybody?
CHAIR CARROLL: Carla.
MS. NAKATA: That M&W2, LLC shall conduct current baseline traffic counts on West Waiko
Road and Old Waikapu Road, and shall repeat the counts in blank years to determine
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the change, if any, in traffic due to the Waiolani Pikake project. Such counts shall be
transmitted to the Council for review and consideration.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, my, my comments would be that I can be very
supportive of the intent of this. I think maybe we want to maybe put in besides years
percentage of build out, because you're not going to really know the full impact of what
we're trying to do until it's, those 38 lots are done, and you have all those people and
drivers utilizing the system.
So maybe we would say at 50 percent, 75, 100 percent of build out, and two years after
100 percent build out. I, I mean as, as, as a suggestion to how we might want to look at
the traffic counts and whether or not we should consider other options to take care of
the traffic concerns.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, thank you, Chair. I, I could be supportive of add ... ,
adding that language, which would add more specificity to the condition.
CHAIR CARROLL: All right. Specifically that language that Mr. Hokama stated that would be
like 100 percent at one year after, 100 percent of the build out, and would you like
before that traffic studies? That would be the final one?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: And again, I, I, this is, this is what I am assuming is going to
be, Chairman, that the Applicant or, or its representative will be sending to Council
those required reports just as we've required Castle & Cooke on Lanai to give us, I
believe, quarterly reports on the Conditions of Zoning when we passed the Manele
multi-family consideration, and that we get those updates in that type of manner.
CHAIR CARROLL: Wait until we get it printed out up there,
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I would use the term "full build out".
CHAIR CARROLL: Full build out. Is that wording satisfactory to you, Mr. Hokama?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Well it's more clear of, of, I think, what I would like to see in, in
the condition, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. Nakata, could you please read that, so all the Members will be clear?
MS. NAKATA: That M&W2, LLC shall conduct current baseline traffic counts on West Waiko
Road and Old Waikapu Road, and shall repeat the counts at 50 percent and 75 percent
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of build out, and within two years of full build out to determine the change, if any, in
traffic due to the Waiolani Pikake Project. Such counts shall be transmitted to the
Council for review and consideration.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: One last, one last question. Does it make sense for us to also
add ... and again, I need help on, on that other street that is going through Mililani, I
mean, excuse me, Waiolani -COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Kama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Kama, Wilikama [sic] -COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Pili kana.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Pilikana.
COUNCJLMEMBER HOKAMA: -- PiJikana. Thank you, I'm sorry. If, if that also, if that makes
sense also to include, so we can see exactly the routing that people are taking.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: And the Honoapiilani. Oh, okay.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you, Chairman, I relinquish the floor.
CHAIR CARROLL: Since we have gotten this far, we do not have a motion on the floor.
Would you care to make a motion, then we can have discussion?
COUNCJLMEMBER TAVARES: I'll move, Mr. Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Second.
CHAIR CARROLL: It's been moved by Ms. Tavares, seconded by Mr. Kane [sic].
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Second by Hokama.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Hokama. All right. Discussion. Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I just wanted to reiterate that this, the
reason why we're doing this is not because we're not listening to the people on West
Waiko Road, if that is what a perception of this discussion is about. It's exactly the
opposite. It's because we're very sensitive to what's occurring or what may occur on
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West Waiko, and I think this language helps us get a grasp of what a total of 19
buildings, approximately 29 and 30 buildings, and again what 38 buildings will do to
impact West Waiko Road.
Knowing the other information that we was, that we've been given with respects to what
the tendencies seem to indicate on where people will go and what path they will take to
get there, I don't know if the improvement component of the Old Waikapu Road is
incorporated into this, or if there will be further discussion to incorporate that, because it
seems like the full discussion of Mr. Tanaka's presentation to us is that if we don't want
to encourage people to drive on the road, but we don't want to discourage people. I
mean it's, so it's, we're just keeping it as is and not do the improvements, the curbs,
curbs, gutters, et cetera ... (change tape) . ..that's just for clarification. I don't see it
there.
So that's going to be something separate, so that we can fully discuss the proposal from
the Applicant, because I think a part of that component, and I'm just trying to get clarity.
If it's not part, then we can deal with that separate, but that's not a part of this; correct,
Chair?
CHAIR CARROLL: That is my understanding.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: This is specifically to the counts 50 percent build out, 75 et cetera.
CHAIR CARROLL: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Okay. Okay.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further discussion to the motion?
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Yeah, so -CHAIR CARROLL: Oh, I'm sorry, Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: -- no, and thank, and thank you, Chair. So I, I will be supporting
this, because I think this provides us with, I guess a stethoscope, if you will, to provide
the pulse of what is occurring, and that way we can adequately respond. And this
doesn't prevent people on West Waiko Road from letting us know. If I don't hear
anything, that's either because they're real pissed off, or nothing bad is happening as a
result of this. And I'll figure that out, but I'm hoping that we will get feedback.
CHAIR CARROLL: I'm sure we will.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Because, you know, we did get a petition of how many people
were very concerned about this. And so, you know, I think, I think this is something that
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takes the right step in recognizing the long-term logical consideration at least of
circulation throughout Waikapu and dealing with the shortcomings of past
developments, which was the Waio ... , what happened with Waiolani, and how it was
disconnected. And so now we're just trying to make something right, or at least try to
better it, and I think this is a step in that direction. So thank you, Chair.
MS. NAKATA: Excuse me, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further discussion to the -MS. NAKATA: Could Staff please get clarification on whether the motion is to add this
condition, or to replace this condition, or to replace condition four with this new condition
please?
CHAIR CARROLL: All right. Members, any further discussion?
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Replace.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Replace.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Replace.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Replace.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Did we vote on number four before? Okay. Replace.
CHAIR CARROLL: All right. We have a motion on the floor to amend the main motion. Any
further discussion?
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: And, and just point of clarification. As, as I was walking through
these I said that this one we would defer on until we deal with what we're talking about
right now.
CHAIR CARROLL: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: So there was no action taken on that one. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Anything further? Hearing none, all those in favor of the
motion to amend the main motion signify by saying aye.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed. Motion carried.
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VOTE:

AYES:

Council members Hokama, Kane, Molina,
Vice-Chair Pontanilla, and Chair Carroll.

Tavares,

NOES:

None.

EXC.:

Council members Anderson, Johnson, and Mateo.

ABSENT:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

APPROVE amendment to main motion.

CHAIR CARROLL: Members, we are back to the main motion as amended. Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Chair. I just bring up that point, and maybe we can
get assistance from the Applicant since they did present it in their, with this particular
item regarding doing the counts on the road, and I think the other component. And
maybe if Mr. Tanaka or, or Ms. McLean can provide us some reiteration on not requiring
improvements to the Old Waikapu Road.
CHAIR CARROLL: If there's no objection, I'd like bring the Applicant down.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR CARROLL: If the Applicant could please come down? Mr. Tanaka and Ms. McLean.
Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: No, if, if the, Mr. Tanaka just restate this portion since we voted,
we dealt with one portion, with the count part, but the other component was
discouraging new traffic from going down West Waiko as a result of not doing particular
improvements to the Old Waikapu Road. Can you clearly state what the proposal was,
if there was one, or if I've misunderstood?
MR. TANAKA: In, in the discussions earlier we had felt that in order to not encourage traffic to
go from the subdivision onto West Waiko Road that possibly we would not widen the
pavement from the south corner, I think it's adjacent to Lot 25 in, in the subdivision map,
from the south corner to Waiko Road. South corner of the subdivision, excuse me, to
Waiko Road. And, and possibly adding speed bumps or speed humps.
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And again, you know, people who want to use the road, the, the long time people who
want, might want to use that road who live there now, we're not denying them that, but
we're certainly making it more convenient and easier to get to Honoapiilani Highway
through a subdivision road, namely Kama and Pilikana.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: So is it my understanding, Mr. Tanaka, that at this point the
requirement will still stand regarding improvement in front of what the map is connected
to the color pictures? That south point of Lot 25 to the north point of Lot 26, there will
be improvements there?
MR. TANAKA: By ordinance in a, in a residentially zoned subdivision we're proposing a 6-foot
wide roadway widening, excuse me, right-of-way widening dedication along with curb,
gutter and sidewalk improvements.
And those are required by the residential
subdivision ordinance.
So we're proposing to, to install that fronting the, fronting, along the frontage of the
subdivision on Old Waikapu Road, but, but minimize the improvements from the south
tip of Lot 25 to Wai. .. , to West Waiko Road.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Was there, and help me understand, Mr. Tanaka, prior to this
discussion was the intent, or excuse me, was the requirement that you folks improve it
all the way to Waiko, to West Waiko?
MR. TANAKA: Oh, okay, sorry. To, to clarify the, the requirement is, the requirement from
Department of Public Works is to widen the pavement from the south tip of Lot 25, or
where we're ending the curb, gutter, and sidewalk improvements to West Waiko Road.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: And you're suggesting that you folks be weighed from doing that
in order to not encourage.
MR. TANAKA: And if, and if the Council felt that it was appropriate, we'd install speed bumps
or speed humps as a traffic calming measure. And, you know, as not so much a
deterrent but again, making it, kind of nudging the people to go through the subdivision
road, namely Kama and Pili kane, Pili kana.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Pilikana.
MR. TANAKA: Excuse me.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Okay. I yield the floor, Chair, if there's any other questions.
CHAIR CARROLL: Start with Mr. Molina followed by Mr. Pontanilla, followed by Ms. Tavares.
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, thank you, Chairman, just following up with the, the
usage of Pilikana and Kama versus the Old Waikapu and Waiko. So if you're a resident
there and, you know, we live in a very hustle and bustle type of life. If you want to get to
Kahului in a more expedient manner it would be, make much more sense to go and use
Kama and Pilikana versus Old Waikapu and, and West Waiko with all the proposed
traffic calming devices that you're talking about? Is that correct?
MR. TANAKA: Yes. Yes, and typically even if you wanted to go through to Kahului via East
Waiko Road and Kuihelani Highway, we still feel that it's a better, you know, better
alternative to go down Kama, get onto Pili kana, make the right at Honoapiilani Highway,
and then, you know, make the left into East Waiko, if you decided that you wanted to go
to Kahului, you know, in that fashion.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Pontanilla.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Yeah, I think I asked you the question before our,
our break in regards to the road improvements fronting, those lots fronting Old Waikapu
Road, and I thought I heard you that we're gonna do the curb and gutter, plus a road,
road improvement from Lot 25, I guess, the extreme south, to Lot 28, which is the north
side, and that speed humps would be placed from the south side, south corner of Lot 25
towards the intersection of Waiko Road and Old, Old Wai. .. , the Old Waikapu Road.
MR. TANAKA: Okay. I'm, I'm -VICE-CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Just-MR. TANAKA: -- I'm not sure what -VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: -- for my clarification actually.
MR. TANAKA: -- okay.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, that the speed humps would be installed from the Old
Waikapu Road on the south side of Lot 25, towards the inter. .. , intersection of Waiko
Road and the Old Waikapu Road only?
MR. TANAKA: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: One, one more question. What, what is the length between that
one particular area?
MR. TANAKA: Just by proportion the length is approximately 600 feet.
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VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Six hundred feet.
MR. TANAKA: Approximately.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Thank you. Did you say that in your original or in your
application at it stands now that you would have to provide those improvements for Old
Waikapu Road all the way to Waiko Road -MR. TANAKA: The comment -COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: -- or just the part that fronts your property?
MR. TANAKA: -- oh, okay. The, the comment, we, we have preliminary subdivision approval
as was stated earlier back in 2002, and part of the requirements in the preliminary
subdivision approval was to widen the pavement at Old Waikapu Road from the south
corner of Lot 25 to West Waiko Road.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: So if we adopt whatever we're looking at now, then all you
would be doing in that section is putting the speed humps?
MR. TANAKA: If the Council preferred that, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Would you be able to take what might be the balance of the
money you might have spent for those improvements to do speed humps on Waiko
Road itself, East Waiko Road, West Waiko Road?
MR. TANAKA: West Waiko Road.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I'm sorry, West Waiko Road?
MR. GOODE: Mr. Chair and Councilwoman Tavares, Dave Goode. That's a County road.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Uh-huh.
MR. GOODE: So that would be up to the County, I guess, to decide. Also the residents
generally have to sign a petition in favor of such things. There may be an existing
petition already, because there are speed humps on a portion of West Waiko Road
already. There may be an existing petition that's waiting for the County. We're
amenable to it.
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay.
MR. GOODE: But also keep in mind that, you know, part of our 20 percent that we looked at
for doing the affordables based on some known economics. We now have some
unknown economics in the project. So I'd rather keep the unknowns to a minimum.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: That's why I asked if it, the balance of what you might have
spent for that section that now you, if we approve this you WOUldn't have to improve
other than put speed humps on it. I'm not asking for additional. I'm just asking for the,
what balance you might already have or would have incurred as an expense to improve
it all the way to Waiko Road?
MR. GOODE: Yeah, we're amenable to it.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay.
MR. GOODE: It's just the mechanics.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, thank you, Chairman. I, I know the po ... , I think, I don't
see the police and fire here, but I know whenever the issues of speed humps come, are
brought up, I'm sure they have something to say. Because if you recall, I think it was
last term we put, I guess it was, a speed table on Makawao Avenue because of traffic
concerns. If I could ask the Applicant, may, maybe Mr. Goode as the former Public
Works Director, what kind of costs are we looking at with your proposal to put speed
humps on Old Waikapu Road and possibly Waiko Road, and how many?
MR. GOODE: Well, if there's 600 feet of Old Waikapu Road, you could probably do three. So
I think there is a, a minimum spacing requirement. I'm not sure on West Waiko, maybe
a couple, two, three more. And the cost per would probably be in the 5 to $8,000 range,
because you need striping and signage as well. We would be spending more money on
the speed humps than we, or maybe equivalent to the, the road widening that we
wouldn't have to do. So, I mean, it's paying for a tonnage of asphalt essentially.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Would you be amenable to putting the signage as well for the
speed humps or is that included?
MR. GOODE: I think we're required to put the signage and the striping.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay.
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MR. GOODE: Otherwise you've created a situation where you're exposed to liability.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Mr. -COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: -- I'm sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: The reason that I asked that was because I've been getting
calls from some residents along the road that don't have the speed humps, and they've
got a speeding problem there now and there's no, nobody's in the place yet. So I can
just see when there is other additional housing built that that will be, you know,
exacerbating the situation.
So if we can kind of head it off a little bit by putting some stuff, speed tables or whatever
in there on West Waiko Road, you know, in, in conjunction with the, with the
development that would help, especially those residents in the area where there are not
speed humps now. So I don't where the, if they have requested or if they've got the
signatures. We'd have to ask Mr. Arakawa, but that's probably another topic for another
time.
CHAIR CARROLL: I would prefer to stay away from that right now.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Members, we have had quite a bit of discussion over here.
anyone that wishes to add or make a motion or...

Is there

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Would we need to put a condition in that would relieve them
of the responsibility to do the improvements all the way to West Waiko Road?
CHAIR CARROLL: I believe that would be appropriate.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. Then I would suggest that we put in a condition that
would state that the road widening improvements be from the south point of Lot 25 to
the north point of Lot 28 only.
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Second.
CHAIR CARROLL: All right Everyone, the Applicant, if there's no objection, would like to
make comment
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
MS. McLEAN: Rather than using lot numbers since those may -COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Oh, change. Okay.
MS. McLEAN: -- change during the subdivision process, just -COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Oh, of the property. Okay.
MS. McLEAN: -- the property, the frontage of the property only.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Certainly.
MS. McLEAN: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: The frontage of the property on Old Waikapu Road is a good
enough reference on that That's fine.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: There was a second? You seconded?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: The boundary -- I'm sorry, it's the western boundary of the
subject subdivision.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: It's the north and south boundary.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: North and south boundary of the, of the subdivision.
MS. NAKATA: I'm sorry what would the replacement language be?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: So the ... road widening improvements on Old Waikapu Road
on the north, south and north boundary of the project, southern most .. no, yeah, that
sounds good, northern and southern boundaries. Or just saying fronting, the project
fronting Old Waikapu Road. We can fix up the language later. I think we know what the
intent, what the intent is. I think it's -CHAIR CARROLL: I think we know the intent
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: --our brains are burning over here.
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CHAIR CARROLL: If there's no objection, if this was adequate for the Members, if they will
allow me and the Staff to tweak the wording to make it appropriate.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR CARROLL: We, we definitely know the intent. Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Yeah, and just to be clear on the intent. It is the intent to take
what they're not going to be doing subject to the preliminary subdivision approval and
substitute that for participating in speed calming along West Waiko.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: And is that something that should be either incorporated here or
made as a separate condition, just so we're clear?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Probably a separate condition I would ...
CHAIR CARROLL: I had, I would prefer that. That is why I didn't bring in the speed humps at
this time, as a separate condition.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Okay.
CHAIR CARROLL: All right. Members, any further disc... , discussion? Do we have a motion
on the floor?
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes.
CHAIR CARROLL: All right. It's getting late.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I moved. Mr. Hokama seconded.
CHAIR CARROLL: Pardon?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I made the motion. Mr. Hokama seconded.
CHAIR CARROLL: Okay. We have a motion to amend the main motion on the floor. Any
further discussion on this? Hearing none, all those in favor of the motion signify by
saying aye.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
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CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed. Motion carried.
VOTE:

AYES:

Council members Hokama, Kane, Molina,
Vice-Chair Pontanilla, and Chair Carroll.

Tavares,

NOES:

None.

EXC.:

Council members Anderson, Johnson, and Mateo.

ABSENT:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

MOTION CARRIED
ACTION:

APPROVE amendment to main motion.

CHAIR CARROLL: All right. Now addressing the speed humps. Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Mr. Chair, if we can get comment from Mr. Arakawa, Director of
Public Works. And my, my question to him as, as the discussion was going on I walked
over and asked him, because I believe earlier it was represented that this is a collector
road, West Waiko is a collector road.
And so what is the policy as far as speed humps, or are we looking at speed tables as a
preference, or do we want to be even more general and talk about speed calming
measures, somehow incorporating the Waikapu Community Association into that
discussion so that we can get feedback from them, and kind of encourage a cooperative
effort between our Department, the Community Association, as well as the Applicant in
this case in trying to resolve some of the West Waiko issues?
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Arakawa, you heard the question?
MR. ARAKAWA: Councilmember Kane, you're correct in that we classified the West Waiko as
a collector road. It's a substandard collector road, however, and, but generally on
collector roads we would put in speed tables as a traffic calming, but if the Committee
wants to consider that, you can make the language more general such as, you know,
speed tables or other appropriate traffic calming devices. That, that's something to
consider.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Okay. I'll yield, Chair, unless the Members are ready to ...
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CHAIR CARROLL: Is there anything you would like to add to the language that is on the
screen right now under six?
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Would you like that in the form of a motion, Chair?
CHAIR CARROLL: I would appreciate a motion.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Second.
CHAIR CARROLL: It's been moved and seconded by, I'm sorry, Ms. Tavares. Discussion,
Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: If somehow we can make sure that the intent, whether it's noted
in the Committee Report or somewhere, if it needs to be in the condition, and if the body
is, concurs with this thought that we somehow make sure that the three entities
participate, because we don't expect, like I said it earlier, Chair, West Waiko needs
improvements even without any development discussion, it needs improvements. And
not to say improvements that involve condemnation of land, so you make it wider, so it
justifies. Right now we need to get immediate improvements on the road.
So we need to understand, I'll try to be as quick as possible, Members, because I know
time is of the essence. We know that the road is bust up. We know that from
Mr. Arakawa's earlier comments that Water Department has finished with the line in
there. What line is that? Is that, what Department is that happening through?
MR. ARAKAWA: No. It, it's a private entity that's putting in the water line.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Okay. So has that been completed? Are they doing anything to,
to make the road back to where it originally was?
MR. ARAKAWA: They should be patching the trench, the trench areas that they, they, on
which they damaged the road. So they should be repairing the sections that were
impacted by the construction.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Okay. So I think based on Mr. Goode's comments about being
amenable to participating in some traffic calming, I don't know how more specific we
need to get since we don't have something specific that we tell them they got to do,
which if there's a problem we need to put it on the table now since we have the motion
on the floor.
Anyway, Mr. Chair, I'm just trying to get the intent forward, and if we can get assistance
with making language that is acceptable to the Applicant as well as the intent of getting
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the Community Association, whose concern is very obvious on West Waiko's impact so
that we can get some participation, or what we can do to slow things down over there
since the major concern is traffic and, and speeding.
CHAIR CARROLL: And we will make sure this is reflected in the Committee Report.
MS. NAKATA: Mr. Chair, could Staff get clarification on whether this is specific to West Waiko
Road or. ..
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

And Old Waikapu Road.

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: And Old Waikapu Road.
CHAIR CARROLL: And right, the two.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Oh, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Yeah, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Two.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: And if we need points from the border of the subject property to
running south and east.
CHAIR CARROLL: Subject property running south to east. ... AII right. You want it running
south to east?
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: If the body feels it's necessary to be specific or, or to be clear on
where it starts and where it ends as far as their obligation, It's just we've got a shall
word in there.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: I don't know what the, the will of the body is. I yield.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Pont..., oh, okay, Mr. Pontanilla.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Previously Mr. Goode had indicated that we
probably have a petition that's already being circulated on Waik... , for Waiko, Waiko
Road. I just want comments from the Public Works Director if we did receive anything,
and when is the speed humps scheduled for, if there is a schedule for Waiko Road?
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CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Arakawa.
MR. ARAKAWA: Councilmember Pontanilla, I'm sorry. I, I would have to go back and go
check our files on that. I, I'm not familiar with the application, any application. There,
there may have been one, but I, I'm not familiar with it at this point.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: All right. Members, we have a motion on the floor.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: That is number six up there. Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Sorry, one final point. Is a collector road considered for speed
humps? In other words if you're on a collector road, and they bring in an application, do
you folks kick it back because it's a collector road, and say, no, collector roads don't
qualify? In other words, what are the stipulations of having speed humps on your road?
MR. ARAKAWA: Yeah, generally speed humps are, are installed on local roads. So in this
particular case it's a collector road. I, I, I would be surprised if there was a speed hump
application on this, on this particular stretch of West Waiko.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Further discussion? Hearing none, we have a motion on the floor to
amend the main motion. All those in favor of the motion signify by saying aye.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed. Motion carried.
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VOTE:

AYES:

Council members Hokama, Kane, Molina,
Vice-Chair Pontanilla, and Chair Carroll.

Tavares,

NOES:

None.

EXC.:

Councilmembers Anderson, Johnson, and Mateo.

ABSENT:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

MOTION CARRIED
ACTION:

APPROVE amendment to main motion.

CHAIR CARROLL: We are now back to the main motion as amended. Further discussion?
Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, on the main motion as amended?
CHAIR CARROLL: Yes-COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: -- that is where we are now.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, I, I'll be happy to support your recommendation as
amended. I will inform you, Mr. Chairman, and the Members of this Committee that
prior to first reading I am anticipating to put forth an amendment regarding triggers on
the build out of those lots -COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: -- and that, and when I say a trigger, regarding the
construction of homes on those lots. I would not like to see these lots be part of a
speculatory environment that continually just raises the value of the land, and does not
produce a house on the property for someone that needs to live in it.
So I will, I just wanted to be up-front with the Members of this, your Committee,
Mr. Chairman, that I mean, I will be putting forth an amendment that would require
construction of a home on the lot within a reasonable time period. Thank you.
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Chairman, and again one, one last comment, unless, of course, it's already part of the
CC&Rs that the Applicant will require a buyer to abide by.
CHAIR CARROLL: Would you want the Applicant to respond to that, Mr. Hokama?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Not at this time, Chairman. I've already informed them of my
intent, and I will be working with the Applicant to, to pro ... , make that proposal at the
appropriate time.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any further discussion before we vote on the main motion as
amended? Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Chair, and I'll, I'll try to be brief. This by no means is a
simple application. Obviously there is, you know, a very significant concern in the
existing community about this proposed development. And I'm hoping, I'm hoping that
the action that we've taken is taking the steps to provide some level, if any, level of
comfort that, that what we're trying to do is provide homes for people in an area that has
been designated in the Community Plan with many, many discussions over a long
period of time that how appropriate this place is, and I believe we're moving in that
direction to, to bring that to fruition and provide for managed and develop. . .,
development and growth in this area.
It is an infill area as I stated in one of the amendments. It does seem to be a suitable
place to have development, and hopefully the steps that we've taken via amendments
on this main motion as amended will take steps to alleviate some of the concerns that
are, are within the community. And I offer my, whatever assistance I can provide to the
community in helping to make sure that this particular situation does not become
something that is ... unacceptable to the, to the growth of Waikapu town. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further discussion before we ... Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, thank you, Chairman. I will be supporting the measure
on the floor. I think the Applicant has made some interesting proposals that I think will
help .. . (change tape) .. .the residents have especially when it comes to the traffic
situation. I believe the traffic studies upon 50 percent and 75 percent and 100 percent
of full build out will help. At least it will help us as a Council to monitor the situation and
respond to any concerns from the community.
And I want to thank the Applicant for making that offer for increasing the number of
affordables for this project. So I would hope that other applicants could maybe follow
this example that's being set here today. And we maybe see a changing of the tide and
traditions, I guess, that we've been accustomed to from the past that things will move
forward in a more positive manner as we look at development throughout all, all areas
of our County, Mr. Chairman. Thank you.
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CHAIR CARROLL: Any further discussion before we have the vote? Hearing none, we have
the motion on the floor as amended. All those in favor please signify by saying aye.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed. Motion carried unanimously. Thank you.
VOTE:

AYES:

Councilmembers Hokama, Kane, Molina,
Vice-Chair Pontanilla, and Chair Carroll.

Tavares,

NOES:

None.

EXC.:

Council members Anderson, Johnson, and Mateo.

ABSENT:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

MOTION CARRIED
ACTION:

ITEM NO.3:

Recommending FIRST READING of revised proposed bill (Change in
Zoning), RECORDATION of unilateral agreement, and FILING of
communication.

COMMUNITY PLAN AMENDMENT AND CHANGE IN ZONING FOR
WAIOLANI
MAUKA
RESIDENTIAL
SUBDIVISION
(WAIKAPU)
(C.C. Nos. 04-295 and 05-31)

CHAIR CARROLL: Members, I know it is very late, but we have LU Item 3. I would
appreciate, I think this, we can do this rather quickly. I would hope that we can get
through this before we adjourn, because this is our last Land Use meeting that we have
scheduled. Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Happy to remain to address LU No.3, Chairman.
CHAIR CARROLL: And I will be deferring the last item. I apologize to the Applicants, but we
have simply run out of time. All right. Members, Land Use Item 3, Community Plan
Amendment, Change of Zoning. Subsequent to the March 2nd, 2005, Committee
Meeting on this item, it was brought to my attention that the application by Waikapu 28
Investment, LLC was deemed filed and complete for purposes of Ordinance No.3 ... ,
3166, on March 8, 2004, four days after the ordinance became effective.
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The proposed Community Plan Amendment bill cites Chapter 2.80A, Maui County
Code, as a provision by which the amendment would occur. The Chair has requested
the Department of Corporation Counsel provide an opinion, which Chapter 2.80A or
Chapter 2.80B of the Maui County Code applies to this application. And it is the Chair's
intent later to entertain a motion to refer this subject to, matter to the Planning
Committee.
In order to allow that discussion and any resulting revisions to the proposed Community
Plan Amendment bill occur, the Chair would entertain a motion to reconsider the
previous motion to pass on first reading the proposed bill to amend the Community
Plan, to pass on first reading the proposed bill to conditionally Change Zoning as
amended and to file County Communication No. 04-295.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: So move, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: It's been moved -COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I'm sorry, were you finished?
CHAIR CARROLL: Just that the maker of the motion, the maker, the maker of the motion has
to indicate that she did support this.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I, I did support it in the previous vote, and I am asking for
reconsideration. I move to reconsider.
CHAIR CARROLL: And do I have a second?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Second.
CHAIR CARROLL: And you also have supported the motion the last time -COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yes.
CHAIR CARROLL: -- for the record. All right. Members, we have on the floor -COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: This is the motion to reconsider, this is on the floor right now;
yeah?
CHAIR CARROLL: Yeah, this is the motion to reconsider.

- 115 -

LAND USE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

March 10, 2005

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Okay. So we're in discussion of that?
CHAIR CARROLL: Right, discussion now. Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:
introductory remarks.

Yeah, no discussion.

I think you stated it earlier in your

CHAIR CARROLL: No further discussion. All those in favor of the motion signify by saying
aye.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed. Motion carried. Thank you, Members.
VOTE:

AYES:

Council members Hokama, Kane, Molina,
Vice-Chair Pontanilla, and Chair Carroll.

Tavares,

NOES:

None.

EXC.:

Councilmembers Anderson, Johnson, and Mateo.

ABSENT:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

MOTION CARRIED
ACTION:

APPROVE reconsideration of FIRST READING of revised proposed
bills, RECORDATION of unilateral agreement, and FILING of
communication.

CHAIR CARROLL: I would like to direct your attention to the revised proposed bills
transmitted by the Department of Corporation Counsel on March 9th , 2005, and I am
going to ask... Iet's see, first of all, before I proceed any further, I need to open public
testimony. I am now going to open public testimony on LU-3. Is there anyone who
wishes to give testimony on this item? Seeing none, if there's no objections, the Chair
will close testimony.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. All right. We have this before us, and the reasons, I think I'll
refer to --
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COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Corporation Counsel.
CHAIR CARROLL: -- Mr. Moto, because it was a decision of Corporation Counsel to make
comment before I say anything. And we also have Ms. Nakata.
MR. MOTO: Mr. Chairman, thank you for the introduction. Our office working with your
Committee Staff, Mr. Chairman, has revised the bill to delete the reference to, the bill
used to say pursuant to Chapter 2.80A in a number of places, and, and in some of the
paragraphs. And, and that reference has been dropped and instead references are now
made to Section 8-8.6 of the revised Charter, and that section relates to adoption of
General Plan and other land use ordinances.
As the Chair discussed in, in your opening comments, it was brought to our attention
that this particular application was filed and deemed complete on, as of March 8, 2005,
which is a date four days after Bill 86, which is Ordinance 3166, took effect. Did I say -COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Bill 84.
MR. MOTO: Bill 84, okay.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: You said 86.
MR. MOTO: I, did I say, okay. I'm sorry, I, Bill 84, yes, thank you. And so a question arose as
to, gee, how, how do we apply the, the grandfather provisions that were in Bill 84, and
what law applies to this type of application?
Just to summarize again, Bill, Bill 84 did three main things. Number one, it repealed
Chapter 2.80A, which was the, the old law regarding General Plan and Community
Plans. Second, it adopted a new Chapter 2.80B, which is the new version of that
ordinance regarding General Plan and Community Plans. And third, it incorporated a
grandfather provision, which provision I discussed briefly with Members of the Council
at your meeting relating to the Maui Preparatory Academy.
And that grandfather provision said this ordinance shall take effect upon its approval.
This ordinance shall not be applicable to applications filed and complete prior to the
effective date, prior to the effective date of this ordinance.
So, because this application was filed and deemed complete after the effective date of
this ordinance, it does not literally fall within this grandfather provision. So, therefore, on
the one hand one would think that this ordinance does apply, 31, Ordinance No. 3166.
So the follow-up question was, okay, if, if it's not grandfathered in under Section 4 of
Ordinance No. 3166, then does that mean that it's subject to the new law 2.80B,
because after all 2.80A was repealed. And when we took a look at new Chapter 2.80B,

- 117

LAND USE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
March 10, 2005

and in particular 2.80B.110, which is the section dealing with non-decennial
amendments to Community Plans proposed by a person.
Our reading of this section in its, in its context and in particular of Subsection A of that
Section 110, gives us the strong impression that those provisions in 110 were intended
to apply to amendments that arose after the new Community Plans were adopted under
2.80B. And that's certainly, that's very clear in Subsection A of 110, which talks about
non-decennial amendments to any Community Plan enact. . " and this is the key
language, enacted pursuant to Section 2.80B.090.
So that particular subsection makes it clear that it's really talking about amendments to
Community Plans adopted under the new process, the new, the new Community Plans
that are envisioned to be processed in the future. Now there were, in our discussions,
Mr. Chairman, amongst ourselves, there basically arose two possible ways of
interpreting this situation.
One alternative was to say, well, maybe, maybe while it's definitely true that certain
parts of Ordinance 3166, Bill 84 don't apply, because it's very clear, perhaps we could
read this ordinance to say that other portions do apply, like, for example, the
requirement that there be a public hearing, which is found in Subsection D of Section
110. Or that the, the one-year time limit on Council action that's found in Subsection C
of Section 110.
However, upon reflection and considering, and after reviewing the minutes of the, of the
Council, et cetera, we thought that that was not the best interpretation. That really one,
one looks at the context of the, of the section in, in its totality that it would not be, would
not be the best interpretation to sort of pick and choose which, which provisions applied,
and which ones did not.
Rather we reached the conclusion that this is, this basically is a situation where there
was a slip between cup, cup and lip, that there basically is a category on, on an
inadvertent, unintentional category of, of pending cases that don't clearly fall either
under 2.80A or 2.80B. They don't fall under 2.80A, because they don't come under the
grandfather provision of Section 4 of Ordinance 3166, but they don't seem to fall under
2.80B either, because 2.80B gives the strong indication, especially in certain
subsections that it was meant to apply once the new community plans were to, to take
effect.
Does this mean that Council cannot pass Community Plan amendments in the
meantime, the, the pending amendments, including the one that's before you today?
The answer is, no. The Council can certainly go ahead and adopt these amendments,
because basically what we conclude is that even though through this oversight,
inadvertence if, if you may call it, neither 2.80A or 2.80B seem to apply.
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We would default to whatever Charter provisions do apply. And the Charter provision,
the Charter doesn't say a whole lot about Community Plan amendments. In fact, it says
very little, but it does say that Community Plans are part of the General Plan. And in
Section 8-8.6 it very clearly authorizes the County to adopt revisions to the General
Plan by ordinances.
And this is why we have suggested and worked with your Staff to revise the bill to
simply cite to that section of the Charter that says that revisions to the General Plan can
be adopted by the County by ordinance.
Now this leaves open the question of how, how to address this, this gap, this slip that
has occurred and has been discovered. And our recommendation or suggestion is
perhaps the Council, perhaps through another agenda item, and, can take up the
possibility of legislation to address and clarify and correct this situation, take another
look at Bill 84, and its, and how it, it's supposed to apply or was intended to apply to
pending Community Plan amendment applications.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any discussion before the Chair gives his recommendation? I
think it's very clear. It was just very unfortunate that we did not have this information at
the beginning when we first considered and passed these ordinances. And now the
Chair apologizes for the inconvenience. Any more discussion before I make my
recommendation?
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Recommendation, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. I'll entertain a motion to, I'm going to do these bills separately,
incidentally. The Chair will entertain a motion to recommend passage on first reading
the revised proposed bill entitled "A Bill for an Ordinance to Amend the Wailuku-Kahului
Community Plan and Land Use Map from Public/Quasi-Public to Single-Family for
Property Situated at Wai. .. , Waikapu, Maui, Hawaii".
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: So moved.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Second.
CHAIR CARROLL: It's been moved by Mr. Kane, and seconded by Mr. Pontanilla.
Discussion, Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: No further discussion, Chair. I think Mr. Moto made it very clear
what, what, they, the purpose of this amendment is.
CHAIR CARROLL: Further discussion? Hearing none, all those in favor of the motion please
signify by saying aye.
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COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed. Motion carried unanimously.
VOTE:

AYES:

Councilmembers Hokama, Kane, Molina,
Vice-Chair Pontanilla, and Chair Carroll.

Tavares,

NOES:

None.

EXC.:

Councilmembers Anderson, Johnson, and Mateo.

ABSENT:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

MOTION CARRIED
ACTION:

Recommending FIRST READING
(Community Plan Amendment).

of

revised

proposed

bill

CHAIR CARROLL: The Chair will now entertain a motion to recommend passage on first
reading the revised proposed bill entitled "A Bill for an Ordinance to Change Zoning
from Agricultural District to R-2 Residential District (Conditional Zoning) for Property
Situated at Waikapu, Maui, Hawaii", and filing of Communication Nos. 04-295 and
05-31.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: So moved.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Second.
CHAIR CARROLL: It's been moved and, by Mr. Kane, seconded by Mr. Pontanilla.
Discussion, Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: My, my comments concur with my previous comments that the,
the intention is to remove the references and incorporate the ref ... , or remove the
references of 2.80A and incorporate the references to Charter, Charter item. Thank
you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Yes. Further discussion?
MS. NAKATA: Excuse me, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Hearing-- 120 -
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MS. NAKATA: Excuse me, Mr. Chair. The 2.80A references pertain only to the Community
Plan Amendment bill.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Oh, forgive me.
CHAIR CARROLL: Further discussion? Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Then can we ask for a clarification on the revised bill what the
amendment or what the revision is? Maybe Staff can provide us with that information.
MS. NAKATA: The revisions to the Change in Zoning bill incorporate the suggested revisions
to the proposed conditions at the March 2nd meeting.
CHAIR CARROLL: Yes, I'm sorry I didn't include that. It does consider, the proposed bill does
have the March 9, 2005, and it does incorporate the revisions to the Change of Zoning
conditions recommended for approval at the Committee's March 2nd meeting. I'm sorry
I neglected that. If there's no objection, that is part of the motion.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Mr. Chair, then if we can provide maybe little bit more information
and just to provide the clarity of what, what's on the, I was going off of your comments,
Chair, quite frankly.
CHAIR CARROLL: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: And so if you could please, I'd appreciate some comment as to
the Change in Zoning revision.
CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. Nakata.
MS. NAKATA: Mr. Chair, the revisions from the March 2nd meeting were memorialized in a
th
memorandum from the Chair of this Committee to Corporation Counsel dated March 8 ,
which is in the Members' binders. Specifically, there were two revisions to conditions.
The first was to revise condition number five in Exhibit 2, to read "that the affordable
lots/housing units shall be intermixed with the market priced lots/housing units." The
second revision was to delete condition number six in Exhibit 2.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE:
problem.

Thank you, Chair.

I have no further discussion.

I have no

CHAIR CARROLL: Any further discussion? Hearing none, all those in favor of the motion
please signify by saying aye.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
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CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed. Motion carried.
VOTE:

AYES:

Councilmembers Hokama, Kane, Molina,
Vice-Chair Pontanilla, and Chair Carroll.

Tavares,

NOES:

None.

EXC.:

Councilmembers Anderson, Johnson, and Mateo.

ABSENT:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

MOTION CARRIED
ACTION:

Recommending FIRST READING of revised proposed bill (Change in
Zoning); RECORDATION of unilateral agreement; RECEIPT of written
agreement between State Department of Education and Waikapu 28
Investment, LLC relative to fair share contributions; and FILING of
communications.

CHAIR CARROLL: Members, I have only one more business, piece of business over here.
The Chair would like to entertain a motion to refer the subject matter regarding the
applicability of Chapter 2.80A and Chapter 2.80B of the Maui County Code to
non-decennial community plan amendments to the Planning Committee.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: No objections. Oh, so moved. Second.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Oh, I'm sorry.
CHAIR CARROLL: Who made the motion?
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Ms. Tavares.
CHAIR CARROLL:
Ms. Tavares.

Ms. Tavares moved, and seconded by, by Mr. Kane.

Discussion,

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: No discussion except that we are already planning to take it
up. We've had several meetings both with Corp. Counsel and the Department of
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Planning to dis ... , discuss the very issues that Mr. Moto so eloquently referenced in his
introduction of the proposal.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: That's it.
CHAIR CARROLL: That is ...
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: No further discussion.
CHAIR CARROLL: All those in favor of the motion, the Chair is getting tired too. All those in
favor of the motion on the floor please signify by saying aye.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed. Motion carried.

VOTE:

AYES:

Council members Hokama, Kane, Molina,
Vice-Chair Pontanilla, and Chair Carroll.

Tavares,

NOES:

None.

EXC.:

Councilmembers Anderson, Johnson, and Mateo.

ABSENT:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

MOTION CARRIED
ACTION:

Recommending REFERRAL of the subject matter regarding
applicability of Chapters 2.80A and 2.80B, Maui County Code, to
non-decennial community plan amendments, to the Planning
Committee.

CHAIR CARROLL: Members, we've had a full agenda -COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Mr. Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Can we have a short recess please?
CHAIR CARROLL: -- short recess ... .(gavel) . ..
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RECESS:

4:53 p.m.

RECONVENE:

4:54 p.m.

CHAIR CARROLL: .. .(gavel) . .. This Land Use Committee Meeting of March 10th , 2005, is
now back in session. Members, I would like to thank you. We have five Members
including myself that are able to stay, and we are going to try to address the next Land
Use item.
ITEM NO. 27:

CONDITIONAL PERMIT FOR "O.W. RANCH LLC" VACATION RENTAL
(KULA) (C.C. No. 04-208)

CHAIR CARROLL: Land Use Item 27, O.W. Ranch, LLC. The application, O.W Ranch, LLC is
seeking a grant of a two-year Conditional Permit to operate a 12-bedroom transit
vacation rental and conduct special events on approximately 9 acres situated at Kula,
Maui, Hawaii, TMK: (2) 2-2-001 :017. This subject property is a site of the former Silver
Cloud Ranch at 1373 Thompson Road.
The Committee is in receipt of a revised proposed bill entit. .. , entitled "A Bill for an
Ordinance Granting O.W. Ranch LLC a Conditional Permit to Operate a
Twelve-Bedroom Transient Vacation Rental and Conduct Special Events within the
County Agricultural District for Property Situated at Kula, Maui, Hawaii".
The revised proposed bill incorporates non-substantial and technical revisions and was
transmitted by the Department of Corporation Counsel on March 3rd , 2005. The
Applicant should be commended. They had, when they had bought it over there, they
have not operated or attempted to operate in any way. I will now open the floor to, well,
let's see, if the Applicant could come forward and give a five-minute presentation.
MR. FRAMPTON: Thank you, Council Members. Rory Frampton representing O.W. Ranch,
LLC, and I'd like to thank the Committee Members for sticking around and trying to, to
hear us. I'll try to be as brief as possible. Before I start, I just wanted to mention that
the, Mike Gerry who operated Silver Cloud Ranch is here if there are any questions,
and the counsel, our counsel is here, Tom Welch as well.
Prior to becoming Silver Cloud Ranch this was the property or the, the main
headquarters for Thompson Ranch, which was a, at one time a 500 acre horse ranch in
Upcountry.
The Thompson Ranch had historically conducted overnight
accommodations for kids over the summer. They had horseback riding trails, and had
community gatherings at their place.
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So when the owners, when, when the Thompson's had to sell the property,
Mrs. Thompson had passed away and the kids had to sell, because of inheritance
taxes, the new owners converted it to a bed and breakfast operations, and which
essentially did the same type of activities that historically had occurred on the property.
The Silver Cloud Ranch operators did go before the Planning Commission and got a
Special Use Permit back in 1995. I believe at the time it was only the second approved
bed and breakfast operation in the Agricultural District on the Island. It was also
determined at one pOint that they were in the Interim District, so they had to go through
the Board of Variances and Appeals to get a use variance, which also, that matter also
had to come before the County Council, and the County Council approved the
resolution of that use back in, I believe it was 1998.
So this project has been reviewed and was previously approved by the Planning
Commission, the BVA, and this Body, and the basis for the approvals were, again, the
history of similar uses having occurred on the property, the fact that it was an adaptive
reuse of legally constructed structures. The proposal did not involve constructing new
structures to be used for transient accommodations. And lastly, it was determined to be
compatible with the Upcountry character.
We were recently before the Maui Planning Commission, and we received an approval
of a Special Use Permit on a unanimous vote, and now we're here before you for the
Conditional Permit for essentially the same operations that have occurred for, on the
property for over ten years.
The new owners do plan on undertaking some renovations to the structures, and they
will be as part of those improvements complying with the current Fire Code
requirements. They also will be upgrading the wastewater system to comply with
current Department of Health Rules for wastewater system construction, and that about
sums it up. Although I, I, I would want to request, because this pro ... , this property has
been legally approved in the past and had received time extensions in the past from the
Planning Commission, and I might add the reason why we're here today is that those
approvals did lapse without being renewed.
But because they had gone through those approvals in the past, we would request a
longer period of operation. Right now the recommendation is two years. We would, we
are requesting, I mean optimally we'd like it for ten, but whatever this body determines,
if anything longer than two we'd appreciate. So that concludes my presentation. I'm
available for any questions.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you very much. I'd like now to call on Robyn Loudermilk from the
Planning Department.
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MR. LOUDERMILK: Good afternoon, Chair and Committee Members. I just would like to
briefly add on what occurred at the public hearing held on May 25, 2004. We did not
have any written or oral testimony, but the discussion amongst the Commissioners was
positive, they, basically because of several things. First of all, when the previous
permits lapsed, the special use operations ceased, and secondly, once the new owner
had determined that they wanted to resume the existing uses, that they came back
before the, the Commission.
There, there was good, there'll be no changes. Basically there's three structures on the
property for a total of 12 rooms. There'll be a resident manager on site. In addition to
transient accommodations, the property is a well known as a place to conduct retreats
and popular for weddings and reunions and, and smaller gatherings. These events are
limited to approximately 100 people and not held past 9:00 p.m. The Department has
not received any complaints previously.
Discussion did focus on whether there would be any need for policing regarding the
events, however, you know, due to that there have been no complains filed with the
Department as well as the previous operators did a, did a very, very good job of
operating within those parameters, the Commission felt there was no need to further
restrict any activities. The vote for the Special Use Permit was unanimous 7-0, and the
vote for the recommendation of the approval of the Conditional Permit was also
unanimous, seven in favor and zero in opposition.
Rory did note that our recommendation to the Commission, and thus to you, is for two
years, and they are recommending a longer period of time. The Department would still
prefer two years just as a opportunity to review the compliance of the conditions
imposed, but that is, should the Council wish to extend that, that is the prerogative of, of
the Council. I'd like to note that there is a total of 16 conditions.
Conditions one through six, excuse me, regarding the Special Use Permit we have a
total of 16 conditions. The recommend, we usually incorporate those conditions as part
of the, the fermit application. So I believe it's, those specific conditions would be part of
a June 23 r , 2004, approval letter that is part of your packet.
As Rory mentioned the major issues regarding the operations had to do with the traffic
on Thompson Road, which was addressed to the Commissioners' satisfaction, as well
as fire protection. The Department of Fire and Public Safety has a variety of
alternatives to just pure water, well, to just using water purely from the hydrants for fire
suppression such as sprinkling the, the buildings and other onsite fire suppression
measures. That as long as these renovations meet the, the Fire Codes they, they have
no problems with the existing use of the buildings.
And that's, that's basically it. Those were the, the two major outstanding issues that
were addressed to the satisfaction of the, of the Commission. And again the Planning
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Commission recommends approval subject to our conditions put on and that concludes
Staff Report.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. I'm now going to open public testimony. Public testimony is
now open.
MS. NAKATA: Mr. Chair, there is no one who has signed up to testify on this item.
CHAIR CARROLL: Is there anyone in the gallery that wishes to give public testimony at this
time? Hearing none, if there's no objection, I will close public testimony .. .(change
tape) . ..
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR CARROLL: '" testimony is now closed. Before I turn the time over to the Members,
does Corporation Counsel have any comment they'd like to make at this time?
MR. MOTO: No, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Mr. Chairman, and thank you for the consideration of
this item on this afternoon's agenda. My question to Ms. Loudermilk, and the line of
questioning is, of course, with ref. .. , with consideration of the request for a longer time
period. You stated in your remarks that there were no complaints. Does that include
the entire history of the property, the subject property? I know we have and, and just
give me a moment. ..
MS. LOUDERMILK: The history of the property in relation to the use permits and so forth, yes,
that includes -COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Great.
MS. LOUDERMILK: -- yes.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Okay. So there's been no complaints.
MS. LOUDERMILK: No complaints on file.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: The, the lapse of the previous permits. Can you give us an idea
of what the lapses, why the lapse? Was it for something that was viewed as an
inappropriate thing, or, or. ..
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MS. LOUDERMILK: Yeah, my understanding is that with the change in owner there was sort,
sort of a reassessment, and that -COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Okay. So-MS. LOUDERMILK: -- but, yeah, so, yeah. There was a reassessment. So once the
purchase was complete, and, and then the operations that were approved by the
Conditional Permit and Special Use Permits also lapsed.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: -- okay. So at the lapse they ceased to function. They weren't
running an illegal operation.
MS. LOUDERMILK: Not that I'm aware of.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: They are not running something right now.
MS. LOUDERMILK: No.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Okay.
MS. LOUDERMILK: No.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: So basically everything seems to be in order in line with, with the
history of this particular application.
MS. LOUDERMILK: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Is there a, is there something here regarding revoking of the
special use or condition use if there's non-compliance with any of the conditions?
MS. LOUDERMILK: Yes, I, regarding the, all I have before me at this point in time is the, is
the, is the Special Use Permit, and, okay... Mr. Moto has provided me with the copy of
the proposed ordinance, and on condition, there's two, two mechanisms available for
the revocation of the permit, permits. Proposed condition number five, is that O.W.
Ranch shall develop the property in substantial compliance with the representations
made to the Maui County Council in obtaining the Conditional Permit. Failure to do, to
so develop the property may result in the revocation of the Conditional Permit.
So, one, this is attached to the Conditional Permit, and as discussed earlier this also
required a Land Use Commission Special Use Permit. Proposed condition number one
of this ordinance indicates that full compliance with all the requirements of the Land Use
Commission Special Use Permit including conditions.
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We do have a mechanism in place under the Special Use Permit provisions in the,
identifying compliance before operations begin. I'd like to refer to, I believe it's in your
packet, a June 23, 2004 letter from the Planning Department to the Applicant regarding
the Special Use Permit. Then under standard condition number five, that we will be
requiring a compliance report, and it shall be submitted to the Department for review
and approval prior to the opening of the facility.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Okay. Thank you for that, that response. My question now, and
my final question, Chair, is based on, it seems that you have opportunities via the
special use as well as the conditional use, the Conditional Use Ordinance as well as the
Special Use Permit that you have opportunities for enforcement of compliance issues.
And so would there be objections from the Planning Department for us to consider an
extended period longer than two years?
MS. LOUDERMILK: No objections.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Okay. Okay. Chair, I'm finished with my questions.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Mr. Molina followed by Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Chairman, my question relates to just one
issue, the traffic issue in a letter, memo dated January 29, 2004, from then Director
Coloma-Agaran to Planning Director Foley. Basically in the letter it says traffic from the
proposed use including weddings and group meetings of 100 people are a concern.
Thompson Road is an extremely narrow rural road with many curves, changes in
elevation, and blind spots, and we would recommend that use and density as it would
affect vehicular trips not exceed current levels.
And I also looked in the Applicant's application, page 15, under roadways and traffic.
And it does concur that there is, there would be a slight increase in traffic from guest
and employees. So I guess for Director Arakawa, do you concur also with this letter, I
guess, from then Director Coloma-Agaran, and has the Applicant since that, this letter
was sent indicated to you that traffic will still be at a minimum, or even with the slight
increase it should not pose a problem?
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Arakawa.
MR. ARAKAWA: Councilmember Molina, yeah, I would basically concur with that same letter.
I mean, I, I basically signed the letter on behalf of the former Director.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: So, so have you met with the Applicant since that letter, and
are you, have your concerns been alleviated?
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MR. ARAKAWA: I have not met with the Applicant. I guess our main concern is that we did
want to limit the amount of traffic to what was previously existing on the site. I mean
that was basic, our basic comment, because the road is already so, so narrow as it is.
The fact that the events had been taking place and that we had not received complaints
about use of the road, I think is a positive.
And so the application basically as it stands is, is, is fine with us as long as they're not
going to be basically increasing the, the usage on that road, the frequency, the amount
of people, you know, we, we, we don't have any problems with it.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:
I note that the, what the Planning Commission's
recommendation was to keep it to 100 people not beyond 9:00 p.m., and that there be,
and incorporate traffic control measures on site to minimize the impacts. So I believe
this was discussed pretty much in the Planning Commission, and that's why they put
this ...
MS. LOUDERMILK: That is correct.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. Thank you. My question actually was on your
summary of the application in the brief description on, I guess it's page two -MS. LOUDERMILK: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: -- the property pre ... , previously operated as the Silver
Cloud Guest Ranch, and it has a use permit 94-whatever. So does that mean that it
was 1994 that they first got a permit to operate? That was the date of this first permit?
Does the 94 stand for the year 1994?
MS. LOUDERMILK: Yes, '94 does stand for the year, yes -COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay.
MS. LOUDERMILK: -- the permit was issued.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Gosh, I think I asked the question really roundabout? You
know, what's the 94 stand for?
MS. LOUDERMILK: Yes. Yes. Yes. Yes.

- 130-

LAND USE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
March 10, 2005

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I do remember this project coming to the Council before, and
I think that I'm inclined to look at a longer period of time. I think two years is much too
short. Is there a time that you folks can look at compliance with the conditions after they
already opened? Can you inspect at will, or require a compliance report at any time?
MS. LOUDERMILK: We can, we can do that. The property will be subject, will continue to be
subject to inspections by the various, by the various departments. And we are also, I
believe also recommending, well, well, had recommended and was accepted by the, the
Planning Commission that. .. what we can also do, which I thought we did, but we didn't
is that when they come in for their time extension -COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Uh-huh.
MS. LOUDERMILK: -- to also do, provide us with an, an updated compliance report.
because things might have changed to ...

It,

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Uh-huh.
MS. LOUDERMILK: So we have those, we have those opportunities, yes, to ...
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Because, what I'm thinking of, what I'm thinking of is a
ten-year period, five years at a time, five-year permit with an option to extend an
additional five years without Council approval provided no complaints have been lodged
against this application or against this use. You know, quite realistically, you know,
looking at two years, we barely, we can't do things in two years. I mean that's, that's
why we're having these long meetings.
So I, I think that something that has already been before us that has not had complaints,
people testifying about it, you know, we know the Thompson Ranch property from way
back when, the Silver Cloud has been, I think, a very good neighbor, has been a
wonderful asset to our Upcountry area, so I would promote it in that sense. We're not
going to throwaway all of the control -MS. LOUDERMILK: No.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: -- but say, for example, if the Members will agree that we go
for a five-year period with an option to extend five years based on the recommendation
of, of just the Planning Department. Can we do that, or does it always have to go to the
Planning Commission?
MS. LOUDERMILK: The, the Special Use Permit will have to go before the Planning
Commission, and the Special Use Permit, however, the Special Use Permit the, the
language that we use, we, we tie it in with the Conditional Permit, so that they lapse at
the same time. We do, we did propose that it be valid for two years based upon our
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original proposal, or until the termination date established by the Conditional Permit,
whichever is later. You-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: And we do the Conditional Permit.
MS. LOUDERMILK: And, and, and the Council does the Conditional Permit, and should they
wish to fashion the Conditional Permit that should no complaints be filed with the
County regarding the proposed projects, if the Council is willing to delegate the
additional five year, after the first five years everything is fine, if the Council would like to
delegate the additional five years to, to the Planning Commission based upon whatever
criteria, I, I think that's something that can be incorporated in, into the ordinance.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Thank, thank you for that information, because first of all I
think two years is much too short for this -MS. LOUDERMILK: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: -- for, for a new operation, fine -MS. LOUDERMILK: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: -- but this has been around -MS. LOUDERMILK: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: -- and been operating and, yeah, we know things. I mean we
forget -MS. LOUDERMILK: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: -- to, you know, register our cars sometimes.
MS. LOUDERMILK: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: So we can understand how those things can happen. I would
like to hear from my fellow, my colleagues about this five and five scenario, or if they're
more comfortable with a five year. Right now, I think the five years is a heck of a lot
better than a two year at this point in time.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Pontanilla followed by Mr. Kane.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chair. I would agree with Councilmember Tavares in
regards to a five-year Conditional Permit. My only question to the Department is that,
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how often would you inspect a facility like this? You know, not only yourselves, but, like,
say Public Works?
MS. LOUDERMILK: I cannot speak for Public Works.
realistically would be if a complaint is received.

For the Planning Department

VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Only when a complaint is received?
MS. LOUDERMILK: Only when a complaint is received at this point in time, yeah, and I cannot
speak for Public Works.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Public Works.
MR. ARAKAWA: If the Applicant comes forward with a building permit, of course, we'd have
the final inspection, but if there are no other building improvements, then it's basically
the same. It would be by, by complaints.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: I have no objections to amending the second condition from two
years to five years from the effective date of this ordinance. And I think it would, I think
it wouldn't hurt for us to after five years, you know, have it come before us for the, that
future body, whoever is there, since I know technically I wouldn't be here in five years,
but for it to come back. I don't see a problem with them, having them do that as well.
CHAIR CARROLL: If someone could starting taking the wording to amend the motion on the
floor.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Yeah, so Mr. Chair, again all it is, is changing the -COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: The number.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: -- the number. Instead of just deleting the, the word "two" and the
parentheses, the number "2" in the parentheses, and replacing it with the word "five"
and the number "5" in the parentheses, and I think that's ...
CHAIR CARROLL: I'd prefer to do it by motion though after --
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COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Yeah, so I, I'm, I'm just letting you know that-CHAIR CARROLL: Oh.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: -- that's what, what I would be supportive of.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I second.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: And the, the motion, and my motion is to approve and incorporate
it in the recommendation, Chair, since I, I don't know if you had a, we didn't provide you
with the opportunity to make a recommendation, so that's what I was going to wait for.
CHAIR CARROLL: Yeah, after I make my recommendation.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Yeah, so I would ask, Chair, that before I, I yield the floor, I would
ask that you would consider incorporating into your recommendation, so that we don't
have to go through an amendment process of providing us with a five-year time frame.
Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Okay.
MS. NAKATA: Excuse me, Mr. Chair. Councilmember Kane, would that also include the
subsequent proviso for an extension beyond the five-year period?
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: No, it's just for five years -COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Uh-huh, just five only.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: -- and then it says, and, and yeah, and beyond this five-year
period maybe granted; correct.
MS. NAKATA: Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Okay. Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, thank you, Chairman. I'm happy to support the will of the
body. I believe two years is too short, and taking into consideration the history of the,
the property area, and the previous landowners as well, and, and upon hearing the
historical analysis from Member Tavares, who's very well knowledgeable of the area, I
can totally support this proposal to amend. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Further discussion?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: No, your recommendation, Chair.
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CHAIR CARROLL: Hearing none, the Chair will entertain a motion to recommend passage on
first reading of the revised proposed bill entitled "A Bill for an Ordinance Granting O.W.
Ranch LLC a Conditional Permit to Operate a Twelve-Bedroom Transient Vacation
Rental and to Conduct Special Events within the County Agricultural District for Property
Situated at Kula, Maui, Hawaii", and incorporating the change to be five years instead of
two, and if the, we'll allow the Staff to add the appropriate language, if necessary, over
there for clarification -COUNCILMEMBER KANE: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Second.
CHAIR CARROLL: -- and filing of the communication.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Second.
CHAIR CARROLL:
Mr. Kane.

It's been moved by Mr. Kane, seconded by Ms. Tavares.

Discussion,

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: I just want to thank the Applicant for being so patient in allowing
us to move through our entire agenda this aft... , this morning and this afternoon, and I
am happy to support this application as revised, and I wish them success in their
endeavor with this application.
CHAIR CARROLL: Further discussion? Mr. Molina followed by Mr. Pontanilla, followed by
Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, if there's only one disappointment I was hoping to see
the Applicant be here, but my understanding is that the Applicant is a very, very busy
person, the property owner, I should say. Thank you. Happy to support the motion.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Mr. Pontanilla.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chair. I'm happy to support the motion. Being a
previous Planning Commissioner, I, I've seen applications that were approved when I
was a Commissioner now coming before the Council. So I think five years is
appropriate. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Ms. Tavares.
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I was trying to think about
workloads in the future since I won't be here when the two years are up, much less the
five years. So I was hoping that we could look at some things and, you know, make
sense to try to cut down some of the maybe unnecessary workload and where we can
focus our resources on those that really need our attention, these issues like this.
And I really appreciate that O.W. Ranch has not conducted activities in the meantime,
unlike 400 or so other people that don't have their permits yet that are just going ahead
and doing whatever they want to do, and then we went into these after-the-fact things
and all kinds of problems.
So I appreciate the managers and the owner of the property and respecting our
County's process and our laws, and I do apologize also that's it's taken so long to hear
this. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Further discussion? Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Just a final comment that if there's a, a remote possibility of the,
the owner of, of the ranch being in town during the time that this bill is heard on either
first or, and/or second reading that they are welcome to come and testify in support of
the proposed bill. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: I'm sure she will make every effort to be here. Further discussion? Before
I call for the vote, I would like to not only thank the Applicant, but thank the Members.
And I think I'd like to have it on the record that this is an off week, and the Members
have sacrificed their time not only today, but we were supposed adjourn no later than
4:00 o'clock, and I really appreciate the Members sacrificing the time that I know they
had commitments with their families in order to complete this agenda.
And on behalf of the Chair, and I'm sure the Applicant and everybody else, thank you
very much. The motion is on the floor. All those in favor signify by saying aye.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed. Motion carried.
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VOTE:

AYES:

Councilmembers Kane, Molina, Tavares,
Pontanilla, and Chair Carroll.

NOES:

None.

EXC.:

Council members Anderson, Hokama, Johnson, and
Mateo.

ABSENT:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

Vice-Chair

MOTION CARRIED
ACTION:

Recommending FIRST READING of revised proposed bill and FILING
of communication.

CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you.
adjou rned. .. .(ga vel). . .

This Land Use Committee meeting of March 10th stands

ADJOURN: 5:27 p.m.

APPROVED:

ROBERT CARROLL, Chair
Land Use Committee

lu:min:050310:jbc

Transcribed by: Jessica B. Cahill
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